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General

1) Ref: Revenue Requirement Work Form

Please update the application to reflect changed evidence as a result of the first round of
interrogatories including a table of content/exhibit list to show all relevant updates by date

and schedules.

Please update the RRWF using the middle column to reflect the changes and updates to
the evidence as a result of the first round of interrogatory responses.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.
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Issue 1.2 Are the Applicant’s overall economic and business planning
assumptions for the Test Year appropriate?

2) Ref: Board staff IRR #76, Appendix Guelph_BoardStaff IRR_#3, p.10 and 13

a) Please explain and reconcile the difference between the decrease in
amortization expense as a result of increase in useful lives of distribution assets
of $2,836,000 on Page 13 Note (1) (b) and $3,409,000 on Page 10 Note (2)

(1).
Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro apologizes as the $3,409,000 in note 2 of Table 1 is an old amount, the correct
decrease in amortization expense as a result of the increase in useful lives of the company’s
PP&E is $2,836,000. This reduction is due to an offsetting change to the useful life of the
related contributed capital from 25 years under CGAAP to 40 years under MIFRS. When
Guelph Hydro calculated the $3,409,000 amount we inadvertently did not increase the useful
life of the contributed capital. Note 2 should be changed to read that there was a $2,836,000
reduction in accumulated depreciation which was caused by the change in useful lives of the
company’s PP&E (including the related contributed capital) and the reclassification of net
contributed capital to deferred revenue in the amount of $28,363,000 (this number is also
impacted by the reduction in amortization of the contributed capital and it also was
inadvertently not changed).

b) If the amortization expense for 2010 will be revised as a result of the above
guestion, please update the applicable schedules for the revenue requirement
and rate base calculations, including the 2010 calculations.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

No, the amortization expense used in the revised schedules in Appendix
Guelph_BoardStaff IRR_#3 included the correct amortization expense as identified by
the $2,836,000 reduction. The old figure of $3,409,000 was only a notational explanation
of the change in NBV of which included an offsetting error due to the new useful life of
contributed capital as stated in a) above.
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3) Ref: Board Staff IRR #76, Appendix Guelph_BoardStaff IRR_#3

In Appendix Guelph_Board staff IRR_#3 Guelph Hydro shows decreases in amortization
expense in various tables, as follows:

(1) page 13, table 5 — Grossed Up PILS calculation for 2010 of 1,995,000 ($1,988,000
+ $7,000 (as included in operations and maintenance account)

(2) On page 13, table 2 — MIFRS Impact on Revenue Requirements: $2,836,000

(3) On page 10, table 1 — MIFRS Impact on Rate Base: $3,409,000

Please provide an explanation and reconcile the difference in the decreases in
amortization expense shown in these tables.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

An explanation of items 2) $2,836,000 and 3) $3,409,000 are outlined in Guelph Hydro’s
response to Q#2. Item 1) $1,988,000 represents the reduction in amortization of PP&E
not taking into consideration the amortization of contributed capital. Table 5 separately
discloses the amortization of contributed capital as an increase in Other Revenue
$848,000 instead of an additional decrease of Depreciation & Amortization.
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4) Ref: Energy Probe IR# 21)

In part i) of the response to Energy Probe IR # 2, Guelph Hydro states that it has used a
15 year life for the computer software capital additions of $1.1M, and that the 15-year life
is consistent with the economic life of smart meter assets. Guelph Hydro has also used a
15-year life for computer software as shown on row 62 of sheet “3. LDC Assumptions
and Data” of the updated Smart Meter Model filed on September 30, 2011.

a) What is the nature of the software that was invested in?
Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.

b) Typically, computer hardware and software have shorter economic lives, in
large part driven by technological obsolescence. Economic lives in the range of
3 to 5 years are more commonly used. However, the nature and cost of
computer hardware and software assets may have shorter or longer lives than
the norm. Please provide further explanation as to why Guelph Hydro believes
that a 15 year life is appropriate for the computer software investment
associated with smart meter deployment.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.
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Issue 2.1 Is the proposed rate base for the test year appropriate?

5) Ref: Board staff IRR #7b, #24, #81b) and SEC IRR #28

In Board staff IRR #7b and #24 Guelph Hydro states that a full year of depreciation

calculation was used for rate making purposes for the 2012 test year. In SEC #28 Guelph

states “Guelph Hydro has provided you with Appendix 2-M where years 2008 — 2011 do

not use the half year rule and then 2012 applies the half year rule on all current

additions”.

a) Please reconcile these statements and amounts and provide a detailed

explanation of how depreciation expenses were calculated for rate setting for the
2012 test year. If a full year depreciation was used please provide further
explanation as to why Guelph Hydro feels that it is appropriate to use a full year
depreciation calculation for rate setting purposes.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.

b) Please confirm that the depreciation expense of $5,487,492 for the 2012 test year
as shown in Board staff IRR 81b) is based on a full year depreciation calculation.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.
c) If applicable, please restate the 2012 depreciation expense using the half year rule
and update all relevant tables.
Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.
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Issue 2.3 Is the capital expenditure forecast for the test year appropriate?

6) Ref: Board staff IRR #9

Please confirm that the summary of capital expenditures shown in table 1 below correctly
represents Guelph Hydro’s capital investments from 2006 to 2012.

DISTRIBUTION CAPITAL BUDGET SUMMARY

CAPITAL PROJECT: DISTRIBUTION STATIONS
TOTAL DISTRIBUTION SUBSTATION CAPITAL
CAPITAL PROJECT: DISTRIBUTION FEEDERS
Total Feeders - General

Total Feeders - Line Modifications for New Projects
Total Feeders - Line Relocations

Total Feeders - Switching devices

Total Feeders - Capacitor Banks

TOTAL DISTRIBUTION FEEDER CAPITAL
CAPITAL PROJECT: REHABILITATION

Total Rehabilitation - Replacement

Total Rehabilitation - Transformer Upgrades
Total Rehabilitation - Protective Devices

Total Rehabilitation - Upgrade Underground Terminations
Total Rehabilitation - Faulted Circuit Indicators
TOTAL REHABILITATION CAPITAL

CAPITAL PROJECT: SUBDIVISIONS

Total Subdivisions - Industrial

Total Subdivisions - Residential

Total Subdivisions - Townhousing

Total Subdivisions - Service Installations

TOTAL SUBDIVISIONS CAPITAL

CAPITAL PROJECT: AP/CM/IN SERVICING
TOTAL AP/CM/IN SERVICING CAPITAL
CAPITAL PROJECT: METERING

Total Metering - General

Total Metering - RIMS

Total Metering - Smart

TOTAL METERING CAPITAL

CAPITAL PROJECT/CATEGORY: SCADA
TOTAL SCADA CAPITAL CSC

SUB-TOTAL

Capital Contributions

NET CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Vehicle replacement

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Table 1
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Bridge 2012 Test

$1,819,261 $762,405 $10,875,000 $0
$1,344,983 $957,922 $2,671,584 $2,228,772 $1,279,381 $2,400,334 $2,388,017
$17,131 $325,335 $3,350,007 $2,559,590 $452,311 $1,142,676 $360,907
$1,043,514 $709,593 $535,205 $1,411,002 $3,411,849 $607,670 $965,032
$119,346 $505,872 $109,508 $342,126 $80,515 $170,368 $171,290
$0 $138,948 $54,305 $20,765 $9,888 $67,778 $68,552
$2,524,974 $2,637,670 $6,720,609 $6,562,255 $5,233,944 $4,388,826  $3,953,798
$1,012,445 $1,852,213 $2,125,203 $1,673,282 $955,236 $2,289,567 $2,539,392
$132,166 $102,321 $349,631 $178,112 $165,598 $222,716 $223,211
$0 $24,714 $0 $43,490 $0 $31,223 $31,530
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0 $0 $10,089 $10,212
$1,144,611 $1,979,248 $2,474,834 $1,894,884 $1,120,834 $2,553,595 $2,804,345
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
$1,743,006 $2,034,891 $1,332,503 $778,357 $639,333 $1,420,763  $1,463,399
$184,455 $285,355 $204,360 $29,436 $882,719 $288,468 $296,512
$345,816 $237,174 $286,687 $202,427 $270,447 $237,243 $239,928
$2,273,277 $2,557,420 $1,823,550 $1,010,220 $1,792,499 $1,946,474  $1,999,839
$1,199,244 $876,858 $1,213,922 $559,063 $668,149 $549,378 $570,315
$1,768,016 -$405,170 $553,043 $625,000
$0 $0 $0 $0
$1,321,378 $6,399,161 $55,467 $0
$1,610,512 $384,017 $855,835 $3,089,394 $5,993,991 $608,510 $625,000
$223,505 $25,268 $43,903 $153,167 $182,529 $253,699 $200,000
$8,976,123 $8,460,481 $13,132,653 $15,088,244 $15,754,351 $21,175,482 $10,153,297
-$2,915,053 -$2,813,022 -$5,836,182 -$3,631,517 -$3,828,745 -$3,079,402 -$2,425,000

$

6,061,070 $ 5,647,459 $ 7,296471 $ 11,456,727

$11,925,606 $18,096,080 $7,728,297

$ 248,000 $ 430,700

$ 628700 $

450,000 $ 485,000

The summary of capital expenditures shown in table 1 refers to distribution capital
projects only. Guelph Hydro would like to correct the above table with the following:



DISTRIBUTION CAPITAL BUDGET SUMMARY
CAPITAL PROJECT: DISTRIBUTION STATIONS
TOTAL DISTRIBUTION SUBSTATION CAPITAL
CAPITAL PROJECT: DISTRIBUTION FEEDERS
Total Feeders - General

Total Feeders - Line Modifications for New Projects
Total Feeders - Line Relocations

Total Feeders - Switching Devices

Total Feeders - Capacitor Banks

TOTAL DISTRIBUTION FEEDER CAPITAL
CAPITAL PROJECT: REHABILITATION

Total Rehabilitation - Replacement

Total Rehabilitation - Transformer Upgrades
Total Rehabilitation - Protective Devices
Total Rehabilitation - Upgrade Underground Terminations
Total Rehabilitation - Faulted Circuit Indicators
TOTAL REHABILITATION CAPITAL

CAPITAL PROJECT: SUBDIVISIONS

Total Subdivisions - Industrial

Total Subdivisions - Residential

Total Subdivisions - Townhousing

Total Subdivisions - Service Installations
TOTAL SUBDIVISIONS CAPITAL

CAPITAL PROJECT: AP/CM/IN SERVICING
TOTAL AP/CM/IN SERVICING CAPITAL
CAPITAL PROJECT: METERING

Total Metering - General

Total Metering - RIMS

Total Metering - Smart

TOTAL METERING CAPITAL

TOTAL SCADA CAPITAL

SUM OF ABOVE ACCOUNTS

Capital Contributions

Net Capital Expenditures
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2009
1,819,261

2,228,772
2,559,590
1,411,002
342,126
20,765
6,562,256

1,673,282
178,112
43,490

1,894,884

778,357
29,436
202,427
1,010,219
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1,768,016
1,321,377
3,089,393

153,167
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(3,631,518)
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2010
762,405

1,279,381
471,929
3,411,849
80,515
9,888
5,253,560

955,236
165,598

1,120,833

639,333
882,719
270,447
1,792,499

668,149

(405,170)
6,399,161
5,993,991

182,529
15,773,967
(3,291,072)
12,482,895
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2011 Bridge
Budget
10,875,000

2,400,334
1,142,676
607,670
170,368
67,778
4,388,825

2,289,567
222,716
31,223

10,089
2,553,594

1,420,763
288,468
237,243

1,946,473

549,378
553,043

55,467
608,510
253,699

21,175,480
(3,079,402)
18,096,078

v

@ v v v v
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@ v v n
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2012 Test
Budget

2,388,017
360,906
965,029
171,288

68,552

3,953,790

2,539,380
223,207
31,529
10,212
2,804,327

1,463,386
296,510
239,927

1,999,822

570,307

624,715

624,715
199,867
10,152,828
(2,121,040)
8,031,788
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7) Ref: Board staff IRR #14b)and E2/T4/S4 Appendix A, p. 18 and Appendix B, p.
13

Board staff IRR #14b) asked to provide a vehicle replacement schedule for the years
2008 through 2012. Board staff noted that data for the 2011 bridge years was only
partially completed, while the 2012 test year was missing.

a) Please complete Board staff IRR #14 and provide Guelph Hydro’s vehicle
replacement schedule for the 2011 bridge year and include a forecast for the 2012

test year.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Budget Year Year, Make Cost Budget
2008 1993 International with Posi-Plus 60' DB $ 43,300.00 $230,000.00
Aerial Device replaced with 2008

International with Posi-Plus 63' DB Aerial
Device (Truck #4) - (body only)

2008 Internal $40,600.00
Compartmentalizing/Outfitting for the

two Step Vans
2008 Internal $40,600.00
Compartmentalizing/Outfitting for the

two Step Vans

2001 Chevrolet Cargo Van replaced with $36,600.00
2009 Chevrolet Cargo Van
2001 Ford Windstar Van replaced with $36,600.00
2009 Chevrolet Cargo Van
2008 Miller Lifting Device (transport $50,300.00
transformers into places vehicles can’t
get to)
Sub-Total $248,000.00
2009 1994 Freightliner with Telelect 50' DB $286,700.00 $406,000.00

Aerial Device replaced with 2009
International Posi-Plus 50' Aerial Device

(Truck #5)

1998 Ford Cargo Van replaced with 2009 $39,000.00
Chevrolet Cargo Van

2002 Ford Ranger Pick up replaced with $27,600.00
2009 Ford F150 Pick up

2000 Ford Ranger Pick up replaced with $27,600.00

2009 Ford F150 Pick Up
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Budget Year Year, Make Cost Budget
2000 Chevrolet Malibu Car replaced with $37,700.00
2010 Ford Fusion Hybrid
Riding Lawnmower $4,900.00
Rebuilt Compact Sweeper (Tennant) $7,200.00
Sub-Total $430,700.00
2010 1999 International with Amador 46' SB $319,700.00 $625,000.00
Aerial Device replaced with 2010
International with Posi-Plus 50' SB Aerial
Device Unit(#2) — Added Hybrid Unit
1997 International with Amador 46' SB $267,100.00
Aerial Device replaced with 2010
International with Posi-Plus 46' SB Aerial
Device (Truck #1)
2001 Chevrolet Malibu Car replaced with $21,800.00
2010 Ford Fusion Car
2005 Ford Freestar Van replaced due to $20,100.00
motor vehicle accident with 2011 Ford
Fusion Car
1978 King Pole Trailer with 2010 Sauber $44,700.00 | Ordered &
Pole Trailer Budgeted in
2010 paid in
January 2011
Sub-Total $628,700.00
2011 1978 King Pole Trailer replaced with a $44,700.00 $450,000.00
2010 Sauber Pole Trailer
1975 York Trailer (modified reel) replaced $57,120.00
with a 2011 Sauber Reel Trailer
2002 Ford F350 (T17) replaced with a $80,800.00

2011 Ford F450

1994 Chevrolet P30 (T25) replaced with a

$126,000.00

2011 Freightliner Chassis & PK Van Body Tender
2002 Ford Ranger pickup replaced with a $25,100.00
(T61) 2011 Ford F150 pick up 4x4

2004 Ford Freestar minivan replaced with $30,900.00
a (Te4) 2011 Ford Explorer

Replace Front Axles in T2 & T5 for $19,650.00
compliancy to MTO Weight & Dimension

Reforms Phase 4 (SPIF)

Vehicles planned but not yet purchased $61,000.00

Sub-Total

$445,270.00

12|Page



EB-2011-0123

Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc.
TCQs_ Responses to the Board Staff Interrogatories
Delivered October 26, 2011

Budget Year Year, Make Cost Budget
2012 1995 Freightliner FL80 RDB replaced with $370,000.00 $485,000.00
a 2012 International RBD 5052
1994 Waltron dump trailer to be replaced $50,000.00
with a dump truck — Assessing
Other Light Fleet Units $65,000.00

b) Please provide further explanation as to what is Guelph Hydro’s policy on
disposals of vehicles and explain why in the 2011 bridge year and the 2012 test
year Guelph Hydro shows $0 amount on the disposal of vehicles.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Regarding a policy on disposal of vehicles — Guelph Hydro’s policy is:

e Once the decision is made to dispose of a vehicle, we have the vehicle appraised,
then we sell them for as much as we are able to get either through a consultant at
auction, or separately - depending on the specific situation. Prior to disposing of a
vehicle, we do review our entire fleet requirement to see if an older vehicle can be
replaced with the vehicle in question. This ensures that the oldest vehicles are

disposed of first.

Budget for vehicle disposals:

e 2011 - $43,000.00
e 2012 - $35,000.00.

Regarding our actual gain for 2011, we are currently at $40,730 as of October 1, 2011.

The 2011 bridge year and the 2012 test years incorrectly omitted amounts for the
disposal of vehicles. These vehicles are fully depreciated however and will not have an
impact on the NBV of fixed assets upon their removal.

13|Page
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Issue 3.1 Is the load forecast methodology including weather
normalization appropriate?

8) Ref: Board staff IR # 15 — Load Forecasting Regression Model

a) Please confirm that the City of Guelph is a Census Metropolitan Area (“CMA”),
as defined by Statistics Canada.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro confirms that City of Guelph is a census Metropolitan Area, as defined by
Statistics Canada.

b) What economic statistics are available from Statistics Canada for the Guelph
CMA?

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
As per City of Guelph website (i.e. http://www.guelph.ca/communityprofile/intro.html), the
economic statistics available from Statistics Canada for the Guelph CMA are:

1. Demographics:

a. Current Population
Population Growth & Projections
Population by Age & Sex
Population by Mother Tongue
Population by Marital Status

® oo

2. Education Statistics:
a. Elementary & Secondary School Locations

3. Housing Statistics:
a. Residential:
i. Building Permits
ii. Construction Values
b. Guelph Housing Stock
c. Private Households
d. New Residential Units

4. Income Statistics:
a. Personal:
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i. Income
ii. Income distribution
b. Private Household:
I. Income
ii. Income Distribution
c. Average Household Expenditures

5. Labour Force Statistics:
a. Highest Level of Schooling
b. Labour Force:
I. By Industry (NAICS)
ii. By Occupational Category (NOCS)
li. Activity
c. Sample Wages by Hourly Wage and Salary

6. Business Statistics:

a. Major Guelph Employers

b. Business Distribution by:
I. Number of Employees
ii. Year Established
lii. Export Activity
Iv. Industry

c. Manufacturing Businesses by Industry (structure %)

C) Did Guelph Hydro try any of these variables in regression models to estimate
load?
i) If no, please explain why not.
i) If yes, what were the results and why did Guelph Hydro prefer the model
it chose.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro picked the Population Growth, the one variable that makes sense and that
was guided by experience of the process.

In addition, considering that Guelph is a strong industrial area with a major percentage in
manufacturing, Guelph Hydro has chosen Manufacturing GDP as independent variable.

15|Page
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Issue 3.5 Is the test year forecast of other revenues appropriate?
9) Ref: Board staff IRR #18

Please provide up-to-date amounts for scrap metal sales and confirm that the forecasted
amount for the 2011 bridge year is $50,000. Please provide an explanation as to why
scrap metal sales for the 2012 test year will decline to a forecast of $36,401. Please
update the evidence as necessary.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

This is to confirm that Guelph Hydro’s 2011 scrap metal sales is forecast to be $50,000
for 2011, with scrap metal sales of $40,046.18 to end September 2011.

The 2012 scrap metal sales was budgeted to be approximately $36,000. This is based
on Guelph Hydro’s best estimates of the type and volume of distribution system work for
2012. Guelph Hydro notes that between 2010 and 2011 Guelph Hydro experienced a
one-time recycling/scrap metal sales increase of about $32,000 resulting from the smart
metering deployment project which saw over 48,000 meters removed from our system.
This element of scrap material sales will not be repeated as the smart meter deployment
has concluded.
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10) Ref: Board staff IRR #19 and E4/T2/S7

Please confirm that the increase of $58,830 in miscellaneous expenses, due to staffing
level is not also included OM&A.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro confirms that the increase of $58,830 in miscellaneous expenses due to
staffing level is not also included in OM&A.
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Issue 4.1 Is the overall OM&A forecast for the test year appropriate?

11) Ref: Board staff IRR #21c)

In response to Board staff IRR #21c) Guelph Hydro stated that “2010 MIFRS adjustments
were determined at a higher level than that required for a restatement of Appendix 2-F,
and as a result we can only restate Appendix 2-E”.

Please clarify the above statement and provide Appendix 2-F for the 2010 pivot year in
CGAAP and MIFRS as well as the 2011 bridge year and the 2012 test year in MIFRS.
Please provide up-to-date actual OM&A expenses for the 2011 bridge year.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.
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Issue 4.2 Are the methodologies used to allocate shared services and other costs
appropriate?

12) Ref: SEC IR # 27 h)
In its response to SEC IR # 27 part h), Guelph Hydro stated:

It is Guelph Hydro and the City’s intention to continue with the current
arrangement for water billing services after smart meters have been fully
implemented. The company has recently issued an RFP for meter reading
services with a newly defined scope for post smart meter implementation.
The new scope excludes approximately 48,000 electric meters that will be
read remotely but still includes water meters and about 2,000 commercial
electric meters. Guelph Hydro has advised the City that, depending on the
responses to the RFP, an adjustment in the pricing may be required. The
new meter reading contract is scheduled to become effective in mid-
October.

a) What is the status of the RFP and the new contract?
Guelph Hydro’s Response:
The RFP process has been completed and a new contract will be entered into on

November 1 with a third party contractor.

b) If the contract has been awarded, what is the adjusted cost per meter read?
What is the impact of this on Guelph Hydro’s OM&A expenses and revenue
requirement for 20127

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

The average cost per meter read for water meters is $0.29. The previous contract cost
was $0.37 for a dual read (electric + water). Allocating the previous cost 50/50 results in
a comparable cost of $0.185 for water meter reads. The increased cost per read for
water meters is therefore $0.105 ($0.29 — $0.185).

The increased cost of water meter reads in total for 2012 is $23,308 (221,982 reads x
$0.105).
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In total (water + electric), Guelph Hydro has budgeted $263,000 for third party meter
reading services in 2012 (note that this includes other services such as delivery of notices
and verification of previous reads). Under the terms of the new contract, Guelph Hydro

now expects total costs to be approximately $180,000.

C) If awarding of the new contract is delayed, how is Guelph Hydro handling water
meter reading costs? If there are any incremental costs due to a delay in the
new water metering reading contract, are these costs recovered from the City
of Guelph or are they borne by Guelph Hydro and its ratepayers? Please
explain your response.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Please note previous response.
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Issue 4.2 Are the 2012 compensation costs and employee levels appropriate?
13) Ref: Board staff IRR#29

IAS 19 Employee Benefits was changed in 2011. The effective date for these changes is
January 1, 2013. Earlier application is permitted. The changes to the standard eliminate
the corridor method described by Guelph below.

Guelph described its IFRS election to record actuarial gains in equity
[Exh.4/Tab2/Sch7/pg45].

In response to staff IR#29 d) i, pages 53-54, Guelph stated:
Guelph Hydro expects to recover the actual expense from ratepayers as the plan pays
out benefits over future years. There will be fluctuations in the present value of the
liability from year to year, however, the best estimate of actual expense will be
adjusted each time a new actuary study is done in conformance with the accounting
treatment prescribed by IFRS. [Emphasis added]

Using this methodology, any unrealized gains or losses in excess of 10% of the
valuation result will be amortized over the remaining life of the plan. [Corridor method
— added by Board staff] This has the effect of smoothing out losses and gains caused
by changes in the discount rate applied as opposed to real changes caused by actual
expenses paid out under the plan. Guelph Hydro believes it is appropriate to use the
accounting derived expense estimate for the test year in rate applications as it
represents the best available estimate of what actual expense will be.

a) Using the new IAS 19 standard, what elections and accounting entries would
Guelph have to make?

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Under IAS 19, Guelph Hydro would record the unrealized actuarial gain as a reduction in

the liability and an increase in retained earnings. The unrealized gain would also be
recognized in comprehensive net income.

b) If Guelph applied this new standard to its 2012 test year, what would be the dollar
impact on its test year OPEB expenses?

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
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There would be no impact to the OPEB expenses recognized in 2012 as the expenses
budgeted were based on the latest actuarial study. Unrealized actuarial gains and losses
are accounted for separately from annual OPEB expenses. An unrealized actuarial gain
in any given year would have the result of lowering the annual level of OPEB expenses
recognized as compared to what would have been recognized prior to the latest actuarial
study.

c) Guelph wants to deny ratepayers the benefit of the actuarial gains in its test year
expenses but expects the ratepayers to pay for the future changes in actuarial
estimates. Please explain how this is equitable and symmetrical treatment of the
same issue from a regulatory perspective.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro does not intend to deny ratepayers the benefit of actuarial gains. As noted
in the previous answer, ratepayers will benefit from lower OPEB expenses being booked
in the future as a result of the new actuarial study.
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14) Ref: Board staff IRR#29

The accounting entries to record changes in actuarial forecasts are non-cash in nature.
Guelph does not have to finance these non-cash accounting estimates.

Guelph stated in response to IR29 d) i:

In the long run, the cost of the plan will ultimately be determined by the benefits
provided and by the plan's actual experience, not by the actuarial basis adopted from
time to time to estimate the cost.

Staff asked in IR29 d) ii:
For ratemaking purposes, should the Board choose another method than IFRS
accounting instructions to determine what OPEB costs should be paid by ratepayers?
What suggestions can Guelph make in its case?

Guelph responded:
Please see previous response. Guelph Hydro believes the current method of
determining cost using IFRS accounting treatment is appropriate. Any other
methodology risks introducing volatility from external sources such as general economic
conditions that could in turn cause volatility in rates from time to time.

Guelph’s cash costs of providing OPEBs can be met by funding the cash costs in
distribution rates. These distribution rates will be adjusted over time to allow Guelph to
recover the actual benefits provided to its retired employees as the benefits are paid.

a) From a regulatory ratemaking perspective, why would Guelph want to recover non-
cash OPEB expenses from its ratepayers many years in advance of having to pay
the actual benefits to employees who have not yet retired?

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Clarification and discussion is required here. Guelph Hydro is not suggesting that non-

cash OPEB expenses should or will be recovered from ratepayers many years in advance
of paying them out.

b) What would Guelph do with this money that it will collect from its ratepayers but will
not pay out to retirees until many years in the future?
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Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Please see previous response.
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Issue 4.6 Is the test year forecast of PILs appropriate?

15) Ref: Board staff IRR #33 - Disposition of Account 1562 Deferred PILs
a) Is each of the tax years 2001 through 2005 statute barred?

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.

b) Please explain the rationale Guelph used to select the tax rates it input for each
year 2001 to 2005 to calculate the tax impacts and the tax amounts grossed up in
sheet TAXCALC. The Board’s policy has been to account for the declining tax
rates. In the 2003 model used by Guelph, the tax rate should be 36.62% rather
than 38.62%.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.

c) The Board decided that regulatory assets, regulatory liabilities, collections of PILs
from customers, impairment provisions, etc. should be excluded from the true up
calculations. In Guelph’s evidence, it appears that regulatory assets and liabilities
have been included in reserves, and thus improperly included in the true ups to
ratepayers. Please calculate the impact for each year 2001-2005 by excluding
changes in regulatory assets and liabilities, collections, impairments, etc. from the
determination of the PILs 1562 balance.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.
d) Please explain the rationale for the chosen dates of recording the SIMPIL
variances each year in the continuity schedule for the calculation of interest

carrying charges.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
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Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.

e) Please explain why Guelph believes that interest and penalties on underpaid or

unpaid taxes should true up to the ratepayer.
Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.

f) Please explain why gains and losses on fixed assets for tax purposes should true
up to the ratepayers rather than to the shareholder.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.

g) Please re-file the SIMPIL model evidence using revised SIMPIL models for 2001
through 2005. This can be accomplished by using revised models as filed by
Halton Hills, Hydro One Brampton and several other distributors.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.

h) Please exclude all data related to regulatory assets, liabilities, collections,
impairments, etc. from the true-ups to ratepayers by recording the amounts on
sheet TAXRECS of the revised models.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.

i) Please select the correct tax rate in each year to calculate the tax impact. Please
deduct 1.12% from the selected tax rate for purposes of calculating the grossed-up
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tax effect. These tax rates are required in sheet TAXCALC in the SIMPIL model
for each tax year 2001-2005.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.

]) Please explain why Guelph chose the tax rate for each year 2001-2005. Guidance
can be found in the Board’s decision issued on June 24, 2011.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.

k) Please record the addition and deduction of Ontario capital tax (OCT) on sheet
TAXREC3. OCT does not true up for income tax purposes under the Board’s
methodology since it is a component of net income.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.

I) Please file the full sets of financial statements that were used in the preparation of
the tax returns for each tax year.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Please see the Appendix Guelph_BoardStaff TCQ_#15 | FS_GHESI and the Appendix
Guelph_BoardStaff TCQ_#15 | FS_ WEDCO.
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Issue 6.1 Is the proposed inclusion of the smart meter costs in the 2012 revenue
requirement appropriate?

16) Ref: SEC IR # 48, Exhibit 4/Tab 2/Schedule 5/page 2/Appendix 2-F and Exhibit
4/Tab 2/Schedule 6/page 2

In the response to SEC IR # 48, Guelph Hydro states: “The test year OM&A budget
includes $701,311 of smart meter expenses incurred in prior periods”.

In Appendix 2-F, Guelph Hydro documents a 2012 test year forecast of $1,059,614 for
Account 5065 — Meter Expense.

a) Please provide a breakdown of this amount by:
iii) ongoing meter expenses for the 2012 test year;
iv) one-time meter expense to be incurred in the 2012 test year; and
V) smart meter expenses incurred prior to the 2012 test year.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Smart Metering OME&A Categories 2010| Notes 2011| Notes 2012| Notes
Ongmng Smart Metering Operating & ¢335| 1 $2a2,380| 1 §225,000] 2
Maintenance Costs

Smart Metering Project Costs 173,566 3 285,070 3 -
Metering Field Operations - - 133,302 4
Total $173,901 5527,410 5358,302

Motes:

1. Ongoing AMI system operating and maintenance costs (includes maintenance of smart meters, relays,
gateways and communications equipment), and cost related to the operations and support of the smart
metering back-office systems (annual remote operational support and software maintenance fees).

2. Ongoing AMI system operating and maintenance costs, including cost related to the support of the smart
metering back-office systems {(annual remote operational support and software maintenance fees).

3. "One-Time" Smart Metering Project Costs.

4, Metering field operations expenses, which covers both “smart” and “non-smart” or traditional meters.

b) In the updated Smart Meter model filed on September 30, 2011, Guelph Hydro
shows $173,901 of operating expenses related to smart meter deployment in
2010 and $527,410 of operating expenses in 2011. The two-year total is
$701,311, equal to what Guelph Hydro has documented in its response to SEC
IR # 48.
i) Please confirm whether the $701,311 that Guelph Hydro has included
the 2012 operating expense is this amount;
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Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro confirms that the $701,311 included in the 2012 operating expense
represents $173,901 of operating expenses related to smart meter deployment in 2010
and $527,410 of operating expenses in 2011.

i) In the Smart Meter Model, the 2010 and 2011 operating expenses are
factored into the deferred revenue requirement for each year, and
recovered through the combination of Smart Meter Funding Adder
revenues collected since May 1, 2006 and through the proposed Smart
Meter Disposition Rider for the variance between the Funding Adder
Revenues collected and the deferred revenue requirement to December
31, 2011. Please explain why Guelph Hydro has included the prior
period OM&A expenses in 2012 OM&A expenses? Does not Guelph
Hydro consider that this would result in a double-recovery of these prior
period costs?

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Prior to 2012, the costs shown for 2010 - $173,901 and 2011 - $527,410 have been/will
be included in Deferral and Variance Account #1556 Smart Meter OM&A Variance. In
accordance with the Board’'s Guideline G-2008-0002 — Smart Meter Funding and Cost
Recovery these expenses were reclassified from Deferral and Variance account #1556
and recorded as 2012 expenses. This treatment is based on the condition that Guelph
Hydro will be granted approval of its smart meters and associated revenue requirement in
the 2012 rate order.

Guelph Hydro agrees that including the prior period OM&A expenses in the 2012 OM&A

expenses would result in a double-recovery of these prior period costs. Guelph Hydro
proposes to remove these expenses from the 2012 rate base calculation.
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Issue 6.2 Is the proposed disposition of the balances in variance accounts 1555
and 1556 appropriate?

17) Ref: Energy Probe IR # 41
In the response to part a) of Energy Probe IR # 41, Guelph Hydro states:

Computer hardware and systems software are included in the same CCA class (Class 50,
Class 52). Applications software should be allocated to Class 12. Guelph Hydro has
identified $186,427 that should be reclassified to Class 12.

In the updated Smart Meter Model filed on September 30, 2011, computer hardware and
software are still shown as combined.

Has Guelph Hydro calculated the impact if the $186,427 of application software was
reclassified to Class 12. If so, what is the impact on the deferred revenue requirement for
each of 2010 and 20117

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro has not calculated the impact of reclassifying $186,427 of application
software to Class 12. In preparation for the Settlement Conference Guelph Hydro will
calculate the impact of this reclassification on the deferred revenue requirement for 2010
and 2011.
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18) Ref: Smart Meter Model

Please rerun and submit a revised version of the Smart Meter Model adjusting for the
following two matters:

a) It appears the current (and recent models) calculate compounded interest on
funding adder revenues. Please revise the model applying simple interest (i.e.
interest on the opening monthly balance of the principal only) on funding adder
revenues, and

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro will provide a revised version of the Smart Meter Revenue Requirement
Model based on all adjustments, already acknowledged through the interrogatories and
the adjustments following the results of the Technical Conference, no later than the

proposed date of the Settlement Conference November 15, 2011.

b) Please revise the model to calculate simple interest expense on the opening
monthly balance for OM&A and amortization expenses.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Please see the response to interrogatory No.18 a.
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19) Ref: Smart Meter Disposition Rate Rider

Please re-calculate the smart meter disposition rider using the following methodology that
is based on the approach approved by the Board in PowerStream’s 2010 smart meter
application (EB-2010-0209):

a) Allocate the total revenue requirement for the historical years, as revised per the
previous interrogatory, using the following cost allocation methodology:

= Allocate the return (deemed interest plus return on equity) and amortization based
on the allocation of Account 1860 in the cost allocation model (CWMC in the cost
allocation model)

= Allocate the OM&A based on the number of meters installed for each class

= Allocate PILs based on the revenue requirement allocated to each class before
PILs

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Please see the response to interrogatory No.18 a.

b) Sum the allocated amounts and calculate the percentages of costs allocated to
customer rate classes.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Please see the response to interrogatory No.18 a.

c) Subtract the revenues generated from the smart meter funding adder from the
overall revenue requirement.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Please see the response to interrogatory No.18 a.
d) Allocate the amount calculated in part (c) by using the allocation factors derived in
part (b)
Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Please see the response to interrogatory No.18 a.
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e) To calculate the smart meter disposition rider, divide the allocated amount by rate
class derived in part (d) by the number of customers in each class, and then divide
by 12.
Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Please see the response to interrogatory No.18 a.

f) If the proposed disposition period is greater than 1 year, divide the result of part (e)
by the proposed number of years.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Please see the response to interrogatory No.18 a.
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Issue 6.3 Is the proposal related to stranded meters appropriate?

20) Ref: Exhibit 9/Tab 3/Schedule 1/Appendices C and D and Board staff IR # 44 —
Stranded Meter Rate Rider

In Exhibit 9/Tab 3/ Schedule 1, Guelph Hydro documents that it removed the net book
value of meters stranded upon replacement by smart meters as of December 31, 2010.
In Exhibit 9/Tab 3/Schedule 1/Appendix C, Guelph Hydro documented that the Gross
Book Value of the stranded meters as of December 31, 2010 was $4,364,163, and the
associated accumulated depreciation as of December 31, 2010 for these meters was
$2,270,935. Guelph Hydro also documented that it had net proceeds from the sale or
disposal of the stranded meters of $31,728. This resulted in a Net Book Value of
stranded meters net of proceeds of $2,061,500 as of December 31, 2010.

In its response to Board staff IR # 44, Guelph Hydro stated:

Guelph Hydro confirms that the stranded meter costs recorded in Account
1555 are comprised of the gross costs of the stranded meters, less the
accumulated depreciation. Guelph Hydro inadvertently omitted the
deduction of unamortized capital contributions and the proceeds of
disposition of the meters from the gross cost of the stranded meters.
Including these two items reduces the cost of stranded meters by $183,006
based on the following values:

Unamortized capital contributions related to stranded meters: $151,278
Proceeds of disposition of stranded meters: $31,728

a) Please confirm whether it is only the unamortized capital contributions related
to stranded meters, documented as $151,278, that was omitted, and thus that
the net residual value of stranded meters as of December 31, 2010 was
$2,061,500 - $151,278 = $1,910,222.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Guelph Hydro confirms that it is only the unamortized capital contributions related to stranded

meters that was omitted and that the net residual value of stranded meters as of December
31, 2010 was $2,061,500 - $151,278 = $1,910,222.
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b) Since no adjustments were made to base rates for 2011 to remove the
recovery of costs related to the stranded meters (specifically the cost of capital,
related taxes/PILs and depreciation expense), please provide Guelph Hydro’s
views as to whether the residual value of stranded meters should not be
updated to reflect the 2011 depreciation expense recovered in base rates for
stranded meters.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Guelph Hydro agrees that since no adjustments were made to base rates for 2011 to
remove recovery of costs related to the stranded meters, the residual value of stranded

meters should be updated to reflect the 2011 depreciation expense recovered in base
rates for stranded meters (i.e. $184,379).

C) Based on responses to a) and b), please provide an updated Stranded Meter
Rate Rider, showing the calculations.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Guelph Hydro updated Stranded Meter rate Rider to reflect the adjustments of $151,278 and
$184,379 explained on responses to interrogatory 20 (a) and (b):

$2,061,500-$151,278-$184,379 = $1,725,843.

Updated Stranded Meter Cost Recovery Rate Rider calculation:
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Description
Revenue Requirement - 2006
Revenue Requirement - 2007
Revenue Requirement - 2008
Revenue Requirement - 2009
Revenue Requirement - 2010
Revenue Requirement - 2011

Total Revenue Requirement

Smart Meter Rate Adder Collected
Carrying Cost / Interest

Stranded Meter Cost Recovery
Number of Years of Recovery

Annual Cost Recovery

2010 Installed Smart Meters

Proposed Stranded Meter Cost Rate Rider per SM

EB-2011-0123
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Amount
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ 1,725,843
$ -
$ 1,725,843
$ -
$ -
$ 1,725,843
4
$ 431,461
49,033
$ 0.73

Delivered October 26, 2011
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Issue 7.1 Is Guelph Hydro’s cost allocation appropriate?
21) Ref: Board staff IRR #49

a) Guelph Hydro stated that street light connections are based on new design
standards as well as legacy connections. Please describe a typical connection for
each scenatrio.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

e Legacy street lights are connected directly to the secondary network of the
distribution system

e New street light design standards connects a string of street lights to a
connection box either overhead or underground through a protective device
which is then connected to the secondary network of the distribution system.

b) When did Guelph Hydro start connecting street lights based on the new design?
Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Guelph Hydro starting connecting street lights based on the new design standards in
2003 due to changes brought on by the Electrical Safety Authority.

c) How many legacy connections were connected prior to the implementation of the

new design standard?

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Guelph Hydro estimates that there were over 11,000 legacy street lights connected prior
to implementing the new street light design standard in 2003.

d) How many legacy connections are still in place?
Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro estimates that there are approximately 10,865 legacy connected street
lights still in place.
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e) If possible, please use the information in the previous responses to refine the 10:1
ratio of fixtures to connections and the weighting factor of 1.0 that has been
applied to the street lighting class.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro has approximated the ratio of fixtures to connection to 4:1, and the
weighting factors for Service, and Billing & Collecting to 0.4.

Guelph Hydro will update accordingly its Cost Allocation Model (version 2).
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Issue 7.2 Are the proposed revenue to cost ratios for each class appropriate?
22) Ref: Board staff IRR #56

In response to Board staff IRR #56 Guelph Hydro provided an updated proposed
adjustment to cost allocation based on the updated Cost allocation model filed as
appendix Guelph_Board staff IRR_47b_CostAllocationModel. Board staff noted changes
to the CA_v2 results, which could have a significant impact on the adjustments required
to attain the proposed revenue to cost ratio.

a) Please provide a table comparing class revenue requirements as per the original
CA model and the updated CA_v2.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Based on the response to Board Staff interrogatory #31 (e), Guelph Hydro has updated its
version of the Cost Allocation Model (v2):
1. Sheet 15.2 -Weighted factors for Services and Billing & Collection
changed from 1.0 to 0.4 for Street Lighting class [see IRR 21(e)]
2. Sheet 16.2 — Number of Connections for Street Lighting class
changed from 1,361 (i.e. 13,609/10) to 3,402 (i.e. 13,609/4)
The requested table comparing class revenue requirements at revenue to cost ratio of 100%
is presented below:

CA Model Worksheet O- New CA Model

1, row 35

.Worksheet O-1, row 40

Customer Class

Class Revenue
Requirement CA Old
Version at 100% rev to
cost ratio

Class Revenue
Requirement CA New
Version v2 updated at
100% rev to cost ratio

Residential $18,225,225 $19,286,772
GS < 50 kW $2,766,216 $2,905,591
GS 50 kW to 999

kw $3,396,317 $3,540,976
GS 1000 to 4999

kw $5,209,466 $5,218,922
Large User $2,712,192 $1,194,423
Street Lights $285,384 $449,532
Sentinel Lights $4,382 $4,477
USL $103,924 $102,412
Total $32,703,106 $32,703,106




EB-2011-0123

Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc.

TCQs_ Responses to the Board Staff Interrogatories
Delivered October 26, 2011

b) Please file updated proposed rates and charges that would yield revenues equal to
the updated class revenue requirements.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro has updated its proposed rates and charges that would yield revenues equal to
the updated class revenue requirements as following:

Proposed 2012 Electricity Distribution rates (excluding proposed rate riders and rate
adders)

Proposed Fixed Distribution Proposed Volumetric
Customer Class Customer Connection kWh kW
Residential $17.32 $0.0212
GS <50 kW $11.61 $0.0148
GS 50 to 999 kW $184.03 $2.4197
GS > 1000 kW $1,320.76 $4.2202
Large Use $944.93 $2.2659
Sentinel Lights $7.06 $7.8100
Street Lighting $0.50 $12.1415
USL $5.48 $0.0250
microFIT Charge $8.84
Transformer Allowance -$0.72

Please note that Guelph Hydro has corrected the fixed/variable split for GS 50-999
kW to account for the lower variable revenues due to the transformer ownership
discount (Ref.: VECC's interrogatory No. 31a — part of first round of interrogatories
responded on September 30, 2011).

c) Please provide bill impact calculations based on the updated information.
Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro has provided the bill impact calculation based on the updated Cost
Allocation results. Please note that no changes were done to the rate riders/adders.
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Class - Typical Usage

Monthly Dollar Impact

Total Bill Impact

Residential - 800 kWh/month
after OCEB credit

Comparison to 2011

$5.49

4.95%

General Service <50 kW - 2000
kWh/month

Comparison to 2011

-$7.54

-2.72%

General Service 50 to 999 kW -
100 kW 40,000 kWh/month

Comparison to 2011

-$208.61

-4.53%

Large Use 15,000kW
10,000,000 kWh

Comparison to 2011

-$5,228.48

-0.52%

Street Lighting 15,000
connections, 2,400 kW 850,000
kWh

Comparison to 2011

$13,754.84

11.94%

Sentinel Lighting 2 connections
1 kW 25 kWh/month

Comparison to 2011

$1.15

3.92%

Unmetered Scattered Load 200
connections 65,000
kWh/month

Comparison to 2011

$20.58

0.20%

d) Please explain the components that have affected the changes in the Large Use
customer class revenue requirements.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

As noted by the Board Staff and corrected by Guelph Hydro, the Large User load should
be zero for Line Transformer Non Coincident Peak LTNCP1, LTNCP4, LTNCP12, and for
Secondary Non Coincident Peak SNCP1, SNCP4, SNCP12. The Large Use customers
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are primary connected. Therefore the following cells have been updated to have a zero
amount: 157, 158, 163, 164, 169, and 170
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Issue 11.1 Is the proposed revenue requirement determined using modified IFRS
appropriate?

23) Ref: Board staff IRR #63
In its response to the Board staff interrogatory #63, Guelph stated that

Guelph Hydro was recording the $200,000 credit to variance account 1592 on a
prorated basis over the original period of rebasing. i.e. September 1, 2008 to April 30,
2011. Since Guelph Hydro is requesting disposition of account 1592 as of December
31, 2010, the full amount of the PILs tax allowance has not yet been credited to
variance account 1592. In order to comply with the Decision and Order (EB-2007-
0742), Guelph Hydro needs to increase the balance of 1592 by $25,000.

a) Please clarify if the proration recording of the $200,000 credit in account 1592 was
directed by the Board? If so, please provide the references. If not, please provide
the reason why Guelph is using the proration method.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro confirms that the proration recording of the $200,000 credit in account
1592 was not directed by the Board. Guelph Hydro used the proration method for
financial accounting purposes to reduce reported distribution revenue by the amount of
PILs overstatement over the period it was being billed.

Please clarify if Guelph Hydro is requesting the disposition of the $200,000 credit in
account 1592 in this proceeding (EB-2011-0123) despite the fact that Guelph Hydro is
showing an account balance of $175,000 as at December 31, 2010 under account 1592
in above reference Appendix 2-T.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro confirms that it is requesting the disposition of the $200,000 credit in
account 1592 in this proceeding (EB-2011-0123). Guelph Hydro proposes to adjust the
account balance of account 1592 as at December 31, 2010 to properly reflect the
$200,000 credit plus appropriate carrying charges.
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24) Ref: Board staff IRR #64
In part (a) of its reply to the Board staff interrogatory #64, Guelph stated that:

Guelph Hydro calculates the incremental IC that should have been recorded in
account 1592 sub-account HST/OVAT ITCs to be $729,166.

In part (b) of its reply to the Board staff interrogatory #64, Guelph stated that:

Guelph Hydro has not followed the December 2010 FAQs accounting guidance
regarding Account 1592 sub-account HST/OVAT ITCs.

And in response to interrogatory #64.
In this rate proceeding, Guelph Hydro request for the disposition of the balance in
Account 1592 sub-account HST/OVAT ITCs calculated in accordance to the related

accounting guidance found in the December 2010 FAQs.

a) Please confirm that the requested amount of $729,166 is calculated by Guelph in
accordance with APH FAQs December 2010.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.

b) Please provide an explanation of how Guelph Hydro calculated the amount for
$729,166. Please provide supporting document for the calculation including a
copy of the Guelph Hydro’s analysis.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.

c) Please provide the balance of Account 1592 sub-account HST/OVAT ITCs as of
December 31, 2010 and projected balance as of December 31, 2011.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.
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d) Please clarify what amount Guelph Hydro is seeking disposition of the balance in
Account 1592 sub-account HST/OVAT ITCs in this proceeding (EB-2011-0123).

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.

e) Please provide an update to Appendix 2-T, Deferred PILs Account 1592 Balances
for PILs tax allowance. Please supplement Appendix 2-T with the amount for
HST/OVAT ITCs and provide updated Table 8 (Method of Disposition of Accounts)
for PILs & Taxes Variance — sub-account 1592.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.
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25) Ref: Board staff IRR #70 b)

Please provide the December 2010 Journal Entry to record the RPP portion of GA
variance in Account 1588 control account.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

As clarification to the above noted comment. Guelph Hydro does not typically budget for
Retail Services Revenue (4082) or Service Transaction Request Revenue (4084) due to
the small amount of revenue ultimately recorded. As per the Accounting Procedures
Handbook the revenue balances in these accounts are periodically compared to the
expense accounts pertaining to retail services. A journal entry is made to reduce the
higher of the revenue or expenditure accounts. Historically in Guelph Hydro’s case, the
adjustment has been made to reduce revenue to the amount of related expense (approx.
$15,000). In preparing the 2011 and 2012 budgets, the total of Retail Services Revenue
and Service Transaction Request (STR) Revenue was simply forecasted to equal the
related expense accounts i.e. $15,850. This was done to ensure that there was no impact
on budgeted Net Income. Consideration was not given to the actual impact on the
related RCVA accounts (1518 and 1548) resulting from the reduction of Retail Services
revenue likely to be billed to the amount of expense estimated to be incurred. For
information purposes the following amounts represent the amount of Retail Services
revenue billed and incremental costs incurred in providing Retail services for 2009 and
2010:

2010 2009
Retail Services Revenue 70,232 30,179
STR Revenue 110,879 49,922

Incremental Costs 15,865 15,420
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Issue 9.2 Are the proposed rate riders to dispose of the account balances
appropriate?

26) Ref: Board staff IRR #72c)

Guelph’s response to question c) states that “Guelph didn’t forecast balances in account
1518 and 1548 for 2011 and 2012 as it assumes revenue and costs will net to zero.”
Please explain on what basis Guelph concluded that the revenue and costs will net to
zero given that Guelph has not considered a change to the retail service charges. Please
provide evidence that the revenue and costs will net to zero.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.
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Issue 11.1 Is the proposed revenue requirement determined using modified IFRS
appropriate?

27) Ref: Board staff IRR #77, table 1

Please confirm if Table 1 on page 11 of Part 2_Responses to Board Staff Interrogatories
Delivered on Oct 11, 2011 replaced Table 2 on pg 14 of 22 of the Appendix Board Staff
IRR #3 filed on Sep 30, 2011

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.
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28) Ref: Board staff IRR #77, table 2

a) Please confirm if Table 2 on page 12 of Part 2_Responses to Board Staff
Interrogatories Delivered on Oct 11, 2011 replaced Table 4 on pg 14 of 22 of the
Appendix Board Staff IRR #3 filed on Sep 30, 2011

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

No, Table 2 on page 12 delivered on Oct 11, 2011 does not replace Table 4 on page 14 filed
on Sept 30, 2011. Table 2 of the Oct 11, 2011 delivery was in response specifically to
guestion #77 regarding changes to Guelph Hydro’s capitalization policy and its impact on the
revenue requirements. Whereas, Table 4 in the Sept 30, 2011 filing takes into consideration
all adjustments relating to the transition to MIFRS, not just the adjustments directly related to
the company’s new capitalization policy.

b) Please provide the comparative balances under CGAAP to be presented beside
the MIFRS column for the rate base calculation in Table 2 — Rate Base Calculation
for 2010 and explain the difference between MIFRS and CGAAP in a similar format
as Table 1

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

In review of Table 2 of the Oct 11, 2011 delivery, there were a couple of changes that
needed to be made to the MIFRS Rate Base calculation based on capital policy
adjustments only (As per Q #77). First, the Fixed Assets Opening Balance needed to be
changed to reflect the proper balance of $90,470,000 and the closing balance needed to
be changed to reflect the adjusted balance of $90,562,000. The primary reason for the
change in the closing balance was that the previous balance didn’t reflect the new useful
life of the Contributed capital offset, it was inadvertently left at the old useful life of 25
years.

The table below compares the new Rate base per MIFRS (capital policy changes only) for
2010 to CGAAP.
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Table 2 -Rate Base Calculation for 2010

MIFRS CGAAP Difference
Fixed Assets Opening Balance 2010, net of contributions & grants S 90,470,000 $ 90,470,000 S -
Fixed Assets Closing Balance 2010, net of contributions & grants 90,562,000 $ 90,412,000 S 150,000
Average Fixed Asset Balance for 2010, net of contributions & grants 90,516,000 90,441,000
Working Capital Allowance (calculated below) 19,532,600 19,129,700
Rate Base 110,048,600 109,570,700
Regulated Rate of Return 7.02% 7.02%
Regulated Return on Capital ) 7,728,493 $ 7,694,931

The difference in closing NBV of $150,000 is made up of the following:
Removal of ineligible burden ($2,686,000)
Reduced depn due to extended

Useful lives 2,836,000
$ 150,000
WORKING CAPITAL ALLOWANCE FOR 2010
Distribution Expenses MIFRS CGAAP Difference
Distribution Expenses - Operation S 3,615,000 S 929,000 S 2,686,000
Distribution Expenses - Maintenance 1,655,000 1,655,000 S -
Billing and Collecting 2,070,000 2,070,000 $ -
Administrative and General Expenses 5,345,000 5,345,000 $ -
Less: Capital Taxes within 6105 124,667 124,667 S -
Total Eligible Distribution Expenses 12,560,333 9,874,333'5 2,686,000
Power Supply Expenses 117,657,000 117,657,000 S -
Total Working Capital Expenses $ 130,217,333 $ 127,531,333 $ 2,686,000
Working Capital Allowance rate of 15% S 19,532,600 S 19,129,700

The difference in Working capital is the additional expense of the burden costs that are no
longer eligible to be capitalized with the adoption of MIFRS.

c) Please reconcile the Fixed Assets Opening Balance 2010 net of contributions and
grants of $90,412,000 to Table 7 Appendix 2-B Fixed Assets Continuity Schedule
As at Dec 31, 2010 opening NBV of $90,470,272 ( $140,123,475 - $49,653,203)
filed on October 18, 2011 in response to Board Staff IR #7(a)

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

The correct Fixed Assets NBV Opening balance for 2010 MIFRS is $90,470,000. Guelph
Hydro inadvertently used the Fixed Assets NBV Closing balance from the CGAAP 2010 fixed
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asset continuity schedule instead of the Fixed Assets NBV Closing balance from the CGAAP
2009 fixed asset continuity schedule.

d) In it response to the Board staff interrogatory #7a, Guelph Hydro provided a
number of updates to its Fixed Asset continuity schedules for 2008 to 2012 years
on October 18, 2011. Please clarify if the Fixed Asset continuity schedules for
2010 to 2012 are prepared under CGAAP or MIFRS. If the updates are all related
to CGAAP, are there any updates to Fixed Asset continuity schedule for 2010 to
2012 under MIFRS? If so, please file the updates.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

All Fixed Asset continuity schedules filed to date for the years 2011 and 2012 are under
MIFRS. Guelph Hydro did prepare a lot of these schedules taking a full year of
depreciation in all years including the Test year 2012. In response to Energy Probe Q#8
Guelph Hydro prepared new Fixed Asset Continuity Schedules for 2011 and 2012 which
takes into consideration the half year for the additions in both 2011 and 2012, the revised

schedules are below.
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Cost d Accumulated Depreciation Al
CCA Opening Closing Net Book
Class | OEB Description Balance Additions Disposals| Closing Balance|| Opening Balance Additions Disposals Balance Value
N/A 1805 | Land 2,641,987 2,641,987 0 0 2,641,987
CEC 1806 | Land Rights 0] 0 0 0 0
1 1808 | Buildings and Fixtures 18,260,502 1,735,000 19,995,502 2,705,497 409,263 3,114,760 16,880,741
N/A 1810 | Leasehold Improvements 0 o] 0 0 0
1815 | Transformer Station Equipment - Normally Primary| 758,177 9,225,000 9,983,177 25,273 179,023 204,295 9,778,882
47 1820 | Distribution Station Equipment - Normally Primary 1,708,887 1,708,887 129,970 73,394 203,364 1,505,522
1825 | Storage Battery Equipment 0 0 0 0 0
47 1830 | Poles, Towers and Fixtures 22,276,501 1,322,234 23,598,735 8,001,755 494,271 8,496,027 15,102,708
47 1835 | Overhead Conductors and Devices 17,880,210 1,224,591 19,104,801 6,709,061 396,768 7,105,829 11,998,971
47 1840 | Underground Conduit 37,660,552 2,885,590 40,546,142 13,309,293 874,330 14,183,623 26,362,520
47 1845 | Underground Conductors and Devices 35,823,198 2,595,379 38,418,577 12,199,463 829,977 13,029,439 25,389,138
47 1850 | Line Transformers 18,187,753 1,033,848 19,221,601 7,194,113 389,435 7,583,548 11,638,053
47 1855 | Senices 7,183,493 269,265 7,452,758 2,593,145 165,175 2,758,320 4,694,438
47 1860 | Meters 6,634,663 609,000 14,725,108 1,537,947 277,567 3,125,651 11,599,457
1865 | Other Installations on Customer's Premises 0 0 0 o o
N/A 1905 | Land 0 0 0 0 0
CEC 1906 | Land Rights 0 0 0 0 0
1 1908 | Buildings and Fixtures 0 0 0 0 0
1910 | Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0 0
1915 | Office Furniture and Equipment 1,221,843 1,221,843 750,797 45,425 796,221 425,622
45 1920 | Computer Equipment - Hardware 2,502,577 420,000 3,549,349 1,737,566 320,335 2,057,900 1,491,448
1925 Computer Software 0 1,114,457 0 0 1,114,457
10 1930 | Transportation Equipment 2,881,072 450,000 3,331,072 1,349,158 316,417 1,665,575 1,665,497
1935 | Stores Equipment 96,338 96,338 96,338 96,338 0
8 1940 | Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment 992,103 60,000 1,103,006 608,968 69,980 678,947 424,058
1945 | Measurement and Testing Equipment 14,872 14,872 14,872 14,872 o]
1950 | Power Operated Equipment 0 0 0 o] o]
1955 | Communication Equipment 0 0 0 o] o]
50 1960 | Miscellaneous Equipment 2,332,949 50,000 2,439,448 2,249,423 74,094 2,323,517 115,931
1970 | Load Management Controls - Customer Premises 314,982 314,982 314,982 314,982 (0)
1975 | Load Management Controls - Utility Premises 0 o] 0 0 0
50 1980 | System Supenisory Equipment 526,929 361,093 888,022 175,777 141,495 317,272 570,749
1985 | Sentinel Lighting Rentals 6,158 6,158 0 0 6,158
1990 | Other Tangible Property 0 0 0 0 0
47 1995 | Contributions and Grants (35,235,111) (2,679,000) (37,914,111) (7,444,651) (914,706) (8,359,357) (29,554,754)
2005 | Property Under Capital Leases 0 o] 0 0 0
2070 | Other Utility Plant 771 771 424 51 476 295
Total before Work in Process / Re-allocation of amortization 144,671,404 19,562,000 0 173,563,480 54,259,170 4,142,293 0 59,711,601 113,851,879
95 2055 | Work in Process 40,117 40,117 0 40,117

Re-allocation of amortization (332,817)

Total after Work in Process 144,711,521 19,562,000 0 173,603,597 54,259,170 3,809,476 0 59,711,601 113,891,996
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e) Please provide explanation on how Guelph Hydro calculated the figure for
$91,197,000 for Fixed Assets Closing Balance 2010 net of contributions and grants
and reconcile this balance to the applicable Fixed Assets Continuity Schedules for
2010 under MIFRS.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

As noted in b) above Guelph Hydro needed to make a change to the Fixed Asset Closing

balance for 2010 in the Rate Base calculation as it inadvertently did not change the useful
life of contributed capital to the new extended life under MIFRS. The continuity schedule

that supports this new Closing balance of $90,562,000 is outlined below.
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As of December 31, 2010 REVISED MIFRS
Cost Accumulated Depreciation
CCA Opening Burden Closing Net Book
Class | OEB Description Balance Additions| Disposals| Adjust| Closing Balance|| Opening Balance Additions| Disposals Balance Value
N/A 1805 | Land 768,123 1,873,864 2,641,987 0| 0 2,641,987
CEC 1806 | Land Rights 0 0| 0| 0 0|
1 1808 | Buildings and Fixtures 18,191,632 68,870 18,260,502 2,296,732 391,913 2,688,645 15,571,856
N/A 1810 | Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0 0
1815 | Transformer Station Equipment - Normally Primary above 50 0 758,177 758,177, 0| 0 758,177
47 1820 | Distribution Station Equipment - Normally Primary below 50 1,697,266 11,621 1,708,887 73,007 137,807 210,814 1,498,073
1825 | Storage Battery Equipment 0 0 0 0 0]
47 1830 | Poles, Towers and Fixtures 20,579,581 1,696,920 (431,551) 21,844,950 6,976,469 525,559 7,502,028 14,342,922
47 1835 | Owverhead Conductors and Devices 17,035,390 844,820 (346,384) 17,533,826 5,886,145 421,825 6,307,970 11,225,856
47 1840 | Underground Conduit 34,914,467 2,746,085 (729,578) 36,930,974 11,549,527 821,547 12,371,075 24,559,899
47 1845 | Underground Conductors and Devices 33,460,819 2,362,380 (693,984) 35,129,214 10,528,968 779,871 11,308,839 23,820,375
47 1850 | Line Transformers 17,111,497 1,076,256 (352,342) 17,835,412 6,328,035 368,092 6,696,127 11,139,285
47 1855 | Senices 6,769,661 413,832 (139,162) 7,044,331 2,257,695 157,245 2,414,940 4,629,390
47 1860 | Meters 11,338,425 (4,703,762) 6,634,663 3,304,589 543,528 2,270,935 1,577,182 5,057,481
1865 | Other Installations on Customer's Premises 0 0 0 0 0
N/A 1905 | Land 0 0| 0 0 0
CEC 1906 | Land Rights 0 0| 0 0 0
1 1908 | Buildings and Fixtures 0 0 0 0 0
1910 | Leasehold Improvements 0 0| 0 0 0
8 1915 | Office Furniture and Equipment 1,165,296 56,547 1,221,843 658,628 51,942 710,570 511,273
45 1920 | Computer Equipment - Hardware 2,193,680 308,896 2,502,577 1,410,016 298,571 1,708,587 793,990
45.1 1925 | Computer Software 0 0| 0 0 0
10 1930 | Transportation Equipment 2,687,174 633,782 439,885 2,881,072 1,403,166 302,567 433,988 1,271,745 1,609,327
1935 | Stores Equipment 96,338 96,338 96,284 54 96,338 0)
8 1940 | Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment 940,008 52,094 992,103 535,192 74,751 609,942 382,160
1945 | Measurement and Testing Equipment 14,872 14,872 11,898 11,898 2,974
1950 | Power Operated Equipment 0 0| 0 0 0
1955 | Communication Equipment 0 0 0 0 0
1960 | Miscellaneous Equipment 2,327,700 5,249 2,332,949 2,118,596 214,297 2,332,893 55
1970 | Load Management Controls - Customer Premises 314,982 314,982 178,610 136,371 314,982 0
1975 | Load Management Controls - Utility Premises 0 0| 0 0 0
47 1980 | System Supenvisory Equipment 304,281 222,647 526,929 70,392 90,327 160,719 366,210
1985 | Sentinel Lighting Rentals 6,158 6,158 0 0 6,158
1990 | Other Tangible Property 0 0 0 0 0
47 1995 [ Contributions and Grants (31,794,646) (3,440,464) (35,235,110) (6,031,118) (848,000) (6,879,118)]  (28,355,992)
2005 | Property Under Capital Leases 0 o] 0 0 0
2070 | Other Utility Plant 771 771 373 51 424 347
Total before Work in Process / Re-allocation of amortization 140,123,475 4,987,814 439,885 | (2,693,000) 141,978,404 49,653,204 4,468,320 2,704,923 51,416,601 90,561,804
95 2055 | Work in Process 150,530 (110,413) 40,117 0 0 40,117
Re-allocation of amortization (377,763)
Total after Work in Process 140,274,005 4,877,401 439,885 | (2,693,000) 142,018,521 49,653,204 4,090,557 2,704,923 51,416,601 90,601,921
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29) Ref: Board staff IRR #77, table 3

Please confirm if Table 3 on page 13 of Part 2_Responses to Board Staff Interrogatories
Delivered on Oct 11, 2011 replaced Table 5 on pg 15 of the Appendix Board Staff IRR #3
filed on Sep 30, 2011

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

No, Table 3 on page 13 delivered on Oct 11, 2011 does not replace Table 5 on page 15 filed
on Sept 30, 2011. Table 3 of the Oct 11, 2011 delivery was in response specifically to
guestion #77 regarding changes to Guelph Hydro’s capitalization policy and its impact on the
revenue requirements. Whereas, Table 5 in the Sept 30, 2011 filing takes into consideration
all adjustments relating to the transition to MIFRS, not just the adjustments directly related to
the company’s new capitalization policy.
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Please provide the burden rates related to the capitalization of costs of self-constructed
assets for the prior and after transition to IFRS.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.
BURDEN RATES SUMMARY PRE/POST IFRS

Burden

Payroll

Operations

Payroll

Operations

Stores
Stores-Engineering
Engineering - O&M
Engineering - Capital
Engineering - Contracting
Vehicles - LC, IN, CS
Vehicles - MA, ME

Basis

Work Order Payroll
Work Order Payroll
Work Order Payroll
Work Order Payroll
Stores Issues
Stores Issues

Work Order Payroll
Work Order Payroll
Contracting

Work Order Payroll
Work Order Payroll

Applied to

Lines, Metering, Maintenance
Lines, Metering, Maintenance
Inspectors, Customer Service
Inspectors, Customer Service

0O&M Work Orders

Capital Work Orders

Lines, Inspectors, Customer Service
Maintenance, Metering

Pre-IFRS
65%
65%
30%
30%
15%
15%
25%
65%
18%
65%
35%

Post-IFRS
55%
55%
25%
25%

0%
0%
0%
15%
9%
65%
35%
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31) Ref: Board staff IRR #78

Guelph’s response confirmed that it has not recognized any assets retirement obligation.
Please confirm whether that includes any recognition of constructive obligation under IAS
37 from its current pool of owned assets. If not, please identify if Guelph has any
constructive obligation related to its assets.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro confirms that it does not have any constructive obligations related to its
assets.
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32) Ref: Board staff IRR #80

Please explain the difference between $1,414,000 and $848,000 as presented in note (4)
in note (1) of the Statement of Revenue and Expenses respectively, given both balances
refer to the amortization of deferred revenue on customer contribution and it is a
reclassification from amortization to deferred revenue.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

The $1,414,000 in Note 4 is part of the explanation for the difference between CGAAP
depreciation and MIFRS depreciation. This amount is the CGAAP amortization of the
contributed capital using the CGAAP useful lives of 25 years. Under MIFRS, this amount
has been reversed and thus is no longer part of the depreciation total as it requires a
reclassification to Other Revenue.

Under MIFRS the amortization of Contributed Capital is affected in two ways. First, the
amortization period has been increased from 25 years to 40 years as the assets of which
these contributions related to have an increased useful life of 40 years. Due to this
change in useful life, the new amortization for 2010 is $848,000. Second, this
amortization has now been reported as Other Revenue instead of an offset to
depreciation and therefore shows up as a reconciling difference as outlined in Note 1.
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Issue 12.1 Is Guelph Hydro’s Green Energy Act Plan, including the Smart Grid
component of the plan appropriate?

33) Ref: E 2/T4/S 6/Appendix D/p. 3, and E 2/T 4/S 6/Appendix D/Table 6/p. 14

In the first reference, it is indicated that in 2013, an estimated $ 500,000 is the net cost to
Guelph Hydro for connecting a 10 MW ground mounted solar photovoltaic project.

At Table 6 of the second reference, under Hanlon TS, it is indicated that a 10 MW FIT
Generation would be connected to Feeder M23.
a) Did the project proponent for the 10 MW obtain a contract from the OPA? If so,
what is the date the contract was signed.
Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Guelph Hydro does not believe that the 20MW project proponent has yet obtained a

contract from the OPA. Guelph Hydro included this project in the forecast based on
consultations with the proponent.

b) Did the noted project proponent apply for connection to Guelph Hydro? If so,
when is Guelph Hydro expected to complete its Connection Impact Assessment
(“CIA") for that project?
Guelph Hydro’s Response:
The project proponent has not yet applied for connection to Guelph Hydro.
c) Please confirm that the noted project would be connected as shown in the
second reference (at Feeder M23 supplied from Hanlon TS).
Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Until firm project details are known, Guelph Hydro cannot confirm if this project will be

connected to Hanlon TS or Arlen MTS.

d) Did Guelph Hydro issue an Offer to Connect to that project proponent? If so
when is the Connection Agreement expected to be completed?
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Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro has not issued an offer to connect to this project proponent.

e) Does the project size require that Guelph Hydro advise Hydro One and the
Independent Electricity System Operator (“IESQ”) of this project including its 10
MW capacity, intended connection point (the feeder designation), and the Hydro
One owned transformer station to which this feeder is connected?

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Yes. The size of this project would require Guelph Hydro to advise both Hydro One and
the IESO of the connection to Guelph Hydro’s distribution system.
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34) Ref: E 2/T4/S 6/Appendix D/p. 5 and Ref: E 2/T4/S 6/Appendix D/p. 16

In the first reference, Table 1 indicates capital investments for renewable generation
connection upgrades of $50,000 for each of the years 2014 and 2015.

In the second reference, Tables 7 and 8 under Mid-Size Generation [>500 kW, <10 MW]
show that there is one 3 MW project expected in service in 2014 and another project of
1.14 MW capacity expected in service in 2015.

a) Are the $50,000 capital investments in each of the two years in 2014 and 2015
triggered by the two projects noted in Reference 2; i.e., the 3 MW capacity project
expected in-service in 2014 and the 1.14 MW capacity project expected in-service
in 20157

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Yes. The $50,000 capital investments in each of the two years in 2014 and 2015 are
triggered by the two projects noted in Reference 2.

b) Please provide a description of the work to be carried out in 2014 and in 2015,
including for each case the split between material/ equipment and labour.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

As project specifics are not known at this time (nor at the time of creation of the GEA
Plan), Guelph Hydro included a high-level budgetary estimates for anticipated connection
upgrade costs that may be required in order to connect the two projects identified in 2014
and 2015, that would fall under either “renewable enabling improvements” or "expansion
costs”.
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35) Ref: E 2/T 4/S 6/Appendix D/pp. 15-16, and E 2/T 4/S 6(Appendix E)/p.3

In the first reference under section 6.2 on page 15, lines 14-18, it is indicated that at the
time of writing the plan, Guelph Hydro received requests for and completed over 80 pre-
FIT consultations with the following breakdown:

» Generation <= 250 kW (CAE): 90%

» Generation > 250 kW, <= 500 kW: 2%

» Generation > 500 kW, <= 10 MW: 8%

In the first reference under section 6.2, in Table 7, page 16, the number of anticipated
renewable generation connections is listed for the years 2011 to 2015, broken down into
four category sizes, and the corresponding MW for each of the four categories is listed in
Table 8.

In the second reference, page 3, the OPA states in part that:
“Guelph Hydro did not provide specific information on the FIT and microFit
projects received to date.....To date, the OPA has received 23 capacity
allocation exempt FIT applications and 148 microFIT applications in Guelph
Hydro’s system for a total of 5.45 MW of FIT applications and 1.041 MW of
microFIT applications
At this time, 1 capacity allocation exempt FIT contract has expired (leaving a
total of 5.25 MW of FIT applications), 30 microFIT applications have already
been connected and 9 microFIT applications have been terminated (leaving a
total of 0.824 MW of microFIT applications to be connected.”

a) Did all 80 completed pre-Fit consultations identified on page 15 of the first
reference, have signed contracts from the OPA? If no, please indicate the number
of projects that had signed OPA contracts under each of the three categories of
generation sizes.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

At the time of the creation of Guelph Hydro’'s GEA Plan, Guelph Hydro did not have
sufficient information confirming how many projects had signed contracts with the OPA.

At this point in time Guelph Hydro can confirm that the following numbers of projects have
signed OPA contracts:

e Generation <= 250 kW (CAE): 29 Projects
e Generation > 250 kW, <= 500 kW: 0 Projects
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e Generation > 500 kW, <= 10 MW: 0 Projects

b) Please indicate the anticipated in-service year for these 80 projects.
Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro Response:
Of the 29 projects identified in 35 (a) with signed OPA contracts, Guelph Hydro estimates
the anticipated in-service dates for these projects as follows:

e 2 Projects connected in 2010
e 4 Projects estimated to be connected by the end of 2011
e 23 Projects estimated to be connected in 2012

c) Please describe in detail the forecast methodology used in producing the numbers
in Tables 7 and 8 shown on page 16 of the first reference, and how those numbers
reconcile with the project numbers and MW shown in reference 2, and quoted
above for convenience.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

The number and size of anticipated renewable generation connections forecasted in
Tables 7 and 8 was based on Guelph Hydro’s knowledge of the level of interest in the
FIT/microFIT programs, Pre-FIT Consultations completed to date, project applications
received to date, as well as the knowledge that of the City of Guelph’s Community Energy
Initiative (CEI) which encourages the implementation of renewal energy projects within
the City of Guelph. The forecast was prepared using the assumption that program
changes over time were unknown. Guelph Hydro notes that Tables 7 and 8 are estimates
of the number and size of completed connections, and do not include the number of
applications received, expired, or terminated as summarized by the OPA. It is difficult to
reconcile Tables 7 and 8 with the OPA figures without better knowledge of the OPA
details including size and timeframes of the applications being referenced. Guelph Hydro
notes that to date, 61 microFIT projects and 2 FIT projects have been connected for a
total of 0.728 MW.
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36) Ref: Board staff IRR #84 and Appendix Guelph_IRR_#85 GEA Rate Adder
calculation

In Board staff IRR Guelph Hydro stated that “if the GEA Plan is approved as presented,
Guelph Hydro will seek recovery of 100% of the OM&A costs to the 2012 test year
through this filing, and proposes to recover the capital expenditures in the next rate
rebasing”.

a) Please clarify if Guelph Hydro is seeking to include the OM&A in the amount of
$721,000 in the revenue requirement calculation for the 2012 test year or if the
statement above relates to the calculation of the GEA Rate Adder provided in
Appendix_Guelph_IRR_#85 GEA Rate Adder calculation.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro has corrected the GEA Rate Adder calculation Model (please see the
response to TCQs #38 and #39. After Guelph Hydro has got a better understanding of the
model and the regulation related the GEA Plan (e.g. O.Reg.330/09), Guelph Hydro is
seeking to recover the OM&A in the amount of $721,000 through the GEA funding Rate
Adder calculation (please see the response to TCQ #39 a).

b) Please explain the rationale for Guelph Hydro seeking to recovery of OM&A costs
for the test year while it is proposing to defer the recovery of capital expendiure to
the next rebasing application.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro misunderstood the regulatory mechanism of recovery GEA plan
expenditures (see the response to TCQ #39a).
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37) Ref: Board staff IRR #85 and Appendix Guelph_IRR_#85 GEA Rate Adder
calculation

In the first reference Guelph Hydro stated that “Guelph has categorized the estimated
anticipated $600,000 in FIT and microFIT capital connection investments as 100%
Renewable Enabling Improvement (“REI") projects, which results in a direct benefit
calculation as per the following table:

. Direct
Average Net Fiked Assets . 2012 2013 2014 2015
Benefit %
Renewable Connections Capital -
. . we |s - |8 - s -l -
pansions
Renewable Connections Capital - 6% § . & 245000 | ¢ s0ss00|$ 532,500
Renewable Enabling Improvements
Feeder Automation Projects 100% $ 5 - |3 - |5 -
$ $ 245000 |5 504,500 | § 532,500
Direct Benefit ] - 5 14,700 | § 30,270 | § 31,950
Weighted Average Direct Benefit % 0.00% 0.00% 6.00% 6.00%

Please state what percentage and $ amount of this capital investment is attributed to the
connection of mircoFIT projects.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Of the $600,000 in FIT and microFIT capital connection investment, Guelph Hydro

estimates that 100% or $600,000 of capital connection investment is attributed to projects
larger than 10kW, or 0% / $0 is attributed to the connection of microFIT projects.
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38) Ref: IRR 85, filed on September 30, 2011/page 140, Appendix
Guelph_IRR_#85_ GEA Rate Adder calculation

In the second reference, the spread sheet titled “Incremental Revenue Requirement
Calculation” is basing the calculations on Net Fixed Assets as follows:

YEAR NFA
2012 $245,000
2013 $504,500
2014 $532,000

In the second reference, the spread sheet titled “Weighted Average Direct Benefits” the
Net Fixed Assets are shown as follows:

YEAR NFA
2013 $245,000
2014 $504,500
2015 $532,000

a) Please prepare a revised evaluation of the spread sheet titled “Incremental Revenue
Requirement Calculation” of the second reference (Appendix A) to reflect the correct
amounts of the Net Fixed Assets.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro has revised the tab titled “Incremental revenue Requirement Calculation to
reflect the correct amounts of the Net Fixed Assets:

YEAR NFA
2013 $245,000
2014 $504,500
2015 $532,000
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|incremental Revenue Requirement Calculation |

| 2011 | 2012 | 2013 | 2014 | 2015 |
Net Fixed Assets $ - $ - $ 245,000 $504,500 $532,500
OM&A $ 477,000 $721,000 $ 391,000 $ 341,000 $ 306,000
WCA 13.5% $ 64,395 135% _$ 97,335 13.5% $ 52,785 13.5% $ 46,035 13.5% $ 41,310
Rate Base $ 64,395 $ 97,335 $ 297,785 $550,535 $573,810
Deemed ST Debt 4% $ 2,576 4% $ 3,893 4% $ 11,911 4% $ 22,021 4% $ 22,952
Deemed LT Debt 56% $ 36,061 56% $ 54,508 56% $ 166,760 56% $308,300 56% $321,334
Deemed Equity 40% $ 25,758 40% $ 38,934 40% $ 119,114 40% $220,214 40% $229,524
ST Interest 2.46% $ 63 246% $ 96 2.46% $ 293 2.46% $ 542 2.46% $ 565
LT Interest 5.26% $ 1,898 526% $ 2,869 5.26% $ 8,778 5.26% $ 16,229 5.26% $ 16,915
ROE 9.58% $ 2,468 958% $ 3,730 9.58% $ 11,411 9.58% $ 21,097 9.58% $ 21,988

$ 4,429 $ 6,695 $ 20,482 $ 37,867 $ 39,468

OM&A $ 477,000 $721,000 $ 391,000 $341,000 $306,000
Amortization $ - $ 10,000 $ 21,000 $ 25 $ -
Grossed-up PILs $ 972 -$ 2,232 -$ 2,734 $ 7,338 $ -
Revenue Requirement $ 482,401 $735,463 $ 429,748 $386,230 $345,468
Direct Benefit | 2011 | 2012 2013 | 2014 | 2015 |
OM&A $ 477,000 $721,000 |2011 +2012| $ 391,000 $341,000 $306,000
Capital $ 5,401 $ 14,463 $ 38,748 $ 45,230 $ 39,468
Direct Benefit % on capital 0.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Direct Benefit on capital $ - $ 868 $ 2,325 $ 2,714 $ 2,368
Total Direct Benefit $ 477,000 $721,868 | $1,198,868 | $ 393,325 $343,714 $308,368
Total # of Customers (excl connections) 52,253 52,253 52,253 52,253 52,253 52,253
GEA Rate Adder $ 0.7607 $ 1.1512|$ 19120|$ 0.6273 $ 0.5482 $ 0.4918
Provincial Rate Protection $ 5,401 $ 13595|$% 18,996 |$ 36,423 $ 42,516 $ 37,100
Monthly Adder Amount Paid by IESO $ 450 $ 1,133|$ 1,583.02|$ 3,035 $ 3,543 $ 3,092
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39) Ref: IRR #84 and 85 and Appendix Guelph_IRR_#85 GEA Rate Adder
calculation

a) Following updates to the Incremental Revenue Requirement spread sheet in the
GEA Rate Adder calculation, please re-state the GEA rate adder requested for the
2012 test year, the 2013 rate year, the 2014 rate year and the 2015 rate year.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

The proposed GEA rate adders are:

2012 (Note 1) 2013 2014 2015
GEARate Adder [$  1.9120 | $ 0.6273[$ 05482 |$ 0.4918

Note (1): 2021 GEA Rate Adder includes 2011 and 2012 recovery.

b) Please clarify if this funding adder(s) is/are incremental to a Smart Grid Rate Adder,
which Guelph Hydro stated it might apply for at a later date.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Guelph Hydro confirms that the GEA funding adders proposed in the response to IR #39a

are incremental to a Smart Grid Rate Adder which Guelph Hydro may apply for at a later
date.
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40) Ref: IRR 85, filed on September 30, 2011/page 140, Framework for
Determining the Direct Benefits Accruing to Customers of a Distributor
under Ontario Regulation 330/09, June 10, 2010[EB-2009-0349]/page 3,
IRR 94 filed on September 30, 2011

The Direct Benefit calculation shown on page 140 of the first reference, is based on 6% of
the capital for each of the years 2013, 2014, and 2015, and does not include any up-front
OMA costs necessary for the purpose of “enabling the connection of a qualifying
generation facility”.

At the second reference on page 3 the bullet titled “Eligible investment” costs, it states in

part that:
“Eligible investment” costs, as set out in O. Reg. 330/09 and section 79.1 (5) of
the Act, are not limited to only the initial capital investment costs but also
includes the up-front OM&A costs necessary for the purpose of “enabling the
connection of a qualifying generation facility”. However, given that section 79.1
focuses solely on the initial investment, ongoing OM&A costs that are incurred by
the distributor after the investment has been made will not be eligible for
provincial recovery.

At the third reference, Guelph’s response to IRR 94 provided percentage of time spent by
each of the two new Resources (hired staff) in 2012 on the various activities including the
“Renewable Generator Connection Upgrades”.

a) Please prepare a revised evaluation of the direct benefits on page 140 of the first
reference based on the direction outlined in the second reference where the
upfront OM&A is incorporated for each qualifying generation facility.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro has revised the evaluation of the direct benefits by including the two new
staff resources to be hired in 2012 at the percentages of time spent estimated at the third
reference, Guelph Hydro’s response to IRR 94. The direct benefits revised calculation
follows:
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Average Net Fixed Assets Direct Benefit % 2012 2013 2014 2015
Renewable Connections Capital - Expansions 17% $ - $ - $ - $ -
Renewable Connections Capital - Renewable
Enabling Improvements 6% $ - $ 245,000|$ 504,500 % 532,500
Feeder Automation Projects 100% $ - $ - $ - $ -
OM&A 6% $ 65,250 | $ 82,650 | $ 91,350 | $ 104,400

$ 65,250 | $ 327,650 [ $ 595,850 | $ 636,900
Direct Benefit $ 3915[$% 19659 | $ 35,751 | $ 38,214
Weighted Average Direct Benefit % 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
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41) Ref. Board staff IRR 86a)/pp.25 -28, IRR87a)/p.30, Exh. 2/Tab 4/Sch. 6
(Appendix D)/p.20 & p.21(Table), and Filing Requirements: Distribution
System Plans — Filing Under Deemed Conditions of Licence, March 25,
2010

In the first reference, in response to question a), Guelph Hydro indicated that the
minimum functionality the IHD must have is displaying basic energy consumption and
pricing information, and Guelph Hydro’s intention is to take advantage of the existing
smart meter infrastructure to expand the use of the IHD beyond the basic customer
energy consumption, and stated in part that:

Our intentions are to take advantage of the existing smart meter infrastructure,
including LDC to meter communications channel, along with the Zigbee chip
included in all of our smart meters, to expand the use of the IHD beyond the
basic customer energy consumption and pricing information required for the
CDM initiative as described above. We view this element of the program to be
related to smart grid development and not strictly a CDM activity, although we
acknowledge that the IHD messaging would be used to support CDM programs,
whether electric or water.

Guelph Hydro in the first reference also stated in part that:

As previously mentioned, Guelph Hydro has invested in smart meters containing
a ZigBee chip. ZigBee is a two-way communications protocol similar to
Bluetooth. A variety of devices will be able to use the ZigBee protocol in the
home, potentially including smart appliances, electric vehicle charging systems,
lighting controls, heating and cooling systems and sources of renewable energy.
Guelph Hydro would like to leverage the ZigBee chip investment to enable
customers to use their in-home display for a variety of different purposes
including activities that are more "smart grid" related that we expect would not be
funded through the OPA CDM programs:

In the third reference, the Filing Requirements on page 18 states in part that:
“At the present time, smart grid development activities and expenditures should
be limited to smart grid demonstration projects, smart grid studies or planning
exercises and smart grid education and training.”

Guelph Hydro has indicated that the IHD falls within the Demand Response program
schedule of the OPA (2011-2014). Some DR activities fall clearly within demand
management while others display more Smart Grid/Infrastructure attributes (IRR 86a).
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Please file a copy of the OPA program schedule for the Demand Response (“DR”)
program that includes the use of an IHD.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Attached please find the schedule for the DR program: “Initiative Schedule B-3
(Residential and Small Commercial Demand Response Initiative 2011-2014), supplied as
Appendix Guelph_BoardStaff TCQ_#41 a DR_Program.

b)

To clarify the boundary between CDM and Smart Grid activities please point to
and file relevant documentation (OPA or other) that helps define DR/CDM vs.
DR/Smart Grid.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro is unaware of relevant documentation that clearly defines the DR/CDM vs.
DR/Smart Grid, but provides the following observations:

1)
2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

LDCs including Guelph Hydro have aggressive conservation targets to achieve over
the 2011-2014 period,;

The majority, or all, of the conservation savings are expected to be achieved through
delivery of the province-wide OPA (Tier 1) conservation programs;

Any other proposed conservation programs that are potentially “duplicative” of the
OPA Tier 1 programs require dialogue with the OPA and the OEB and approvals
prior to commitment to the program;

The OPA has recently published the updated Residential Demand Response (RDR)
program (previously known as “peaksaver™"), which includes the supply and
installation of an In-Home Display (IHD) as part of program delivery — this is in lieu of
a $25 incentive previously provided to the customer enrolling in the program;

The IHD is supplementary to the primary focus of the RDR program, which
encourages enrollment of central air conditioning units, electric hot water heaters,
and pool pumps;

It is unclear whether energy/demand savings will be attributed to the installation of
an IHD towards an LDC’s conservation target — anecdotally Guelph Hydro has heard
that around 3% of a household’s energy consumption savings may be attributed to
these devices by virtue of the installation of the device, but at this time Guelph Hydro
has no knowledge as to whether this, or any, level of energy savings has been
statistically verified, or will even be acknowledged as part of the CDM program
delivery;
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The IHD can leverage the Zigbee communications chip embedded within Guelph
Hydro Smart Meters, to provide near real-time energy consumption information
without the need for other external communications tool;

Guelph Hydro’s smart metering communications infrastructure investment may be
further leveraged as a mechanism to provide messaging to the customer, with little
incremental communications infrastructure investment, as Guelph Hydro already has
a requirement for highly reliable daily smart metering transmissions (greater than
98%);

The Smart Metering and related communications infrastructure elements of this
configuration are clearly Smart Grid related, and conceived and installed per Ontario
regulation before the terminology “SmartGrid” became more prevalent;

10)The IHD on its own does not drive the DR activity required of the OPA CDM

programs;

11)The IHD may be acting as a bridge between the Smart Grid and CDM worlds if there

is a CDM contribution / allocation by virtue of the installation of the IHD. If this is the
case, then all LDCs, including Guelph Hydro, will need to ensure that the installation
of any IHD, whether through an OPA Tierl province-wide program, a custom Tier2
or Tier 3 program, or a proposed GEA Smart Grid plan does result in proper
allocation of CDM results towards the aggressive 2011-2014 CDM targets, otherwise
the initiative would not be supported by the LDCs, as it does not assist in achieving
the LDC’s conservation goals;

12)Guelph Hydro notes that other forms of DR for business, commercial and industrial

customers are covered by other OPA CDM program schedules, which is clearly in
the realm of CDM,;

13)Guelph Hydro notes that there are many definitions of “SmartGrid”, and all

definitions are not aligned. Guelph Hydro also notes that many LDCs have been
undertaking activities and implementing technologies for many years on the
distribution system (ie Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition System, Outage
Management System, Distribution Automation, etc.) that in today’s environment may
be categorized as “SmartGrid”, but is simply an extension or evolution of activities
that have been occurring for many years. Guelph Hydro also notes that customers
have the potential to implement elements of “SmartGrid” on their own through the
installation of Home Automation, timers, and other more sophisticated management
and control devices, so that the delineation of CDM and SmartGrid is not necessarily
a clear one.
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c) Please expand on the above and indicate whether the OPA program schedule for
DR makes provisions for the use of devices with attributes and functionalities similar
to Guelph’s longer term plans for in-home display.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

As noted in a previous interrogatory response, at this time the OPA program explicitly
includes the supply and installation of a demand response device (ie switch to control
central air conditioning or pool pump) as well as an In-home Display to provide the
customer electricity consumption information and rate information as part of the CDM
program. The IHD does not provide DR functionality. Although the OPA has indicated
that it will consider funding a Demand Response Thermostat (DRT) with display capability
as being eligible in the DR program as both the DR device and IHD, Guelph Hydro’s
focus for the proposed Messaging project is designed around a stand-alone IHD without
DR capability. In either scenario, the OPA CDM program clearly does not support the
concept of messaging to the home as proposed in Guelph Hydro’s GEA Plan.

d) Focusing your answers on the IHD functionality (ies), please outline what Guelph
views as:
e Strictly CDM
e Strictly Smart Grid
e Potentially Smart Grid

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

The definition of CDM for an LDC with mandated conservation targets would be driven
around any activity funded by the OPA or customer rate base that results in conservation,
electricity efficiency improvements or demand response that will be attributed to the
LDC's share of the province-wide conservation targets. This could mean any number of
potential programs, including the implementation of so-called “SmartGrid” technologies
that meet the requirements for CDM attribution as outlined by the regulating authority of
the day. These requirements may change as program definitions are modified over time,
as new elements are added and others are removed (for example, the introduction of
IHDs in the new RDR program). This may be best illustrated in examples as outlined
below:

Examples of Potential IHD Messaging Functionality “CDM” vs "SmartGrid”
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Local community messaging (ie water conservation) SmartGrid
LDC billing reminders and notifications (ie delinquency) SmartGrid
CDM program promotion and messaging CDM

CDM as this is funded by the

Display basic electricity consumption OPA towards LDC CDM targets

SmartGrid, but could potentially

Display basic Electric Vehicle charging station become a CDM activity should

information customers be incented to

discharge EV batteries into the
grid at system peak

e) When does Guelph plan to expand the capabilities beyond basic energy
consumption and pricing information display? (yr 3, yr 4, yr 5 of the GEA Plan?)

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro’s high level project plans for rolling out the IHD and messaging are as
follows:

1. Survey of Guelph residents / potential IHD users to better understand how they
would use the display to ensure the appropriate technology is deployed within the
constraints of the OPA CDM IHD funding;

2. Procurement of IHDs, selection of OPA RDR service provider;

3. Explore IHD — Smart Meter pairing requirements and security issues, and develop
procedures for field installation, commissioning, troubleshooting, and Customer
Information System integration, as well as developing internal protocols for regular
pricing updates to the IHD;

4. Implementation of IHD back-office hardware and software solution;

5. Testing with new back-office system to understand messaging communications
requirements and limitations, including any potential impact on smart metering
communications system;

6. Developing protocols for basic messaging beyond consumption/pricing;

Implement basic messaging for LDC and potentially City of Guelph use;
8. Work with software developer to design and develop IHD custom messaging
application(s);

~
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Guelph Hydro will complete Items 1-3 as quickly as possible to ensure early roll-out of the
RDR CDM program. We expect the hardware/software implementation (Item 4) in Q1-Q2
2012, ideally with the ability to complete items 5, 6 and 7 later in 2012. Custom
application development and roll-out would likely not occur until 2013 at the earliest.

f) When does Guelph plan to expand the project beyond those customers participating
in the OPA Demand Response program? (yr 3, yr 4, yr 5 of the GEA Plan?)

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

As noted in previous interrogatory response OEB #86g, Guelph Hydro proposes to
expand the project to beyond those customers participating in the OPA Demand
Response program after discussions have taken place with the OPA and OEB to
understand the implications of the wider roll-out of IHDs that are not delivered through the
OPA Tier 1 CDM program. Should there be an energy/demand reduction attributed
directly to IHD’s, we cannot afford to not have this contribution be reflected towards
Guelph Hydro’s CDM targets. We also need to have an understanding of how IHDs can
be funded outside of the OPA Tier 1 RDR CDM program.
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42) Ref: IRR 86a)/pp.25 -27, IRR87a)/p.30, and Exh. 2/Tab 4/Sch. 6 (Appendix
D)/p.20 & p.21(Table)

For the basic IHD minimum functionality of displaying basic energy consumption and
pricing information, please indicate whether or not this can be accomplished without the
installation of the back-office support installation that is estimated to cost $479,000 in
2011 as shown in the second reference.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

This is to confirm that the basic IHD minimum functionality can be accomplished without
the installation of the additional back-office hardware and software. The existing smart
metering AMI system has the ability to manage the pairing of smart meters and the IHD
using a manual process, which Guelph Hydro believes will be functional for managing a
small number of devices. For larger volumes of devices (IHDs), Guelph Hydro believes a
system with better automation and device management tools will be required. The
existing AMI has limited messaging capability and is not capable of delivering the IHD
Messaging project as described in Guelph Hydro’'s GEA Plan.

a) Does the IHD system need to be integrated to interface with Guelph AMI in order
to yield the desirable results (i.e., Energy consumption and pricing info. Display)
that the CDM program schedule recognizes?

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

It is unclear which IHD system is being referred to in the question. As noted in the
response above, the basic OPA CDM energy and price information can be accomplished
without the additional back-office hardware and software. However, the IHD Messaging
project requires a separate hardware and software system in addition to the smart meter
AMI system. The additional IHD Messaging system must be interfaced to the existing
smart metering AMI to access the smart meter database and wireless field
communications network.

b) If the answer is no, can additional subsequent upgrades be done to (fully take
advantage of all of the IHD functionalities) allow interface with Guelph’s AMI? If
feasible, what are the costs of upgrades? Would these costs of upgrade far
outweigh those of immediate installation?

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
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As noted in the response to 42a, the smart metering AMI and IHD Messaging system are

two separate systems. There is no upgrade path of Guelph’s AMI that incorporates the
additional functionality.

c) Based on above answers, if applicable, please revise CAPEX at reference 2.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Not applicable, refer to response 42b.
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43) Ref: Board staff IRR 86a)/pp.25 -27, Board staff IRR87a)/p.30, Exh. 2/Tab 4/Sch.
6 (Appendix D)/p.20 & p.21(Table), and Filing Requirements: Distribution
System Plans — Filing Under Deemed Conditions of Licence, March 25,
2010

a) Using past residential Guelph pilots as a guide, please provide a range of
residential customers involved in each pilot.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

It is unclear what past residential Guelph pilots are being referred to in this question. If
this question is related to OPA CDM program delivery, these are not pilot projects, and
the entire Guelph Hydro customer base is included in the appropriate target market. For
example, in a residential program, the entire Guelph and Rockwood residential customer
base of over 46,000 customers are targeted.

b) To help clarify between the “planned” roll-out of IHDs vs. the wider roll-out, does
the OPA presently cap the number of participants in market transformation
programs such as the IHD?

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

To clarify, there is no “planned rollout” of IHDs as a part of the delivery of OPA CDM
programs. Delivery of conservation programs by Guelph Hydro to Guelph Hydro
customers, and in fact to all customers of LDCs in Ontario is a marketing and promotion
exercise, funded by the OPA, to encourage customers to enroll and participate in relevant
CDM programs. Guelph Hydro has no mechanism to enforce the mandatory installation
of CDM measures or IHDs. Guelph Hydro’s experience in enrolling residential customers
in the previous demand response program over the period 2007-2010 has resulted in
close to 1,300 customer enrollments, or about 3% of the residential customer base.
Guelph Hydro notes that this level of program uptake is comparable to other LDCs in the
region. Guelph Hydro confirms that to date Guelph Hydro has not experienced an OPA
cap on the number of market participants on a CDM program. Guelph Hydro also notes
that a different delivery mechanism / funding model would be required to achieve a higher
IHD penetration than achieved through the CDM delivery mechanism.
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c) From the evidence one presumes that the current roll-out will be delivered through
the OPA CDM program, what percentage of the residential customer base is
involved in this roll-out? Is the remainder percentage presumably in this wider roll-

out?

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Please refer to responses to 43b, 41e and 41f for more details.
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44) Ref: Board staff IRR 86a),pp.25 -27, Board staff IRR87a), p.30,

In the third reference, Guelph lists a number of possible education and messaging
opportunities, which appear to include messaging related to energy consumption and
pricing, conservation messaging, and other utility-related information (i.e. safety,
maintenance, power outage). In addition, Guelph indicates that possible education and
messaging opportunities include, among others:
o0 Municipal water conservation messaging and program notification;
o Municipal Emergency Services messaging and notification (ie. “Amber
Alert”, Smog Day warnings, etc); and
o  Other Community messaging (Earth Hour, Snow Days — school closures,
road work, etc).

a) Please explain whether the IHD will be used by third parties? Please list the
parties.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

It is Guelph Hydro’s intent to make the IHD messaging system available for legitimate
community use with a not-for-profit model, in order to ensure that Guelph Hydro’s brand is
not damaged with experiences similar to some door to door energy retailers. Over time
as the system is expanded and proven to be reliable, the system may be made
accessible to third parties. Third parties originally contemplated for this project include
the following:

e City of Guelph — Emergency Services;

e City of Guelph — Municipal Services — Waste & Environment;

e City of Guelph — Waterworks Department;

e City of Guelph — Recreation & Culture;

e Upper Grand District School Board;

e Wellington Catholic District School Board

b) If the answer is yes, at what point in the five year plan will these additional entities
make use of the IHD?

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Please refer to response to 41e and 41f for more detalil.
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c) Whatis the useful life of the IHD?
Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Guelph Hydro has no direct experience with IHD lifespan, but estimates it may be in the 5
year to 10year timeframe, as most IHDs researched to date do offer remote firmware
upgrades. Guelph Hydro anticipates that the IHD will last longer than most consumer
electronics 3 year lifespan, but not likely as long as the expected 15 year lifespan of the
smart meter.

d) If applicable, will Guelph charge other parties for the use of the IHD infrastructure
in order to provide notification and messaging?

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

At this time Guelph Hydro has conceived of this project as a not for profit community
based tool, in order to protect Guelph Hydro’s brand. Over time as the system is
expanded and can be made available to other agencies, there may be a desire to more
closely reviewing the system’s operating and maintenance costs with a view to some cost
recovery from the agencies using the system.
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45) Ref. Board staff IRR #90, Board staff IRR #91, Exh. 2/Tab 4/Sch. 6 (Appendix
D)/pp.22 — 24, and Filing Requirements: Distribution System Plans —
Filing Under Deemed Conditions of Licence, March 25, 2010, p. 19

In the fourth reference, on page 19 the Filing Requirements lists a series of six
information requirements for a Smart Grit demonstration project., for example,
e a discussion of the technology to be anticipated benefits from a successful
application of the technology.

The Filing Requirements do not mention “pilot projects” as expenses eligible for inclusion
in the Smart Grid deferral accounts. While the evidence in reference 3 describes the
electric vehicle project as a “Pilot” project, in reference 1 the IRR indicates that Guelph
considers the project to be a demonstration project.

While the evidence and the IR provide much interesting information (e.g. a review of other
demonstration projects), there is no systematic discussion of how the project meets the
six requirements. For example it is not clear what “technology” is the subject of the
demonstration. The evidence (reference 3) lists a number of items: electric vehicles,
charging stations, home charging units, “business models”, and Zigbee chip functionality.
In addition IRR 91 (reference 2) indicates that:

“the purpose in conducting the EV pilot project is to educate residents...”

a) Please provide a direct response to each of six information requirements listed in
the Filing Requirements.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.

b) Please explain how Guelph interprets the Filing Requirements as identifying the
education of residents as an eligible Smart Grid expense.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.
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46) Ref. Board staff IRR 93, Exh. 2/Tab 4/Sch. 6 (Appendix D)/pp.28 — 31, and Filing
Requirements: Distribution System Plans — Filing Under Deemed
Conditions of Licence, March 25, 2010

In the first reference Board staff IRR 93a), Guelph indicates that the lessons to be learned
from the Smart Home Demonstration Project are all related to the responses of the
community and consumers to various smart grid technologies, including EVs. In that
same first reference Board staff IRR 93f), Guelph Hydro equates public education on
electrical safety with public education on in-home smart grid technology and goes on to
indicate that the project will assist in building a “culture of conservation”.

In the third reference, the Filing Requirements state in part that the following information
is required:
a description of the formal evaluation that will be performed to assess the value
of the projects.

a) Please provide a description of the formal evaluation that Guelph will perform in
relation to the lessons to be drawn from the project.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.

b) Please indicate how the lessons from this project are expected to differ from those
of the EV pilot with respect to assessing “how much interest there is in electric
vehicle charging systems”.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:
Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.

c) Please indicate how this project relates to Guelph’s CDM activities with respect to
the “culture of conservation” and especially with regard to potential duplication of
effort.

Guelph Hydro’s Response:

Response to be provided before the Settlement Conference.
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- GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars)

2001 2000
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,620 $ 19,014
Accounts receivable (Note 3) 6,746 7,153
Accounts receivable - unbilled revenue 8,375 7,810
Income tax receivable 205 -
Inventory 1,427 1,511
Due from related parties (Note 7) 199 92
Other 277 258
34,849 35,838
FIXED ASSETS (Note 4) 72,370 70,162
DEFERRED CHARGES 333 440
$107,552 $ 106,440
LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accured liabilities $ 11,571 $ 14,830
Deferred credits - accounts receivable 1,474 975
Customer deposits - current portion 596 482
Debentures - current portion (Note 5) 646 590
14,287 16,877
LONG-TERM DEBT
Debenture debt outstanding (Note 5) 4,475 5,094
Notes payable (Notes 1 and 8) 36,642 36,642
41,117 41,736
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Employee future benefits (Note 9) 5,310 4,884
Customer deposits - long-term portion 824 825
6,134 5,709
61,538 64,322
CONTINGENCY (Note 14)
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital (Note 1 and Note 13) 42,326 42,326
Retained Earnings (Deficit) 3,688 (209)
46,014 42,117
$107,552 $ 106,440
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- GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Statement of Income and Retained Earnings

Year Ended December 31, 2001

(With Comparative Figures for the Two Months Ended December 31, 2000)
(in thousands of dollars)

2001 2000
(2 months)
SERVICE REVENUE
Residential $ 29,400 $ 4,935
General 66,399 11,350
Large user 14,557 2,205
Street lighting 606 94
110,962 18,583
COST OF POWER 96,524 17,330
GROSS MARGIN ON SERVICE REVENUE 14,438 1,253
OTHER OPERATING REVENUE (Note 17) 2,280 410
NET OPERATING REVENUE 16,718 1,664
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM EXPENSE
Operations 911 139
Maintenance 1,315 197
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE
General administrative 2,415 322
Billing and collecting 1,240 151
Information systems 1,115 158
Community relations 41 10
DEPRECIATION 4,446 755
TOTAL EXPENSES 11,483 1,731
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE FINANCIAL EXPENSE 5,235 (67)
FINANCIAL EXPENSE
Interest on notes payable 738 -
Interest on debentures 489 85
Other 32 57
TOTAL FINANCIAL EXPENSES 1,259 142
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES 3,976 (209)
INCOME TAXES 80 -
NET INCOME (LOSS) 3,897 (209)
(DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF PERIOD (209) -
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT), END OF PERIOD $ 3,688 $ (209
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- GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2001

(With Comparative Figures for the Two Months Ended December 31, 2000)
(in thousands of dollars)

2001 2000
(2 months)
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss) $ 3,897 $ (209
Add charges to operations not requiring
a current cash payment
Depreciation 4,820 814
Amortization 119 -
Difference between employee future benefits expense and 426 -
amount funded
Gain on disposal of fixed assets (19) (10)
9,243 595
Net change in non-cash working capital
balances related to operations (Note 12) (2,574) 562
Net change in deferred charges and other
deferred liabilities (13) 100
6,656 1,257
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to fixed assets (7,506) (858)
Net proceeds on disposal of fixed assets 19 10
(7,487) (848)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash and cash equivalents transferred in on startup - 19,142
Debenture principal repaid (563) (536)
(563) 18,606
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,394) 19,014

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 19,014 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD $ 17,620 § 19,014

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOWS
Interest paid $ 1,266 $ 275
Payment for income taxes $ 360 $ -
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- GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars)

1. INCORPORATION AND REORGANIZATION

On October 31, 2000 Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc. (the Company) was incorporated
under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario).

The Company continues the Commission’s business of distributing electricity in Guelph.

Under a City of Guelph by-law, dated October 25, 2000, the former Board of Light and Heat
Commissioners of The City of Guelph (the Commission) and the City of Guelph transferred
the assets, liabilities and employees associated with the distribution of electricity at book
value effective November 1, 2000.

Certain regulations of section 93 of the Electricity Act 1998 (Ontario), if enacted, will permit
the assets transferred to be adjusted to reflect fair market value. It is anticipated that this
adjustment will take place at either the date of the transfer of assets (November 1, 2000) or
the date of market opening. The adjustment will result in the issuance of further debt and
equity as consideration at the ratio stipulated in the transfer by-law.

The incorporation and subsequent reorganization was required by provisions of Bill 35, The
Energy Competition Act, 1998 enacted by the Province of Ontario to introduce competition
in the electricity market.

The value of net assets transferred to the Company at November 1, 2000 was estimated to be
$78,968. In consideration for the transfer the Company issued long-term notes payable to the
City of Guelph in the aggregate principal amount of $36,642 together with shares valued at

$42,326.
Net assets transferred to the Company may be summarized as follows:
Assets
Current $ 33,653
Fixed 70,016
Other 432
104,101
Liabilities
Current 13,847
Other 11,286
25,133
Net assets $ 78,968
Fmanced by
Long-term debt 36,642
Share capital issued 42,326
3 78,968
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'GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars)

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and policies as set forth in the Accounting Procedures Manual
issued by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) under the authority of the Ontario Energy Board
Act, 1998:

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the

financial statements and accompanying notes. Due to the inherent uncertainty in making
estimates, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Regulation
The Corporation is regulated by the OEB and any rate adjustments require OEB approval.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents include short-term investments with maturities of three months or less
when purchased. Total cash equivalents at the period end are $6,447 (2000 - $6,181).

Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value, with cost being determined
on average cost basis.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are recorded at cost. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
useful service life as follows:

Buildings and fixtures 30-60 years
Distribution lines 25 years
Distribution transformers 25 years
Distribution meters 25 years
General office equipment 5-10 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Major tools 10 years
Data acquisition system 5 years
Trucks and rolling stock 4-8 years
Other capital assets 10-25 years
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Contributions in aid of construction

Contributions in aid of construction are recorded as an offset to capital assets. Capital
contributions for year ended December 31, 2001 of $1,641 (2000 - $374) have been charged
to capital assets.

Deferred charges

Deferred charges are recorded at cost and are amortized over a period of 36 months
commencing January 1, 2001.

Employee future benefits

The Company accrues its obligations under employee benefit plans and the related costs, net
of plan assets.

Payment in lieu of income taxes

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Corporation is required to make payments-in-lieu of
corporate taxes to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (OEFC), for the period
commencing October 1, 2001. These payments are recorded in accordance with the rules
for computing income and taxable capital and other relevant amounts contained in the
Income Tax Act (Canada) and the Corporation Tax Act (Ontario) and modified by the
Electricity Act, 1998, and related regulations.

The Corporation, regulated by the Ontario Energy Board, provides for payments-in-lieu of
corporate income taxes using the taxes payable method instead of the liability method.

Under the taxes payable method, no provisions are made for future income taxes as a result
of temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for accounting purposes. Future income taxes are expected to be reflected in
future rates and, accordingly, are not recognized in the financial information.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars)

;EGUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

3.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
2001 2000
Revenue $ 5,451 $ 5,160
Miscellaneous 861 1,612
Due from City of Guelph 536 483
6,848 7,255
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 102 102
$ 6,746 $ 7,153
FIXED ASSETS
2001 2000
Accumulated  Net Book Net Book
Cost Depreciation Value Value
Land $ 780 $ - $ 780 $ 780
Buildings and fixtures 9,484 262 9,221 9,409
Distribution lines - overhead 19,198 1,238 17,960 17,469
Distribution Iines - underground 32,146 2,104 30,042 29,012
Distribution transformers 8,366 726 7,640 7,535
Distribution meters 4,102 313 3,789 3,750
General office equipment 265 72 193 202
Computer equipment 371 124 247 175
Major tools 270 63 207 200
Data acquisition system 1,142 309 833 388
Trucks and rolling stock 1,414 356 1,058 834
Other capital assets 463 63 400 408
$ 78,001 $ 5630 $ 72370 § 70,162
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:GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars)

5.

LONG-TERM DEBT

2001 2001

Serial debenture, averaging 6.97%, maturing in November 2003 § 502 § 741

Serial debenture, averaging 9.53%, maturing in December 2004 2,759 2,963
Serial debenture, averaging 6.83%, maturing in December 2005 1,860 1,980

5,121 5,684
Less principal due within one year 646 590

$ 4,475 $ 5,094

Principal payments required in each of the next four calendar years are as follows:

2002 646
2003 664
2004 2,391
2005 1,420

$ 5,121

PENSION AGREEMENT

The Company and its employees contribute to the Ontario Municipal Employees’
Retirement System (OMERS), a defined benefit pension plan for the employees of Ontario
municipalities. The Company’s contribution for employees’ current service for the year
ended December 31, 2001 was $Nil (2000 - $Nil). No premiums were paid by the
employer due to the approved OMERS premium holiday.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company performs billing and collecting of revenues, building and maintenance of fixed
assets, payment of purchases and all related government remittances, engineering, information
services, and accounting, financial reporting and treasury for related parties.

Guelph Hydro Inc. (GHI), the Company’s parent, provides overall business planning
through its Board of Directors’ and will negotiate on behalf of its subsidiaries other
corporate programs such as risk management. The Company maintains its liability
insurance through the Municipal Electric Association Reciprocal Insurance Exchange. The
name of the insured is GHI and the Company is a named additional insured on the policy.
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars)

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Amounts due from (to) related parties at December 31, 2000 for transactions in the normal
course of operations are as follows:

2001 2000
Guelph Hydro Inc. (40) 6)
Selectpower Inc. 76 20
Fibrewired By Guelph Hydro Inc. 149 72
Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc. 14 6

$ 199 $ 92

8. NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable are due to the City of Guelph and bear interest at 7.25% phased in over a
three year period, beginning March 2001. No principal payments will be required in

perpetuity.
9. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

The Company pays certain medical and life insurance benefits on behalf of its retired
employees. The Company recognizes these post-retirement costs in the period in which
employees’ services were rendered. The accrued benefit liability at December 31, 2001 of
$5,310 (2000 - $4,884) and the expense for the year ended December 31, 2001 was
determined by actuarial valuation using a discount rate of 6.0%.

Information regarding the defined benefit plan of the Company is as follows:

December 31,
2001

Accrued benefit liability at January 1, 2001 $ 4,884
Expense for the period ended December 31, 2001 500
Loss on accrued post-retirement benefit obligation 92
Benefits paid for the period (166)
Projected accrued benefit obligations at December 31, 2001 as
determined by the actuarial valuation using a 6% discount rate $ 5,310
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

~ Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars)

10.

11.

EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (continued)
The main actuarial assumptions utilized for the valuation are as follows:

General Inflation — future general inflation levels, as measured by the changes in the
Consumer Price Index (CPI), were assumed at 3.5% in 2001 and thereafter.

Discount (Interest) Rate — the obligation as at January 1, 2001 of the present value of
future liabilities and the expense for the year ended December 31, 2001 were determined
using a discount rate of 6.0%. This corresponds to the assumed CPI rate plus an assumed
real rate of return of 2.5%. The projected liability at December 31, 2001 was determined
using a discount rate of 6%.

Salary Levels — future general salary and wage levels were assumed to increase at 2% per
annum.

Medical Costs — medical costs were assumed to increase at the CPI rate plus a further
increase of 5.5% in 2001 graded down to 1.5% in 2004 and thereafter. These costs were
downgraded by increments of 1% per year to 2005 and were assumed to increase to 5%
thereafter per annum.

Dental Costs — dental costs were assumed to increase at the CPI rate plus a further increase
of 1% in 2001 and thereafter.

OPERATING LEASE

The Company leases a computer system and related software and a business recovery site.
Future minimum lease payments consist of the following amounts over the next three years:

2002 $ 320
2003 251
2004 26
$ 597
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its customers. However, the Company has a
large number of diverse customers minimizing concentration of credit risk.
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- GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars)

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value

At December 31, 2001, the estimated fair market value of short-term investments, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and other accrued expenses was equal to the book value given
the short term nature of the items. As there is no secondary market for customer deposits, the

calculation of a fair value with appropriate reliability is impractical.

It is not practicable within the constraint of cost to determine the fair value of long-term debt

with sufficient reliability.

12. CHANGES IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL COMPONENTS

2001 2000
Accounts receivable $ 964 $ (1,139)
Accounts receivable - unbilled revenue (565) (1,451)
Income tax receivable (205) -
Inventory of stock and material 83 170
Due from related parties 107) 69
Other current items (18) (175)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (3,339) 2,792
Deferred credits - accounts receivable 499 336
Customer deposits - current portion 114 (40)
(2,574) 562
13. SHARE CAPITAL
2001 2000
Authorized
Unlimited number of common shares
Issued
1,000 common shares $ 42,326 $ 42326
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars)

14.

15.

16.

17.

CONTINGENCY

A class action claiming $500 million in restitutionary payments plus interest was served on
Toronto Hydro on November 18, 1998. The action was initiated against Toronto Hydro Electric
Commission as the representative of the Defendant Class consisting of all municipal electric
utilities in Ontario, which have charged Late Payment charges on overdue utility bills at any
time after April 1, 1981.

The claim is that late payment penalties result in the municipal electric utilities receiving interest
at effective rates in excess of 60% per year, which is illegal under Section 347(1)(b) of the
Criminal Code.

The Municipal Electric Association is undertaking the defence of this class action. At this time
it is not possible to quantify the effect, if any, on the financial statements of the Company.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Government of Ontario has announced that the electricity market will open to
competition on May 1, 2002. The Company has expended significant resources in
preparation for market opening and expects to function efficiently in the new market.

Beginning May 1, 2002, in order for the Company to obtain the electricity it requires to
distribute to its customers, the Company must provide security for Independent Electricity
Market Operator (IMO) based on its usage. The security required can take several forms
(i.e. credit rating, monetary payment and years of good payment history). The Company’s
maximum security is $22,900. The Company is currently under negotiation to purchase a
financial instrument to provide the security required by the IMO.

FUTURE INCOMES TAXES

If the liability method of accounting for income taxes were used, a future tax asset of $3,065
would be recorded.

OPGI SETTLEMENT
The OPGI settlement relates to the settlement of a class action lawsuit between Ontario Power
Generation (formerly Ontario Hydro) and Ontario’s local distribution companies. The claim and

settlement related to the cost of power charge in previous years. The settlement of $402 is
included in other operating revenue.
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Deloitte & Touche LLP

55 King Street West, Suite 700
Kitchener, Ontario N2G 4W1
Canada

Tel: (519) 576-0880
Fax: (519) 576-0209

Sl Deloitte
& Touche

Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of
Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc.

We have audited the balance sheet of Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc. (the Company) as at
December 31, 2002 and the statements of income and retained earnings, and cash flows for the year
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2002 and the results of its operations and its cash

flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

I = A

Chartered Accountants

April 4, 2003

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

2002 2001
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,895 $ 17,620
Accounts receivable (Note 3) 9,428 6,746
Accounts receivable - unbilled revenue 13,706 8,375
Income tax receivable 49 205
Inventory 1,188 1,427
Due from related parties (Note 8) 882 199
Other 166 277
36,314 34,849
FIXED ASSETS (Note 4) 72,478 72,370
REGULATORY ASSETS (Note 5) 2,697 -
DEFERRED CHARGES 174 333
$ 111,663 $ 107,552
LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accured liabilities $ 12,518 $ 11,571
Deferred credits - accounts receivable 1,108 1,474
Customer deposits - current portion 683 596
Debentures - current portion (Note 6) 664 646
14,973 14,287
LONG-TERM DEBT
Debenture debt outstanding (Note 6) 3,811 4475
Notes payable (Notes 9) 36,642 36,642
40,453 41,117
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Employee future benefits (Note 10) 5,648 5,310
Customer deposits - long-term portion 966 824
6,614 6,134
62,040 61,538
CONTINGENCY (Note 15)
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital (Note 14) 42,326 42,326
Retained earnings 7,297 3,686
49,623 46,012
$111,663 $ 107,550
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Statement of Income and Retained Earnings
Year Ended December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

2002 2001

SERVICE REVENUE

Residential $ 35,436 $ 29,400

General 75,040 66,387

Large user 16,583 14,557

Street lighting 527 617

127,586 110,961
Service revenue adjustment 105 -
127,691 110,961

COST OF POWER 108,679 96,524
GROSS MARGIN ON SERVICE REVENUE 19,012 14,437
OTHER OPERATING REVENUE 1,412 2,280
NET OPERATING REVENUE 20,424 16,717
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM EXPENSE

Operations 1,007 911

Maintenance 1,597 1,315
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

General administrative 2,783 2,415

Billing and collecting 1,202 1,240

Information systems 1,159 1,115

Community relations 115 41
DEPRECIATION 4,655 4,446
TOTAL EXPENSES 12,518 11,483
INCOME BEFORE FINANCIAL EXPENSE 7,906 5,234
FINANCIAL EXPENSE

Interest on notes payable 1,623 738

Interest on debentures 440 489

Other 120 32
TOTAL FINANCIAL EXPENSES 2,183 1,259
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 5,723 3,975
INCOME TAXES 2,113 80
NET INCOME 3,611 3,895
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,686 (209)
RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF YEAR $ 7,297 $ 3,686
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

2002 2001
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss) $ 3,611 $ 3,895
Add charges to operations not requiring a current cash payment
Depreciation 5,052 4,820
Amortization 160 119
Difference between employee future benefits
expense and amount funded 338 426
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 93) (19)
9,068 9,241
Net change in non-cash working capital
balances related to operations (Note 13) (7,525) 2,574)
Net change in regulatory assets (2,697) -
Net change in deferred charges and other deferred liabilities 141 (14)
(1,013) 6,653
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to fixed assets (5,158) (7,503)
Net proceeds on disposal of fixed assets 93 19
(5,065) (7,483)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash and cash equivalents transferred in on startup - -
Debenture principal repaid (646) (563)
(646) (563)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (6,724) (1,395)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 17,619 19,014
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 10,895 $ 17,619
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOWS
Interest paid $ 2,183 $ 1,266
Payment for income taxes $ 2,162 $ 360
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS
Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc. (the Company), is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guelph

Hydro Inc., and was incorporated October 31, 2000 under the Business Corporations Act
(Ontario).

The principal activity of the Company is to provide electrical power distribution throughout
the City of Guelph.

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and policies as set forth in the Accounting Procedures Manual
issued by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) under the authority of the Ontario Energy Board
Act, 1998:

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Due to the inherent uncertainty in making
estimates, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Regulation

The Corporation is regulated by the OEB and any rate adjustments require OEB approval.

Revenue recognition

Service revenue is recorded on the basis of regular meter readings and estimated customer
usage since the last meter reading date to the end of the year. The related cost of power is
recorded on the basis of power used.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents include short-term investments with maturities of three months or less
when purchased. Total cash equivalents at the year end are $116 (2001 - $6,447).

Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value, with cost being determined
on average cost basis.
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are recorded at cost. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
useful service life as follows:

Buildings and fixtures 30-60 years
Distribution lines 25 years
Distribution transformers 25 years
Distribution meters 25 years
General office equipment 5-10 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Major tools 10 years
Data acquisition system 5 years
Trucks and rolling stock 4-8 years
Other capital assets 10-25 years

Contributions in aid of construction

Contributions in aid of construction are recorded as an offset to capital assets. Capital
contributions for year ended December 31, 2002 of $2,564 (2000 - $1,641) have been charged
to capital assets.

Deferred charges

Deferred charges are recorded at cost and are amortized over a period of 36 months
commencing January 1, 2001.

Regulatory assets

Regulatory assets result from the provincially approved rate of the Ontario Electricity Board
and represent differences between costs incurred and those collected through rates.
Regulatory assets on the balance sheet at year-end relate primarily to retail settlement variance
accounts and pre-market opening cost of power variances. These assets will be recognized
for rate-setting and financial statement purposes only to the extent allowed by the regulator.

Employee future benefits

The Company accrues its obligations under employee benefit plans and the related costs, net
of plan assets.
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Payment in lieu of income taxes

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Corporation is required to make payments-in-lieu of
corporate taxes to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation, for the period commencing
October 1, 2001. These payments are recorded in accordance with the rules for computing
income and taxable capital and other relevant amounts contained in the Income Tax Act
(Canada) and the Corporation Tax Act (Ontario) and modified by the Electricity Act, 1998,
and related regulations. ‘

The Corporation, regulated by the Ontario Energy Board, provides for payments-in-lieu of
corporate income taxes using the taxes payable method instead of the liability method.

Under the taxes payable method, no provisions are made for future income taxes as a result
of temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for accounting purposes. Future income taxes are expected to be reflected in
future rates and, accordingly, are not recognized in the financial information.

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2002 2001
Revenue $ 8,045 $ 5,451
Miscellaneous 1,345 861
Due from City of Guelph 200 536
9,590 6,848
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 162 102

$ 9,428 $ 6,746
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

4.

FIXED ASSETS
2002 2001
Accumulated  Net Book Net Book
Cost Depreciation Value Value
Land $ 780 % - $ 780 $ 780
Buildings and fixtures 9,489 487 9,001 9,221
Distribution lines - overhead 20,767 2,369 18,398 17,960
Distribution lines - underground 33,917 3,963 29,954 30,042
Distribution transformers 8,936 1,351 7,585 7,640
Distribution meters 4,483 - 596 3,887 3,789
General office equipment 347 144 203 193
Computer equipment 595 261 334 247
Major tools 330 116 214 207
Data acquisition system 1,303 602 701 833
Trucks and rolling stock 1,753 680 1,073 1,058
Other capital assets 463 114 349 400
$ 83163 $ 10684 $ 72478 $ 72,370
REGULATORY ASSETS

The regulatory assets, as follow, arose as a result of the rate-setting process:

2002 2001

Pre-market opening energy variance $ 815 $ -
Retail settlement variance 1,882 -
$ 2,697 $ -

The introduction of Bill 210 in November 2002 has deferred future rate increases until 2006.
Management believes that it is probable that regulatory assets will be recovered through
future rates, although uncertainty has been heightened with current legislation, Bill 210.
Management has performed an analysis of the impact on future rates and is confident that
future rate increases will be sufficient to realize all of these costs. If in a future decision, the
regulator determines that the existing regulatory treatment is no longer acceptable, the
regulatory assets would be charged to operations.
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

6. LONG-TERM DEBT

2002 2001

Serial debenture, averaging 6.97%, maturing in November 2003 $ 251 $ 502

Serial debenture, averaging 9.53%, maturing in December 2004 2,504 2,759
Serial debenture, averaging 6.83%, maturing in December 2005 1,720 1,860

4,475 5,121
Less principal due within one year 664 646

$ 3,811 $ 4,475

Principal payments required in each of the next four calendar years are as follows:

2003 664
2004 2,391
2005 1,420

$ 4,475

7. PENSION AGREEMENT

The Company provides a pension plan for its employees through the Ontario Municipal
Employees Retirement System (“OMERS”). OMERS is a multi-employer pension plan
which operates as the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund (“the Fund”) and
provides pensions for employees of Ontario municipalities, local boards, public utilities, and
school boards. The Fund is a contributory defined benefit pension plan, which is financed by
equal contributions from participating employers and employees, and by the investment
earnings of the Fund. As the company is only liable for the contributions, defined
contribution plan accounting is used by the Company. The Company’s contribution for
employees’ current service for the year ended December 31, 2002 was $Nil (2001 - $Nil). No
premiums were paid, by the employer or employees in 2001 due to the legislated OMERS
premium holiday which is in effect until December 31, 2002.
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

10.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company performs billing and collecting of revenues, building and maintenance of fixed
assets, payment of purchases and all related government remittances, engineering, information
services, and accounting, financial reporting and treasury for related parties.

Guelph Hydro Inc. (GHI), the Company’s parent, provides overall business planning
through its Board of Directors’ and will negotiate on behalf of its subsidiaries other
corporate programs such as risk management. The Company maintains its liability
insurance through the Municipal Electric Association Reciprocal Insurance Exchange. The
name of the insured is GHI and the Company is a named additional insured on the policy.

Amounts due from (to) related parties for transactions in the normal course of operations
are as follows:

2002 2001
Guelph Hydro Inc. $ 87 $ (40)
Selectpower Inc. 140 76
Fibrewired By Guelph Hydro Inc. 514 149
Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc. 140 14

$ 882 $ 199

NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable are due to the City of Guelph and bear interest at 4.83% (2001 2.42%). No
principal payments will be required in perpetuity.

EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

The Company pays certain medical and life insurance benefits on behalf of its retired
employees. The Company recognizes these post-retirement costs in the period in which
employees’ services were rendered. The accrued benefit liability at December 31, 2002 of
$5,648 (2000 - $5,310) and the expense for the year ended December 31, 2002 was
determined by actuarial valuation using a discount rate of 6.0%.
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

10. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (continued)

Information regarding the defined benefit plan of the Company is as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2002 2001
Accrued benefit Liability at January 1, 2002 $ 5310 4,884
Expense for the period ended December 31, 2002 500 500
Loss on accrued post-retirement benefit obligation - 92
Benefits paid for the period 162 (166)

Projected accrued benefit obligations at December 31, 2002 as
determined by the actuarial valuation using a 6% discountrate $ 5,648 $ 5,310

The main actuarial assumptions utilized for the valuation are as follows:

General Inflation — future general inflation levels, as measured by the changes in the
Consumer Price Index (CPI), were assumed at 3.5% in 2001 and thereafter.

Discount (Interest) Rate — the obligation as at January 1, 2002 of the present value of
future liabilities and the expense for the year ended December 31, 2002 were determined
using a discount rate of 6.0%. This corresponds to the assumed CPI rate plus an assumed
real rate of return of 2.5%. The projected liability at December 31, 2002 was determined
using a discount rate of 6%.

Salary Levels — future general salary and wage levels were assumed to increase at 2% per
annum.

Medical Costs — medical costs were assumed to increase at the CPI rate plus a further
increase of 5.5% in 2001 graded down to 1.5% in 2004 and thereafter. These costs were
downgraded by increments of 1% per year to 2005 and were assumed to increase to 5%
thereafter per annum.

Dental Costs — dental costs were assumed to increase at the CPI rate plus a further increase
of 1% in 2001 and thereafter.
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

11.

12.

OPERATING LEASE

The Company leases a computer system and related software and a business recovery site.
Future minimum lease payments consist of the following amounts over the next three years:

2003 $ 286
2004 237
2005 160
$ 683
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its customers. However, the Company has a
large number of diverse customers minimizing concentration of credit risk.

Fairvalue

At December 31, 2002, the estimated fair market value of short-term investments, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and other accrued expenses was equal to the book value given
the short term nature of the items. As there is no secondary market for customer deposits, the
calculation of a fair value with appropriate reliability is impractical.

It is not practicable within the constraint of cost to determine the fair value of long-term debt
with sufficient reliability.

Irrevocable letter of credit

As of May 1, 2002, in order for the Company to obtain the electricity it requires to
distribute to its customers, the Company was required to provide security to Independent
Electricity Market Operators based on its estimated usage. The security obtained was in the
form of an irrevocable letter of credit from a financial institution. The Company’s
maximum security is $22,900.
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

13. CHANGES IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL COMPONENTS

2002 2001
Accounts receivable $ (2,683 964
Accounts receivable - unbilled revenue (5,331) (565)
Income tax receivable 155 83
Inventory of stock and material 240 (107)
Due from related parties (683) (205)
Other current items 112 (18)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 944 (3,339)
Deferred credits - accounts receivable (366) 499
Customer deposits - current portion 87 114
(7,525) (2,574)
14. SHARE CAPITAL
2002 2001

Authorized

Unlimited number of common shares
Issued

1,000 common shares $ 42,326 $ 42,326

15. CONTINGENCY

A class action claiming $500 million in restitutionary payments plus interest was served on

Toronto Hydro on November 18, 1998. The action was initiated against Toronto Hydro Electric

Commission as the representative of the Defendant Class consisting of all municipal electric

utilities in Ontario, which have charged Late Payment charges on overdue utility bills at any
. time after April 1, 1981.

The claim is that late payment penalties result in the municipal electric utilities receiving interest
at effective rates in excess of 60% per year, which is illegal under Section 347(1)(b) of the
Criminal Code.

The Municipal Electric Association is undertaking the defence of this class action. At this time
it is not possible to quantify the effect, if any, on the financial statements of the Company.
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

16. FUTURE INCOMES TAXES

If the liability method of accounting for income taxes were used, a future tax asset of $6,756
(2001 — $3,065) would be recorded.
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Deloitte & Touche LLp
55 King Street West
Suite 700

Kitchener ON N2G 4W1
Canada

Tel: (519) 576-0880
Fax: (519) 576-0209
www.deloitte.ca

Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholder of
Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc,

We have audited the balance sheet of Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc. (the Company) as at December
31, 2003 and the statements of income and retained earnings and of cash flows for the year then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
€Xpress an opinion on these financial Statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statments. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all materia] respects, the financial position of the
Company as at December 31, 2003 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Chartered Accountants

April 2, 2004

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

2003 2002
ASSETS '
CURRENT
Cash and cash equivalents $ 20,193 $ 10,895
Accounts receivable (Note 3) 6,844 9,428
Accounts receivable - unbilled revenue 12,633 13,706
Income taxes receivable - 49
Inventory 1,359 1,188
Due from related parties (Note §) 1,064 882
Other 305 166
42,398 36,314
FIXED ASSETS (Note 4) 71,988 72,478
REGULATORY ASSETS (Note 5) 2,874 2,697
DEFERRED CHARGES - 174
$ 117,260 $ 111,663
LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 11,326 $ 12,518
Income taxes payable 356 -
Deferred credits - accounts receivable 2,881 1,108
Customer deposits - current portion 740 683
Debentures - current portion (Note 6) 3,055 664
18,358 14,973
LONG-TERM DEBT
Debentures (Note 6) 1,420 3,811
Notes payable (Notes 9) 36,642 36,642
38,062 40,453
OTHER LLONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Employee future benefits (Note 10) 6,399 5,648
Customer deposits 1,213 965
7,612 6,614
64,032 62,040
CONTINGENCY AND COMMITMENTS (Notes 11, 15 and 17)
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share capital (Note 14) 42,326 42,326
Retained earnings 10,902 7,297
53,228 49,623
$ 117,260 $ 111,663

APROVED BY THE BOARD

............................. Director

............................. Director
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Statement of Income and Retained Earnings
Year Ended December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

2003 2002
SERVICE REVENUE
Residential $ 36,184 $ 35,436
General 76,374 75,041
Large user 16,572 16,583
Street lighting 573 527
129,703 127,587
Service revenue adjustment 9 105
129,712 127,692
COST OF POWER 109,690 108,679
GROSS MARGIN ON SERVICE REVENUE 20,022 19,013
OTHER OPERATING REVENUE 1,445 1,412
NET OPERATING REVENUE 21,467 20,425
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM EXPENSE
Operations 895 1,007
Maintenance 1,809 1,597
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE
General administrative 3,329 2,783
Billing and collecting 1,360 1,202
Information systems 1,128 1,159
Community relations 40 115
DEPRECIATION 4,437 4,655
TOTAL EXPENSES 12,998 12,518
INCOME BEFORE FINANCIAL EXPENSE AND INCOME TAXES 8,469 7,907
FINANCIAL EXPENSE
Interest on notes payable 1,771 1,623
Interest on debentures 396 440
Other 131 120
TOTAL FINANCIAL EXPENSE 2,298 2,183
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 6,171 5,724
INCOME TAXES 2,567 2,113
NET INCOME 3,605 3,611
RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,297 3,686
RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF YEAR $ 10,902 $ 7,297
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

2003 2002
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 3,605 $ 3,611
Add charges to operations not requiring a current cash payment
Depreciation 4,777 5,052
Amortization 191 160
Difference between employee future benefits
expense and amount funded 751 338
Gain on disposal of fixed assets ' - (93)
9,324 9,068
Net change in non-cash working capital
balances related to operations (Note 13) 4,208 (7,525
Net change in regulatory assets a77 (2,697)
Net change in deferred charges and
deferred credits - accounts receivable 230 141
13,585 (1,013)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to fixed assets (4,287) (5,158)
Net proceeds on disposal of fixed assets - 93
(4,287) (5,065)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Debenture principal repaid - (646)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 9,298 (6,724)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 10,895 17,619
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 20,193 $ 10,895
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOWS
Interest paid $ 2,100 $ 2,183
Payment for income taxes $ 2,161 § 2,162
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

[

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc., is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guelph Hydro Inc., and was
incorporated October 31, 2000 under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario).

The principal activity of the Company is to provide electrical power distribution throughout the City
of Guelph.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted

accounting principles (GAAP) and policies as set forth in the Accounting Procedures Manual issued
by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) under the authority of the Onzario Energy Board Act, 1998,

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Due to the inherent uncertainty in making estimates, actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Regulation

The Corporation is regulated by the OEB and any rate adjustments require OEB approval.

Revenue recognition

since the last meter reading date to the end of the year. The related cost of power is recorded on
the basis of power used.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents include short-term investments with maturities of three months or less when
purchased. Total cash equivalents at the year-end are $73 (2002 - $116).

Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value, with cost being determined on
average cost basis.
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are recorded at cost. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful
service life as follows:

Buildings and fixtures 30-60 years
Distribution lines 25 years
Distribution transformers 25 years
Distribution meters 25 years
General office equipment 5-10 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Major tools 10 years
Data acquisition system 5 years
Trucks and rolling stock 4-8 years
Other capital assets 10-25 years

Contributions in aid of construction

Contributions in aid of construction are recorded as an offset to capital assets. Capital contributions
for the year ended December 31, 2003 of $2,194 (2002 - $2,564) have been charged to capital assets.

Deferred charges

Deferred charges are recorded at cost and have been amortized over a period of 36 months ending in
2003.

Regulatory assets

Regulatory assets result from the provincially approved rate of the Ontario Electricity Board and
represent differences between costs incurred and those collected through rates. Regulatory assets on
the balance sheet at year-end relate primarily to retail settlement variance accounts and pre-market
opening cost of power variances. These assets will be recognized for rate-setting and financial
statement purposes only to the extent allowed by the regulator.

Employee future benefits

The Company accrues its obligations under employee benefit plans and the related costs, net of plan
assets.
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\GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Payment in lieu of income taxes

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Company is required to make payments-in-lieu of corporate
taxes to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation, for the period commencing October 1, 2001.
These payments are recorded in accordance with the rules for computing income and taxable
capital and other relevant amounts contained in the Income Tax Act (Canada) and the Corporation
Tax Act (Ontario) and modified by the Electricity Act, 1998, and related regulations.

The Company, regulated by the Ontario Energy Board, provides for payments-in-lieu of corporate
income taxes using the taxes payable method instead of the liability method.

Under the taxes payable method, no provisions are made for future income taxes as a result of
temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
accounting purposes. Future income taxes are expected to be reflected in future rates and,
accordingly, are not recognized in the financial information.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Revenue $ 5,668 $ 8,045

Miscellaneous 1,275 1,009

Due from City of Guelph 74 536
7,017 9,590

Less allowance for doubtful accounts 173 162

$ 6,844 $ 9428
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'GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

4.  FIXED ASSETS

13

2003 2002
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Depreciation Value Value
Land $ $ - $ 780 3 780
Buildings and fixtures 715 8,774 9,000
Distribution lines - overhead 3,482 18,562 18,398
Distribution lines - underground 5,754 29,731 29,954
Distribution transformers 1,868 7,912 7,585
Distribution meters 888 3,833 3,887
General office equipment 199 200 203
Computer equipment 384 329 334
Major tools 172 220 214
Data acquisition system 894 505 701
Trucks and rolling stock 951 831 1,073
Other capital assets 155 311 349
$ $ 15462 $ 71988 $ 72478
REGULATORY ASSETS
The regulatory assets, as follow, arose as a result of the rate-setting process:
2003 2002
Pre-market opening energy variance 815 815
Retail settlement variance 2,059 1,882
2,874 2,697

The mtroduction of Bill 210 in November 2002 deferred future rate increases until 2006. In
December 2003, Bill 4 was introduced which allows for the application to the OEB for possible

recovery of these costs.
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'GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

6.

DEBENTURES
2003 2002

Serial debenture, averaging 6.97%, matured in November 2003, repaid
in January 2004 $ 251 $ 251
Serial debenture, averaging 9.53%, maturing in December 2004 2,504 2,504
Serial debenture, averaging 6.83%, maturing in December 2005 1,720 1,720

4,475 4,475
Less principal due within one year 3,055 664

$ 1,420 $ 3.811

Principal payments required are as follows:

2004 $ 3,055
2005 1,420
$ 4,475

PENSION AGREEMENT

The Company provides a pension plan for its employees through the Ontario Municipal Employees
Retirement System (“OMERS”). OMERS is a multi-employer pension plan which operates as the
Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund (“the Fund”) and provides pensions for employees
of Ontario municipalities, local boards, public utilities, and school boards. The Fund is a
contributory defined benefit pension plan, which is financed by equal contributions from
participating employers and employees, and by the investment earnings of the Fund. As the
Company is only liable for the contributions, defined contribution plan accounting is used by the
Company. The Company’s contribution for employees’ current service for the year ended
December 31, 2003 was $118 (2002 - $Nil). Premiums paid in 2003 were at a reduced rate
following a premium holiday that ended December 31, 2002.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company performs billing and collecting of revenues, building and maintenance of fixed assets,
payment of purchases and all related government remittances, engineering, information services, and
accounting, financial reporting and treasury for related parties.

Guelph Hydro Inc. (GHI), the Company’s parent, provides overall business planning through its
Board of Directors and will negotiate on behalf of its subsidiaries other corporate programs such as
risk management. The Company maintains its liability insurance through the Municipal Electric
Association Reciprocal Insurance Exchange (MEARIE). The name of the insured is GHI and the
Company is a named additional insured on the policy.
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

10.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Amounts due from (to) related parties for transactions in the normal course of operations are as
follows:

2003 2002
Guelph Hydro Inc. $ 170 $ 87
Selectpower Inc. 208 140
Fibrewired By Guelph Hydro Inc. 574 514
Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc. 112 140

$ 1,064 $ 882

NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable are due to the City of Guelph and bear interest at 4.83% (2002 - 4.83%). No
principal payments will be required in perpetuity.

EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

The Company pays certain medical and life insurance benefits on behalf of its retired employees.
The Company recognizes these post-retirement costs in the period in which employees’ services
were rendered. The accrued benefit liability at December 31, 2003 of $6,399 (2002 - $5,648) and
the expense for the year ended December 31, 2003 were determined by actuarial valuation using a
discount rate of 5.5% (2002 - 6.0%).

Information regardin g the defined benefit plan of the Company is as follows:

2003 2002

Accrued benefit liability at J anuary 1 $ 5648 § 5,310
Adjustment with respect to 2002 281 -
Expense for the period ended December 31 625 500
Loss on accrued post-retirement benefit obligation 21 -
Benefits paid for the year (176) (162)
Projected accrued benefit obli gations at December 31 as

determined by the actuarial valuation using a 5.5% discount rate $ 6399 3 5,648

* A full valuation was performed as at January 1, 2002 but the resulting adjustments were not
accounted for in 2002.
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' GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2003
{(in thousands of dollars)

10.

11.

EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS (continued)
The main actuarial assumptions utilized for the valuation are as follows:

Geneial Iuflallon - fuluie goucral flation levels, as ieasuied by tie chauges i the Cousuer
Price Index (CPI), were assumed at 2.2% in 2003 and thereafter.

Discount (Interest) Rate — the obligation as at January 1, 2003 of the present value of future
liabilities and the expense for the year ended December 31, 2003 were determined using a discount
rate of 5.5%.

Salary Levels - future general salary and wage levels were assumed to increase at 3.5% per
annum.

Medical Costs — medical costs were assumed to increase at 12.5% for 2003, 10.0% for 2004, 7.5%
for 2005 and 5.0% thereafter.

Dental Costs — dental costs were assumed to increase at 4.5% per year.
COMMITMENTS

The Company leases a computer system and related software and a business recovery site. Future
minimum lease payments consist of the following amounts:

2004 $ 259
2005 345
2006 345
2007 97

$ 1,046
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( | GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

12.

13.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Credir risk

Lhe Company is exposed to credit risk from its customers.
number of diverse customers minimizing concentration of credit

Fair value

At December 31, 2003, the estimated fair

However, the Company has a large
risk.

market value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts

receivable, due from related parties, accounts payable and other accrued liabilities was equal to the
book value given the short term nature of the items. As there is no secondary market for customer
deposits, the calculation of a fair value with appropriate reliability is impractical.

It is not practicable within the constraint
sufficient reliability. The fair value of the
no specific repayment terms and no maturity dates.

Irrevocable letter of credit

of cost to determine the fair value of the debentures with
payable cannot be determined as then the notes have

As of May 1, 2002, in order for the Company to obtain the electricity it requires to distribute to its
customers, the Company was required to provide security to the Independent Electricity Market
Operator based on its estimated usage. The security obtained was in the form of an irrevocable
letter of credit from a financial institution. The Company’s maximum security is $22,900.

CHANGES IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL COMPONENTS

2003 2002

Accounts receivable $ 2,584 $  (2,683)
Accounts receivable - unbilled revenue 1,073 (5,331)
Income taxes receivable 406 155
Inventory of stock and material a7 240
Due from related parties (182) (683)
Other current items (139) 112
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (1,192) 944
Deferred credits - accounts receivable 1,773 (366)
Customer deposits - current portion 56 87

$ 4,208 $  (7,525)
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" GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

14.

16.

17.

18.

SHARE CAPITAL

2003 2002
Authorized
Unlimited number of common shares
Issued
1,000 common shares $ 42,326 $ 427326
CONTINGENCY

A class action claiming $500 million in restitutionary payments plus interest was served on Toronto
Hydro on November 18, 1998. The action was initiated against Toronto Hydro Electric Commission as
the representative of the Defendant Class consisting of all municipal electric utilities in Ontario, which
have charged Late Payment charges on overdue utility bills at any time after April 1, 1981.

The claim is that late payment penalties result in the municipal electric utilities receiving interest at
effective rates in excess of 60% per year, which is illegal under Section 347(1)(b) of the Criminal Code.

The Electricity Distributors Association (formerly the Municipal Electric Association) is undertaking the
defence of this class action. At this time it is not possible to quantify the effect, if any, on the financial
statements of the Company.

FUTURE INCOMES TAXES

If the liability method of accounting for income taxes were used, a future tax asset of $7,088 (2002 -
$6,756) would be recorded.

GUARANTEES

The Company has a Connection and Cost Recovery Agreement with Hydro One Networks Inc.
(Networks) for the supply of two additional breaker positions at the Campbell TS (transformer station).
The cost for the connection ($599) is a debt owed to Networks that will be forgiven provided that the
Company meets or exceeds the specified load requirements and the incremental transformation
connection revenue received by Networks. The Company expects to meet the conditions of the
guarantee and does not anticipate any future payments to Networks.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Company has initiated an expansion to the Southgate building. The new wing will allow the
relocation of the Administration and Engineering staff and consolidate all Guelph Hydro Electric staff in
one location. Construction of the $6.5 million addition is scheduled to begin in the fall of 2004 with
completion in the fall of 2005.
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De I o itte ' Deloitte & Touche LLP

4210 King Street East
Kitchener ON N2P 2G5
Canada .

Tel: (519) 650-7600
Fax: (519) 650-7601
www.deloitte.ca

Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholder of
Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc.

We have audited the balance sheet of Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc. (the Company) as at December
31, 2004 and the statements of income and retained earnings and of cash flows for the year then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the

Company as at December 31, 2004 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Chartered Accountants

April 22, 2005

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Balance Sheet
Statement of Income and Retained Earnings
Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

PAGE

4-13



GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

2004 2003
ASSETS
CURRENT ,
Cash and cash equivalents $ 18,721 $ 20,193
Accounts receivable (Note 4) 10,535 6,844
Accounts receivable - unbilled revenue 14,003 12,633
Inventory 1,209 1,359
Due from related parties (Note 9) 2,814 1,064
Other 143 305
47,425 42,398 .
FIXED ASSETS (Note 5) 71,849 71,988
REGULATORY ASSETS (Note 6) 702 2,874
$ 119,976 $ 117,260
LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 13,143 $ 11,326
Income taxes payable 862 356
Deferred credits - accounts receivable 2,307 2,881
Customer deposits - current portion 1,075 740
Debentures - current portion (Note 7) 1,420 3,055
18,807 18,358
LONG-TERM DEBT
Debentures (Note 7) - 1,420
Notes payable (Notes 10) 36,642 36,642
36,642 38,062
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Employee future benefits (Note 11) 6,889 6,399
Customer deposits - long-term portion 1,169 1,213
8,058 7,612
63,507 64,032
CONTINGENCY (Note 16)
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share capital (Note 15) 42,326 42,326
Retained earnings 14,143 10,902
56,469 53,228
$ 119,976 $ 117,260

APPROVED BY THE BOARD

....................................... Director

....................................... Director

Page 1 of 13



GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Statement of Income and Retained Earnings
Year Ended December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

2003

2004
SERVICE REVENUE
Residential $ 34,804 $ 36,184
General 74,104 76,375
Large user 18,303 16,572
Street lighting 569 573
127,870 129,704
Service revenue adjustment - 9
127,870 129,713
COST OF POWER 108,050 109,690
GROSS MARGIN ON SERVICE REVENUE 19,820 20,023
OTHER OPERATING REVENUE 1,493 1,445
NET OPERATING REVENUE 21,313 21,468
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM EXPENSES
Operations 824 895
Maintenance 1,722 1,809
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
General administrative 2,924 3,329
Billing and collecting 1,554 1,360
Information systems 1,277 1,128
Community relations 44 40
DEPRECIATION 5,002 4,437
13,347 12,998
INCOME BEFORE FINANCIAL EXPENSES AND INCOME TAXES 7,966 - 8,470
FINANCIAL EXPENSES
Interest on notes payable 1,771 1,771
Interest on debentures 316 396
Other 79 131
TOTAL FINANCIAL EXPENSES 2,166 2,298
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 5,800 6,172
INCOME TAXES 2,559 2,567
NET INCOME 3,241 3,605
RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 10,902 7.297
RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF YEAR $ 14,143 $ 10,902
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

2004 2003
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 3241 $ 3,605
Add charges to operations not requiring a current cash payment
Depreciation 5,377 4,777
Amortization - 174
Difference between employee future benefits }
expense and amount funded 490 751
9,108 9,307
Net change in non-cash working capital ,
balances related to operations (Note 14) (4,415) 4,208
Net change in regulatory assets 2,172 77
Net change in customer deposits - long-term portion (44) 247
6,321 13,585
INVESTING ACTIVITY
Additions to fixed assets (5,238) 4,287)
FINANCING ACTIVITY
Debenture principal repaid (3,055) -
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,472) 9,298
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 20,193 10,895
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 18,721 $ 20,193
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOWS
Interest paid $ 2,187 $ 2,100
Payment for income taxes $ 2,043 $ 2161
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc. (the Company), is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guelph Hydro
Inc., and was incorporated October 31, 2000 under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario ).

The principal activity of the Company is to provide electrical power distribution throughout the City
of Guelph.

2.  CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Impairment of long-lived assets

As of January 1, 2004, the Company prospectively adopted the recommendations of CICA
Handbook Section 3063 “Impairment of long-lived assets”. These recommendations require that
an impairment loss on long-lived assets to be held and used be recognized when their carrying
value exceeds the total undiscounted cash flows expected from their use and eventual disposition.
The amount of the impairment loss is determined as the excess of the carrying value of the asset
over its fair value. The adoption of these recommendations had no impact on the results of
operations for 2004.

Asset retirement obligations

On January 1, 2004, the Company adopted the recommendations of CICA Handbook Section 3110
“Asset retirement obligations”. The standard provides guidance for the recognition, measurement
and disclosure of liabilities for asset retirement obligations. Basically, the liability represents the
fair value of the obligations. The corresponding cost is capitalized as part of the related asset and
is amortized over the asset’s useful life. The adoption of these recommendations had no impact on
the results of operations for 2004.

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally aécepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and policies as set forth in the Accounting Procedures Manual issued
by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) under the authority of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998:
Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Due to the inherent uncertainty in making estimates, actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Regulation

The Company is regulated by the OEB and any rate adjustments require OEB approval.
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements o
December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Service revenue is recorded on the basis of regular meter readings and estimated customer usage
since the last meter reading date to the end of the year. The related cost of power is recorded on
the basis of power used.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents include short-term investments with maturities of three months or less when
purchased. Total cash equivalents at the year-end are $73 (2003 - $73).

Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value, with cost being determined on
average cost basis.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are recorded at cost. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful
service life as follows:

Buildings and fixtures 30-60 years
Distribution lines 25 years
Distribution transformers 25 years
Distribution meters 25 years
General office equipment 5-10 years
Computer equipment S years
Major tools 10 years
Data acquisition system 5 years
Trucks and rolling stock 4-8 years
Other capital assets 10-25 years

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets are tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
when their carrying value exceeds the total undiscounted cash flows expected from their use and
eventual disposition. The amount of the impairment loss is determined as the excess of the
carrying value of the asset over its fair value.

Contributions in aid of construction

Contributions in aid of construction are recorded as an offset to capital assets. Capital contributions
for the year ended December 31, 2004 of $2,663 (2003 - $2,194) have been charged to capital assets.
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Deferred charges

Deferred charges are recorded at cost and have been amortized over a period of 36 months ending in
2003.

Regulatory assets

Regulatory assets result from the provincially approved rate of the Ontario Electricity Board and
represent differences between costs incurred and those collected through rates. Regulatory assets on
the balance sheet at year-end relate primarily to retail settlement variance accounts and pre-market
opening cost of power variances. These assets will be recognized for rate-setting and financial
statemnent purposes only to the extent allowed by the regulator.

Employee future benefits

The Company accrues its obligations under employee benefit plans and the related costs, net of plan
assets.

Payment in lieu of income taxes

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Company is required to make payments-in-lieu of corporate
taxes to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation, for the period commencing October 1, 2001.
These payments are recorded in accordance with the rules for computing income and taxable
capital and other relevant amounts contained in the Income Tax Act (Canada) and the Corporation
Tax Act (Ontario) and modified by the Electricity Act, 1998, and related regulations.

The Company, regulated by the Ontario Energy Board, provides for payments-in-lieu of corporate
income taxes using the taxes payable method instead of the liability method.

Under the taxes payable method, no provisions are made for future income taxes as a result of
temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
accounting purposes. Future income taxes are expected to be reflected in future rates and,
accordingly, are not recognized in the financial information.

Asset retirement obligations

The Company recognizes the liability for an asset retirement that results from acquisition,
construction, development or normal operations. The liability for an asset retirement is initially
recorded at its fair value in the year in which it is incurred and when a reasonable estimate of fair
value can be made. The corresponding cost is capitalized as part of the related asset and is
amortized over the asset’s useful life. In subsequent years, the liability is adjusted for changes
resulting from the passage of time and revisions to either the timing or the amount of the original
estimate of the undiscounted cash flows. The accretion of the liability to its fair value as a result of
the passage of time is charged to earnings.
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2004 2003

Revenue $ 10,167 $ 6,792

Miscellaneous 201 - 151

Due from City of Guelph 355 74

10,723 7,017

Less allowance for doubtful accounts 188 173

$ 10,535 $ 6,844

5. FIXED ASSETS
2004 2003
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Depreciation Value Value

Land $ 780 $ - $ 780 $ 780
Buildings and fixtures 9,856 942 8,914 8,774
Distribution lines - overhead 23,924 4,794 19,130 18,562
Distribution lines - underground 36,664 7,927 28,737 29,731
Distribution transformers 10,305 2,397 7,908 7,912
Distribution meters 5,309 1,200 4,109 3,833
General office equipment 382 250 132 200
Computer equipment 830 523 307 329
Major tools 465 57 408 220
Data acquisition system 1,551 1,147 404 505
Trucks and rolling stock 2,156 1,234 922 831
Other capital assets 424 326 98 311
$ 92,646 $ 20,797 $ 71,849 $ 71,988
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

REGULATORY ASSETS

The regulatory assets, as follow, arose as a result of the rate-setting process:

2004 2003
Pre-market opening energy variance $ 816 $ 816
Retail settlement variance (114) 2,058

$ 702 $ 2874

Beginning April 1, 2004, the Minister of Energy allowed electricity distributors to recover the first
part of their regulatory assets in the 2004 rates. This recovery is for a portion of the Retail settlement
variance costs incurred by distributors from transmission utilities and the Independent Electricity
Market Operator (IMO). The recovery is for costs expensed in prior years as well as costs included in
regulatory assets. In 2004 the Company recovered $1,376 of which $1,105 was a reduction of the
regulatory assets and $271 was included in income. Regulatory asset accounts are used to
recover/collect amounts that have been under/over collected from customers through electricity rates.
In 2004, the Company recovered a portion of the retail settlement costs and over collected the
transmission and connections component of the rates, creating a regulatory settlement liability. The
amount of any under/over collection will be adjusted through future rate submissions.

DEBENTURES
2004 2003
Serial debenture, averaging 6.97%, maturing in November 2003 $ - $ 251
Serial debenture, averaging 9.53%, maturing in December 2004 - 2,504
Serial debenture, averaging 6.83%, maturing in December 2005 1,420 1,720
1,420 4,475
Less principal due within one year 1,420 3,055
$ - $ 1,420
PENSION AGREEMENT

The Company provides a pension plan for its employees through the Ontario Municipal Employees
Retirement System (“OMERS”). OMERS is a multi-employer pension plan which operates as the
Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund (“the Fund™) and provides pensions for employees
of Ontario municipalities, local boards, public utilities, and school boards. The Fund is a
contributory defined benefit pension plan, which is financed by equal contributions from
participating employers and employees, and by the investment earnings of the Fund. As the
Company is only liable for the contributions, defined contribution plan accounting is used by the
Company. The Company’s contribution for employees’ current service for the year ended
December 31, 2004 was $368 (2003 - $118). Premiums paid in 2003 were at a reduced rate
following a premium holiday that ended December 31, 2002.
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

9.

10.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company performs billing and collecting of revenues, building and maintenance of fixed assets,
payment of purchases and all related government remittances, engineering, information services, and
accounting, financial reporting and treasury for related parties. During the year, the Company earned
revenues of $292 related to these services.

Guelph Hydro Inc. (GHI), the Company’s parent, provides overall business planning through its
Board of Directors and will negotiate on behalf of its subsidiaries other corporate programs such as
risk management. During the year, the Company incurred expenses of $21 related to these
services. The Company maintains its liability insurance through the Municipal Electric
Association Reciprocal Insurance Exchange (MEARIE). The name of the insured is GHI and the
Company is a named additional insured on the policy.

Amounts due from (to) related parties for transactions in the normal course of operations are as
follows:

2004 2003
Guelph Hydro Inc. $ 1,800 $ 170
1615151 Ontario Inc. 12 -
Selectpower Inc. 282 208
Fibrewired By Guelph Hydro Inc. 565 574
Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc. 155 112

$ 2,814 $ 1,064

NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable are due to the City of Guelph and bear interest at 4.83%. No principal payments
will be required in perpetuity.
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

11.

EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

The Company pays certain medical and life insurance benefits on behalf of its retired employees.
The Company recognizes these post-retirement costs in the period in which employees’ services
were rendered. The accrued benefit liability at December 31, 2004 of $6,889 (2003 - $6,399) and
the expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 were determined by actuarial valuation using a
discount rate of 5.5 %.

Information regarding the defined benefit plan of the Company is as follows:

2004 2003
Accrued benefit liability at January 1, 2004 $ 6399 $ 5,648
Adjustment with respect to 2002* - 281"
Expense for the period ended December 31, 2004 664 625
Loss on accrued post-retirement benefit obligation 16 21
Benefits paid for the period (190) (176)
Accrued benefit liability at December 31, 2004 $ 63889 §$ 6,399

* Full valuation was performed as at January 1, 2002 but the resulting adjustments were not
accounted for in 2002.

The main actuarial assumptions utilized for the valuation are as follows:

General Inflation — future general inflation levels, as measured by the changes in the Consumer
Price Index (CPI), were assumed at 2.2% in 2002 and thereafter.

Discount (Interest) Rate — the obligation as at January 1, 2002 of the present value of future
liabilities and the expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 were determined using a discount

rate of 5.5%.

Salary Levels — future general salary and wage levels were assumed to increase at 3.5 % per
annum.

Medical Costs — medical costs were assumed to increase at 12.5 % for 2003, 10.0 % for 2004, 7.5
% for 2005 and 5.0% thereafter.

Dental Costs — dental costs were assumed to increase at 4.5 % per year.
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

12.

13.

COMMITMENTS

The Company leases a computer system and related software and a business recovery site. Future
minimum lease payments consist of the following amounts over the next four years:

2005 $ 430
2006 430
2007 42
2008 42
$ 944
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its customers. However, the Company has a large
number of diverse customers minimizing concentration of credit risk.

Fair value

At December 31, 2004, the estimated fair market value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, due from related parties, accounts payable and other accrued liabilities was equal to the
book value given the short term nature of the items. As there is no secondary market for customer
deposits, the calculation of a fair value with appropriate reliability is impractical.

It is not practicable within the constraint of cost to determine the fair value of the debentures with
sufficient reliability. The fair value of the notes payable cannot be determined as the notes have no
specific repayment terms and no maturity dates.

Line of Credit

Guelph Hydro Electric Services Inc. has a $5,000 revolving demand facility by way of Royal Bank
prime loans at RBC prime less 0.5% or overdrafts at RBC prime less 0.5% or BAs with a fee of
1.25% per annum. There are no draws against this line.

Irrevocable letter of credit

As of May 1, 2002, in order for the Company to obtain the electricity it requires to distribute to its
customers, the Company was required to provide security to the Independent Electricity Market

Operator based on its estimated usage. The security obtained was in the form of an irrevocable
letter of credit from a financial institution. The Company’s maximum security is $22,000.
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
Pecember 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

14.

15.

16.

17.

CHANGES IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL COMPONENTS

2004 2003
Accounts receivable $ (3,691 $ 2,584
Accounts receivable - unbilled revenue (1,370) 1,073
Inventory 150 (171)
Due from related parties (1,750) (182)
Other current assets 162 (139)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,817 (1,192)
Income taxes payable 506 406
Deferred credits - accounts receivable (574) 1,773
Customer deposits - current portion 335 56

$ 4415 $ 4,208

SHARE CAPITAL

2004 2003

Authorized
Unlimited number of common shares

Issued
1,000 common shares $ 42,326 $ 42326

CONTINGENCY

An action claiming $500 million in restitutionary payments plus interest was served on Toronto Hydro
on November 18, 1998. The action was initiated against Toronto Hydro Electric Commission as the
representative of the Defendant Class consisting of all municipal electric utilities in Ontario, which have

charged Late Payment charges on overdue utility bills at any time after April 1, 1981.

The claim is that late payment penalties result in the municipal electric utilities receiving interest at
effective rates in excess of 60% per year, which is illegal under Section 347(1)(b) of the Criminal Code.

The action has not yet been certified as a plaintiff or defendant class action. At this time it is not
possible to quantify the effect, if any, on the financial statements of the Company.

FUTURE INCOME TAXES

If the liability method of accounting for income taxes were used, a future tax asset of $8,610 (2003 -
$7,088) would be recorded.
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GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2004
(in thousands of dollars)

18.

19.

GUARANTEES

The Company has a Connection and Cost Recovery Agreement with Hydro One Networks Inc.
(Networks) for the supply of two additional breaker positions at the Campbell transformer station. The
cost of the connection ($599) is a debt owed to Networks that will be forgiven provided that the
Company meets or exceeds the specific load requirements and the incremental transformation
connection revenue received by Networks. The Company expects to meet the conditions of the guarantee
and does not anticipate any payments to Networks.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has designed an addition to the Southgate building. The new wing will allow the
relocation of the Information Systems, Engineering, Finance, Customer Call Centre and Executive
employees and consolidate all Guelph Hydro Electric Inc. staff in one location. Construction of the $6.7
million addition is scheduled to begin in the spring of 2005 with completion in the spring of 2006.

On March 1, 2005, the Company entered in to a Connection and Cost Recovery Agreement with Hydro
One Networks Inc. (Networks) to install a new metalclad to the 2 existing idle windings at Cedar TS
(transformer station) with 8 new feeder positions. The cost of the connection ($4,039) is a debt owed to
Networks that will be forgiven provided that the Company meets or exceeds the specific load
requirements and the incremental transformer connection revenue received by Networks. The Company
expects to meet the conditions of the guarantee and does not anticipate any payments to Networks.
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KPMG LLP Telephone (519) 747-8800
Chartered Accountants Fax (5619) 747-8830
20 Erb Street West Internet www.kpmg.ca

Marsland Centre 3rd Floor
Waterloo ON N2L 1T2

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDER

We have audited the balance sheet of Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc. (the ‘Company”) as at
December 31, 2005 and the statements of earnings and retained earnings and cash flows for the year
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly the financial position of the Company as at
December 31, 2005 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

The comparative figures for December 31, 2004 were reported on by another firm of chartered
accountants.

L& 44P
bt

Chartered Accountants

Waterloo, Canada
March 6, 2006

KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership is the Canadian
member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.



GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Balance Sheet

December 31, 2005, with comparative figures for 2004
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

2005 2004
Assets
Current assets:
Cash $ 6,572 $ 18,721
Accounts receivable (note 2) 9,058 10,535
Unbilled revenue 12,248 14,003
Inventory 1,274 1,209
Income taxes recoverable 1,086 -
Due from related parties (note 9) - 2,814
Other current assets 262 143
30,500 47,425
Property, plant and equipment (note 3) 76,442 71,849
Regulatory assets (note 4) 3,644 702

3 110,586 $ 119,976

Liabilities and Shareholder’'s Equity

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 16,471 $ 13,143
Income taxes payable - 862
Deferred credits - account receivable 2,269 2,307
Customer deposits - current portion 1,278 1,075
Due to related parties (note 9) 546 -
Current portion of debentures (note 5) - 1,420
20,564 18,807
Long-term debt:
Notes payable (note 6) 36,642 36,642
Other long-term liabilities:
Employee future benefits (note 8) 7,342 6,889
Customer deposits - long-term portion 1,048 1,169
8,390 8,058
Shareholder's equity:
Share capital (note 12) 42,326 42,326
Retained earnings 2,664 14,143
44,990 56,469

Commitments (note 10)
Contingencies and guarantees (notes 13 and 15)
Subsequent events (note 16)

$ 110,586 $ 119,976

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
On behalf of the Board:

Director Director




GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Statement of Earnings and Retained Earnings

Year ended December 31, 2005, with comparative figures for 2004
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

2005 2004
Service revenue:
Residential $ 42,295 $ 34,894
General 88,514 74,104
Large user 21,453 18,303
Street lighting 618 569
152,880 127,870
Cost of power 132,980 108,050
19,900 19,820
Other operating revenue 1,887 1,493
Net operating revenue 21,787 21,313
Expenses:
Operations 793 824
Maintenance 1,643 1,722
General and administrative 3,574 2,968
Billing and collection 1,612 1,554
Information systems 1,150 1,277
Depreciation 4,944 5,002
13,716 13,347
Earnings before financial expenses and income taxes 8,071 7,966
Financial expenses:
interest on notes payable 2,438 1,771
Interest on debentures 106 316
Other 164 79
2,708 2,166
Earnings before provision for payments
in lieu of corporate taxes 5,363 5,800
Provision for payments in lieu of corporate taxes 1,142 2,559
Net earnings 4,221 3,241
Retained earnings, beginning of year 14,143 10,902
Dividends (15,700) -
Retained earnings, end of year 3 2,664 $ 14,143

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2005, with comparative figures for 2004
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

2005 2004
Cash provided by (applied to):
Operations:
Net earnings 4,221 $ 3,241
ltems not involving cash:
Depreciation 5,282 5,377
Difference between employee future benefit
expense and amount funded 453 490
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (43) -
Change in non-cash operating working capital 7,953 (4,415)
Net change in regulatory assets (2,942) 2,172
Net change in customer deposits — long-term portion (121) (44)
14,803 6,821
Investments:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (9,875) (5,238)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 43 -
(9,832) (5,238)
Financing:
Dividends (15,700) -
Debenture principal repaid (1,420) (3,055)
(17,120) (3,055)
Decrease in cash (12,149) (1,472)
Cash, beginning of year 18,721 20,193
Cash, end of year 6,572 3 18,721
Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid 2,681 $ 2,187
Payments in lieu of corporate taxes 2,487 2,043

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2005
{Expressed in thousands of dollars)

Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc. (the “Company”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guelph Hydro
inc., and was incorporated October 31, 2000, under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario). The

principal activity of the Company is to provide electrical power distribution throughout the City of
Guelph.

1. Significant accounting policies:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principies (GAAP) and policies as set forth in the Accounting Procedures Manual

issued by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) under the authority of the Ontario Energy Board Act,
1998:

(a) Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

(b) Regulation:

Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc. is regulated by the OEB and any rate adjustments require
OEB approval.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash equivalents include short-term investment with maturities of three months or less when
purchased.

{d) Revenue recognition:

Service revenue is recorded on the basis of regular meter readings and estimated customer
usage since the last meter reading date to the end of the year. The related cost of power is
recorded on the basis of power used.

(e) Inventory:

inventory is valued at the lower of cost and replacement cost, with cost being determined on
an average cost basis.



GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes fo Financial Statements, page 2

Year ended December 31, 2005
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(f)

Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost and are amortized on a straight-line basis
using the following rates:

Buildings and fixtures 30 - 60 years
Distribution lines 25 years
Distribution transformers 25 years
Distribution meters 25 years
General office equipment 5-10 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Major tools 10 years
Data acquisition system 5 years
Trucks and rolling stock 4 - 8 years
Other capital assets 10 - 25 years

Impairment of long-lived assets:

Long-lived assets are tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
when their carrying value exceeds the total undiscounted cash flows expected from their use
and eventual disposition. The amount of the impairment loss is determined as the excess of
the carrying value of the asset over its fair value.

(h) Contributions in aid of construction:

Contributions in aid of construction are recorded as an offset to capital assets. Capital
contributions for the year ended December 31, 2005 of $2,496 (2004 - $2,663) have been
charged to capital assets.

Regulatory assets:

Regulatory assets result from the provincially approved rates of the Ontario Energy Board and
represent differences between costs incurred and those collected through rates. Regulatory
assets on the balance sheet at year-end relate primarily to retail settlement variance accounts
and pre-market opening cost of power variances. These assets will be recognized for rate-
setting and financial statement purposes only o the extent aliowed by the regulator.

Employee future benefits:

The Company accrues its obligation under employee benefit plans and the related costs, net
of plan assets.



GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to Financial Statements, page 3

Year ended December 31, 2005
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(k) Payments in lieu of corporate taxes:

0

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Company is required to make payments in lieu of
corporate taxes to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation, for the period commencing
October 1, 2001. These payments are recorded in accordance with the rules for computing
income and taxable capital and other relevant amounts contained in the Income Tax Act
(Canada) and the Corporation Tax Act (Ontario) and modified by the Electricity Act, 1998, and
related regulations.

The Company, regulated by the Ontario Energy Board, provides for payments in lieu of
corporate income taxes using the taxes payable method instead of the liability method.

Under the taxes payable method, no provisions are made for future income taxes as a result
of temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for accounting purposes. Future income taxes are expected to be reflected in future
rates and, accordingly, are not recognized in the financial information.

Asset retirement obligations:

The Company recognizes the liability for an asset retirement that results from acquisition,
construction, development or normal operations. The liability for an asset retirement is initially
recorded at its fair value in the year in which it is incurred and when a reasonable estimate of
fair value can be made. The corresponding cost is capitalized as part of the related asset and
is amortized over the assets useful life. In subsequent years, the liability is adjusted for
changes resuiting from the passage of time and revisions to either the timing or the amount of
the original estimate of the undiscounted cash flows. The accretion of the liability to its fair
value as a result of the passage of time is charged to earnings.

2. Accounts receivable:

2005 2004
Revenue $ 9,830 $ 10,167
Miscellaneous (1,229) 201
Due from City of Guelph 576 355
9,177 10,723
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 119 188

$ 9,058 $ 10,535




GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to Financial Statements, page 4

Year ended December 31, 2005
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

3. Property, plant and equipment:

2005 2004
Accumulated Net book Net book
Cost amortization value value
Land $ 780 $ - $ 780 $ 780
Buildings and fixtures 9,909 1,168 8,741 8,914
Distribution lines
- overhead 25,777 6,344 19,433 19,130
Distribution lines
- underground 37,671 9,463 28,208 28,737
Distribution transformers 11,014 3,175 7,839 7,908
Distribution meters 5,865 1,554 4,311 4,109
General office equipment 385 288 97 132
Computer equipment 863 656 207 307
Major tools 523 274 249 408
Data acquisition system 1,625 1,404 221 404
Trucks and rolling stock 2,053 1,161 892 922
Other capital assets 483 238 245 98
Construction-in-progress 5,219 - 5,219 -

$ 102,167 $ 25,725 $ 76,442 $ 71,849

4. Regulatory assets:

The regulatory assets, as follows, arose as a resuilt of the rate-setting process:

2005 2004

Pre-market opening energy variance $ 816 $ 816
Retail settlement variance 2,828 (114)

$ 3,644 $ 702

Beginning April 1, 2004, the Minister of Energy allowed electricity distributors to recover the first
part of their regulatory assets in the 2004 rates. This recovery is for a portion of the Retail
settlement variance costs incurred by distributors from transmission utilities and the Independent
Electricity System Operator (IESQO). The recovery is for costs expensed in prior years as well as
costs included in regulatory assets. In 2005, the Company recovered $1,246, of which $959 was
a reduction of the regulatory assets and $287 was included in income. Regulatory asset accounts
are used to recover/collect amounts that have been under/over collected from customers through
electricity rates. The amount of any under/over collection will be adjusted through future rate
submissions.



GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to Financial Statements, page 5

Year ended December 31, 2005
{Expressed in thousands of dollars)

4. Regulatory assets (continued):

In 2005, the Ontario Energy Board awarded local distribution companies an increase in their
distribution rates which was to be invested in conservation and demand management (C&DM)
initiatives between April 2005 and September 2007. The amount of $1,157 was to be received by
Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc. starting in April 2005. At December 31, 2005, $867 of this
amount had been received, $258 was recognized as revenue since it had been spent on C&DM
initiatives and the balance of $609 has been included in regulatory assets. Management believes
that these unspent funds should not be recognized as revenue untii the C&DM performance
requirements are satisfied. For accounting purposes, this revenue has been deferred and will be
recognized in the same period the C&DM expenditures are incurred.

(a) 2006 rate application:

in August 2005, the Company filed with the OEB its Electricity Distribution Rate Application for
2006 distribution rates effective May 1, 2006. The 2006 Rate Application allows the Company
to earn a return on equity up to 9% after tax. A final decision from the OEB regarding the
2006 Rate Application is expected in April 2006.

(b) Impact of rate regulation on the financial statements:
(iy Pre-market opening energy electricity variance:

The $816 balance in the pre-market opening variance account represents the difference
between the cost of power based on time-of-use (TOU) rates, and the amounts billed to
non-TOU customers charged at an average rate for the same period starting January 1,
2001 and ending on April 30, 2002 (the date of opening of the competitive electricity
market in Ontario). The Company has deferred these expenditures in accordance with
the criteria set out in the Accounting Procedures Handbook for Electric Distribution
Utilities. In the absence of rate regulation these amounts would have been expensed
under the rules of Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).

(i) Final instalment of the market adjusted revenue requirement:

in 2005, the Company received approval from the OEB to increase distributions rates to
recover $1,157 representing the third and final adjustment necessary to achieve a
market-based rate of return. The OEB has imposed a condition that the funds are to be
spent on C&DM initiatives between April 2005 and September 2007. As at December 31,
2005, $609 had been received but not spent on C&DM initiatives. These funds have
been included in regulatory assets and will be recognized as revenue in the same period
in which the related C&DM expenditures are incurred. In the absence of rate regulation
these amounts would have been recognized as revenue in the same period that electrical
distribution services were provided to customers.



GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to Financial Statements, page 6

Year ended December 31, 2005
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

4. Regulatory assets (continued):
(c) Regulated asset recoveries:

Ontario’s local electricity distribution companies incurred a variety of costs in preparation for
the competitive market which opened in May 2002. In addition to these costs, they incurred
other costs associated with regulatory directives related to market restructuring and the
ongoing competitive market. All of these costs for retail setlements, power purchases and
market readiness were recorded in deferral accounts and are expected to be eligible for
recovery through rates in accordance with the OEB's review and audit guidelines and rate
setting procedures.

In August 2005, the Company filed an application with the OEB for review and recovery of its
regulatory assets. The OEB is reviewing the regulatory asset applications to ensure that the
claimed amounts are reasonable and related to serving customers. Amounts that the Board
finds to be prudently incurred will be recovered in distribution rates over three years. Final
recovery will commence May 1, 2006. These distributors will continue to collect the interim
recovery provision reflected in their rates.

5. Debentures:

2005 2004
Serial debenture, averaging 6.83%,
maturing in December 2005 $ - $ 1,420
Less principal due with one year - 1,420
$ - $ -

6. Notes payable:

Notes payable are due to the City of Guelph and bear interest at 7.25% the maximum recoverable
interest rate allowed to local distribution companies by the OEB.

To March 31, 2005, the Company paid interest at 4.83% based on having received 2/3 of the
allowed distribution rate increase. From April 1, 2005 to December 31, 2005, the Company paid

interest at 7.25% following the inclusion of the final portion of the allowed distribution rate
increase.

There are no principal repayment terms or specified maturity date.



GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to Financial Statements, page 7

Year ended December 31, 2005
{Expressed in thousands of dollars)

7. Pension agreement:

The Company provides a pension plan for its employees through the Ontario Municipal
Employees Retirement System (*OMERS”). OMERS is a multi-employer pension plan which
operates as the Ontario Municipal Employee Retirement Fund (the “Fund”) and provides pensions
for employees of Ontario municipalities, local boards, public utilities, and school boards. The
Fund is a contributory defined benefit pension plan, which is financed by equal contributions from
participating employers and employess, and by the investment earnings of the Fund. As the
Company is only liable for the contributions, defined contribution plan accounting has been used
by the Company. The Company’s contribution for employees’ current service for the year ended
December 31, 2005 was $386 (2004 - $410).

8. Employee future benefits:

The Company pays certain medical and life insurance benefits on behalf of its retired employees.
The Company recognizes these post-retirement costs in the period in which employees’ services
were rendered. The accrued benefit liability at December 31, 2005 of $7,342 (2004 - $6,889) and
the expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 was determined by actuarial valuation using a
discount rate of 5.0% (2004 - 5.5%).

information regarding the defined benefit plan of the Company is as follows:

2005 2004
Accrued benefit liability at January 1 $ 6,889 $ 6,399
Expense for the period ended December 31 630 664
Loss on accrued post-retirement benefit obligation - 16
Benefits paid for the period (177) (190)

Accrued benefit obligation at December 31 $ 7,342 $ 6,889




GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to Financial Statements, page 8

Year ended Decémber 31, 2005
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

8. Employee future benefits (continued):
The main actuarial assumptions utilized for the valuation are as follows:

General inflation - future general inflation levels, as measured by the changes in the Consumer
Price Index (CPl), were assumed at 2.0% in 2002, and thereafter.

Discount (interest) rate - the obligation as at January 1, 2002, of the present value of future
liabilities and the expense for the year ended December 31, 2005, were determined using a
discount rate of 5.0% (2004 - 5.5%).

Salary levels - future general salary and wage levels were assumed to increase at 3.1% (2004 -
3.5%) per annum.

Medical costs - medical costs were assumed to increase at 11% for 2006, 10% for 2007, 9% for
2008, 8% for 2009, 7% for 2010, 6% for 2011, and 5% thereafter.

Dental costs - dental costs were assumed to increase at 11% for 2006, 10% for 2007, 9% for
2008, 8% for 2009, 7% for 2010, 6% for 2011, and 5% thereafter.

9. Related party transactions:

The Company performs billing and collecting of revenues, building and maintenance of fixed
assets, payment of purchases and all related government remittances, engineering, information
services, and accounting, financial reporting and treasury for related parties. During the year, the
Company earned revenues of $262 related to these services.

Guelph Hydro Inc. (GHI), the Company's parent, provides overall business planning through its
Board of Directors and will negotiate on behalf of its subsidiaries other corporate programs such
as risk management. During the year, the Company incurred expenses of $21 related to these
services. The Company maintains its liability insurance through the Municipal Electric Association
Reciprocal Insurance Exchange (MEARIE). The name of the insured is GHI and the Company is
a named additional insured on the policy.

Amounts due from (to) related parties for transactions in the normal course of operations are as

follows:

2005 2004
Demand loan from Guelph Hydro Inc., bearing interest

at prime less 0.5%, with no fixed terms of repayment $ (3,068) $ -

Guelph Hydro Inc. 1,185 1,800
Ecotricity Guelph Inc. 69 12
Selectpower Inc. 381 282
Fibrewired By Guelph Hydro inc. - 565
Wellington Elecitric Distribution Company Inc. 887 155

$ (546) % 2,814




GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to Financial Statements, page 9

Year ended December 31, 2005
(Expressed in thousands of doliars)

10. Commitments:

1.

The Company leases a computer system and related software and a business recovery site.
Future commitments for lease payments consist of the following amounts over the next two years:

Leases

2005 $ 376
2006 91
3 467

Financial instruments:

(a)

()

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities:

As December 31, 2005, the estimated fair market value of cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, accounts payable and other accrued liabilities was equal to the book
value given the short-term nature of the items. As there is no secondary market for customer
deposits, the calculation of a fair value with appropriate reliability is impractical.

The fair value of the notes payable cannot be determined as the notes have no specific
repayment terms and no maturity dates.

Credit risk:

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its customers. However, the Company has a
large number of diverse customers minimizing concentration of credit risk.

Irrevocable letter of credit:

As of May 1, 2002, in order for the Company to obtain the electricity it requires to distribute to
its customers, the Company was required to provide security to the IESO based on its
estimated usage. The security obtained was in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit from
a financial institution. The Company’s maximum security is $22,000.



GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to Financial Statements, page 10

Year ended December 31, 2005
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

12. Share capital:

2005 2004
Authorized:
Unlimited number of common shares
Issued: .
1,000 common shares $ 42 326 $ 42 326

13. Contingencies:

14.

(a) An action claiming $500 million in restitutionary payments, plus interest, was served on
Toronto Hydro on November 18, 1998. The action was initiated against Toronto Hydro
Electric Commission as the representative of the defendant class consisting of all municipal
elective utilities in Ontario, which have charged late payment charges on overdue utility bills at
any time after April 1, 1981,

The claim is that late payment penalties result in the municipal electric utilities receiving
interest at effective rates in excess of 60% per year, which is illegal under Section 347(1)(b) of
the Criminai Code.

The action has not yet been certified as a plaintiff or defendant class action. At this time itis
not possible to quantify the effect, if any, on the financial statements of the Company.

(b) Guelph Hydro inc. has been named in a legal action as a result of an automobile accident.
where a streetlight was out at the time of the accident. The plaintiffs are suing the drivers of
the two vehicles involved in the accident, the Corporation of the City of Guelph and Guelph
Hydro Inc. for a total of $1,000,000.

Income taxes:
Future income taxes:

If the liability method of accounting for income taxes was used for rate-regulated subsidiaries, a
future tax asset of $8,726 (2004 - $8,610) would be recorded.

As prescribed by a regulatory rate order, tax expense is recovered through customer rates based
on the taxes payable method. Therefore, rates do not include the recovery of future income taxes
related to temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for accounting purposes. The Company has not recognized future income taxes, as itis
expected that when these amounts become payable, they will be recovered through future rate
revenues. Generally accepted accounting principles require the recognition of future income tax
liabilities and future tax assets in the absence of rate regulation.



GUELPH HYDRO ELECTRIC SYSTEMS INC.

Notes to Financial Statements, page 11

Year ended December 31, 2005
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

15.

16.

17.

Guarantees:

The Company has a Connection and Cost Recovery Agreement with Hydro One Networks Inc.
{("Networks") for the supply of two additional breaker positions at the Campbell transformer station.
The cost of the connection ($599) is a debt owed to Networks that will be forgiven provided that
the Company meets or exceeds the specific load requirement and the incremental transformation
connection revenue received by Networks. The Company expects to meet the conditions of the
guarantee and does not anticipate any payments to Nefworks.

The Company has another Connection and Cost Recovery Agreement with Networks to install a
new metal clad to the two existing idle windings at Cedar TS (iransformer station) with eight new
feeder positions. The cost of the connection ($4,039) is a debt owed to Networks that will be
forgiven provided that the Company meets or exceeds the specific load requirements and the
incremental transformer connection revenue received by Networks. The Company expects to
meet the conditions of the guarantee and does not anticipate any payments to Networks.

Subsequent events:

(i) In February 2008, the Company guaranteed lines of credit issued by Guelph Hydro Inc.
through a general security agreement on all property of the Company. The Company has
also guaranteed loans and lines of credit for Ecotricity Guelph inc. and Selectpower Inc. At
December 31, 2005, Ecatricity Guelph Inc. had a balance of $5,900 owing on its facilities. At
December 31, 2005, Selectpower Inc. had a nil balance.

(i) Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc. (GHESI) and Wellington Electric Distribution Company
(WEDCO) have applied for and have been granted permission to merge. The merger is
effective March 31, 2006. The merged company will carry on business under the name of
Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc. The merger will reduce regulatory filing requirements and
provide economies of scale.

Comparative figures:

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current financial statement
presentation.
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Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of
Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc.

We have audited the balance sheet of Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc. (the
Company) as at December 31, 2001 and the statements of loss and deficit, and cash flows for the
year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2001 and the results of its operations and its cash

flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.
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Chartered Accountants

March 12, 2002

Deloitte
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Balance Sheet

December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars)

2001 2000
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash on hand and in bank $ 900 § 828
Accounts receivable (Note 3) 167 173
Accounts receivable - unbilled revenue 73 68
Income taxes receivable 9 -
Inventory 15 7
Development charge deposits - 44
Other current assets 2 10
1,166 1,130
FIXED ASSETS (Note 4) 1,134 1,202
DEFERRED CHARGES 73 101
$ 2,373 $ 2,433
LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accruals $ 174 § 257
Deferred credits - accounts receivable 4 4
Customer deposits - current portion 14 8
Due to related parties (Note 7) 18 7
Development charge fund 44 44
254 326
LONG-TERM DEBT
Notes payable (Note 5) 1,048 1,048
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Customer deposits - long-term portion 32 25
32 25
1,334 1,393
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital (Note 1 and Note 8) 1,048 1,048
Deficit 9) (8)
1,039 1,040
$ 2,373 $ 2,433
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Statement of Loss and Deficit

Year ended December 31, 2001

(With Comparative Figures for the Two Months Ended December 31, 2000)
(in thousands of dollars)

2001 2000
(2 months)
SERVICE REVENUE
Residential $ 985 $ 166
General 292 52
Street lighting 13 2
1,290 220
COST OF POWER 1,009 200
GROSS MARGIN ON SERVICE REVENUE 281 20
OTHER OPERATING REVENUE 88 18
NET OPERATING REVENUE 369 38
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM EXPENSE
Maintenance 66 4
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE
General administrative 121 15
Billing and collecting 63 10
Community relations 5 2
DEPRECIATION 91 15
TOTAL EXPENSES 346 46
INCOME BEFORE FINANCIAL EXPENSE 23 (8)
FINANCIAL EXPENSE
Interest on notes payable (21) -
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAXES 2 8)
INCOME TAXES 3 -
NET LOSS 1) ®)
DEFICIT, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 8 -
DEFICIT, END OF PERIOD $ ) $ ®
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2001

(With Comparative Figures for the Two Months Ended December 31, 2000)
(in thousands of dollars)

2001 2000
(2 months)
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss $ @ $ )
Add charges to operations not requiring a current payment
Depreciation and amortization 123 15
122 7
Net change in non-cash working capital
balances related to operations (Note 9) (25) 50
Net change in deferred charges and other
deferred liabilities 2) (2)
95 55
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to fixed assets (23) -
23) -
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash and cash equivalents transferred in on startup
- from Township of Guelph/Eramosa Hydro-Electric Commission - 688
- from The Board of Light and Heat Commissioners City of Guelph - 2,000
- paid to the Township of Guelph/Eramosa - (1,915)
- 773
INCREASE IN CASH 72 828
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 828 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD $ 900 $ 828
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOWS
Interest paid $ 21 $ -
Payment for income taxes $ 12 $ -
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 WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars)

1. INCORPORATION AND ORGANIZATION

On October 31, 2000 Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc. (the Company) was
incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario). Wellington Electric Distribution
Company Inc. continues the former Eramosa Hydro’s business of distributing electricity in
Village of Rockwood.

Guelph City Council approved a by-law effective November 1, 2000, merging certain assets
and businesses of the former Board of Light and Heat Commission of the City of Guelph and
Guelph-Eramosa Hydro-Electric Commission (Eramosa Hydro) into the Wellington Electric
Distribution Company Inc, which is a subsidiary of Guelph Hydro Inc., which itself is wholly-
owned by the Corporation of the City of Guelph.

The Company has issued to the City of Guelph (the City) common shares valued at $1,048
and notes payable valued at $1,048 as consideration for the transfer of assets as described in
the above by-law.

Certain regulations of section 93 of the Electricity Act 1998 (Ontario), if enacted, will permit
the assets transferred to be adjusted to reflect fair market value. It is anticipated that this
adjustment will take place at either the date of the transfer of assets (November 1, 2000) or
the date of market opening. The adjustment will result in the issuance of further debt and
equity as consideration at the ratio stipulated in the transfer by-law.

The incorporation and subsequent reorganization was required by provisions of Bill 35, The
Energy Competition Act, 1998 enacted by the Province of Ontario to introduce competition
in the electricity market.

Net assets transferred to the Company may be summarized as follows:

Assets
Current ‘ $ 2,002
Other 101
2,103
Liabilities
Current 7
Net assets $ 2,096
Fmanced by
Long-term debt $ 1,048
Share capital issued 1,048
$ 2,09
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' WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars)

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles for
municipal electrical utilities in Ontario as required by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) and
reflect the following policies as set forth in the OEB’s Accounting Procedures Handbook.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Due to the
inherent uncertainty in making estimates, actual results could differ from those estimates.
Regulation
The Corporation is regulated by the OEB and any rate adjustments require OEB approval.
Cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances with banks and investments
in money market instruments, with a term to maturity of 90 days or less at acquisition.
Investing and financing activities that do not require the use of cash or cash equivalents are
excluded from the Cash Flow Statement and disclosed separately.

Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and replacement cost. Cost is determined on an
average cost basis.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are recorded at cost. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
useful service life as follows:

Distribution station 30 years
Distribution lines 25 years
Distribution transformers 25 years
Distribution meters 25 years
General office equipment 10 years
Computer equipment 5 years
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| WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Contributions in aid of construction

Contributions in aid of construction are recorded as an offset to capital assets. Capital
contributions for year ended December 31, 2001 of Nil (2000 - $Nil) have been charged to
capital assets.

Deferred charges

Deferred charges are recorded at cost and are amortized over a period of 36 months commencing
January 1, 2001.

Payment in lieu of income taxes

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Corporation is required to make payments-in-lieu of
corporate taxes to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (OEFC), for the period
commencing October 1, 2001. These payments are recorded in accordance with the rules
for computing income and taxable capital and other relevant amounts contained in the
Income Tax Act (Canada) and the Corporation Tax Act (Ontario) and modified by the
Electricity Act, 1998, and related regulations.

The Corporation, regulated by the Ontario Energy Board, provides for payments-in-lieu of
corporate income taxes using the taxes payable method instead of the liability method.

Under the taxes payable method, no provisions are made for future income taxes as a result
of temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for accounting purposes. Future income taxes are expected to be reflected in
future rates and, accordingly, are not recognized in the financial information.

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2001 2000
Revenue $ 133 $ 155
Miscellaneous 39 20
172 175
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 5 2

$ 167 $ 173
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' WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars)

4. FIXED ASSETS

2001 2000
Accumulated Net Book Net Book

Cost Depreciation Value Value
Distribution station $ 224 § 12 $ 212 $ 222
Distribution lines - overhead 185 16 169 181
Distribution lines - underground 534 50 484 524
Distribution transformers 213 17 196 209
Distribution meters 74 6 68 64
Computer and office equipment 7 2 5 2

$ 1,237 $ 103 § 1,134 § 1,202

Capital assets of $23 (2000 - $1,214) have been recorded as additions during the year.
5. NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable are due to the City of Guelph and bear interest at 7.25% phased in over a
three year period, beginning March 2001. No principal payments will be required in

perpetuity.
6. PENSION AGREEMENT

The Company and its employees contribute to the Ontario Municipal Employees’
Retirement System (OMERS), a defined benefit pension plan for the employees of Ontario
municipalities. The Company’s contribution for employees’ current service for the year
ended December 31, 2001 was $Nil (2000 - $Nil). No premiums were paid by the
employer due to the approved OMERS premium holiday.
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~ WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars)

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc., a subsidiary of the parent company performs billing and
collecting of revenues, building and maintenance of fixed assets, payment of purchases and all
related government remittances, engineering, information services, and accounting, financial
reporting and treasury for related parties.

Guelph Hydro Inc. (GHI), the Company’s parent, provides overall business planning
through its Board of Directors’ and will negotiate on behalf of its subsidiaries other
corporate programs such as risk management. The Company maintains its liability
insurance through the Municipal Electric Association Reciprocal Insurance Exchange. The
name of the insured is GHI and the Company is a named additional insured on the policy.

Amounts due from (to) related parties at December 31, 2001 for transactions in the normal
course of operations are as follows:

2001 2000
Due to Guelph Hydro Inc. (parent company) $ 4 $ 2
Due to Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc.
(subsidiary of parent company) 14 5

8. SHARE CAPITAL

2001 2000
Authorized
Unlimited number of common shares
Issued
1,000,000 common shares $ 1,048 $ 1,048
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| WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars)

9. CHANGES IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL COMPONENTS

2001 2000

Accounts receivable $ 9 $ (37
Accounts receivable - unbilled revenue 5) (16)
Income taxes receivable )] -
Inventory ®) )
Other current items 52 &)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (82) 100
Customer deposits - current portion 6 1
Due to related parties 11 7

$ (25) $ 50

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its customers. However, the Company has a
large number of diverse customers minimizing concentration of credit risk.

Fair value

At December 31, 2001, the estimated fair market value of short-term investments, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and other accrued expenses was equal to the book value given
the short term nature of the items. As there is no secondary market for customer deposits, the
calculation of a fair value with appropriate reliability is impractical.
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- WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2001
(in thousands of dollars)

11.

12.

13.

14.

CONTINGENCY

A class action claiming $500 million in restitutionary payments plus interest was served on
Toronto Hydro on November 18, 1999. The action was initiated against Toronto Hydro Electric
Commission as the representative of the Defendant Class consisting of all municipal electric
utilities in Ontario, which have charged Late Payment charges on overdue utility bills at any
time after April 1, 1981.

The claim is that late payment penalties result in the municipal electric utilities receiving interest
at effective rates in excess of 60% per year, which is illegal under Section 347(1)(b) of the
Criminal Code.

The Municipal Electric Association is undertaking the defence of this class action. At this time
it is not possible to quantify the effect, if any, on the financial statements of the Company.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Government of Ontario has announced that the electricity market will open to
competition on May 1, 2002. The Company has expended significant resources in
preparation for market opening and expects to function efficiently in the new market.

Beginning May 1, 2002, in order for the Company to obtain the electricity it requires to
distribute to its customers, the Company must provide security for Independent Electricity
Market Operator (IMO) based on its usage. The security required can take several forms
(1.e. credit rating, monetary payment and years of good payment history). The Company’s
maximum security is $100. The Company is currently under negotiation to purchase a
financial instrument to provide the security required by the IMO.

FUTURE INCOMES TAXES

If the liability method of accounting for income taxes were used, a future tax asset of $70
would be recorded.

COMPARATIVE BALANCES

Certain comparative balances for 2000 have been reclassified to conform to the presentation
adopted for the 2001 fiscal year.
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Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of
Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc.

We have audited the balance sheet of Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc. (the
Company) as at December 31, 2002 and the statements of income and retained earnings, and cash
flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2002 and the results of its operations and its cash

flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

kﬂ&*’;\ &M P
Chartered Accountants

April 4, 2002

Deloitte
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

2002 2001
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash on hand and in bank $ 1,104 $ 900
Accounts receivable (Note 3) 54 167
Accounts receivable - unbilled revenue 225 73
Income taxes receivable - 9
Inventory 7 15
Other current assets 3 2
1,393 1,166
FIXED ASSETS (Note 4) 1,063 1,134
REGULATORY ASSETS (Note 5) 85 -
DEFERRED CHARGES 41 73
$ 2,582 $ 2373
LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accruals $ 180 $ 174
Income taxes payable 32 -
Deferred credits - accounts receivable 13 4
Customer deposits - current portion 12 14
Due to related parties (Note 8) 152 18
Development charge fund 44 44
433 254
LONG-TERM DEBT
Notes payable (Note 6) 1,048 1,048
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Customer deposits - long-term portion 28 32
28 32
1,509 1,334
CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 12)
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital (Note 9) 1,048 1,048
Retained earnings (deficit) 25 9
1,073 1,039
$ 2,582 $ 2,373
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Statement of Income and Retained Earnings
Year ended December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

2002 2001

SERVICE REVENUE

Residential $ 1,184 $ 985

General 332 292

Street lighting 13 13

1,529 1,290

COST OF POWER 1,115 1,009
GROSS MARGIN ON SERVICE REVENUE 414 281
OTHER OPERATING REVENUE 59 88
NET OPERATING REVENUE 473 369
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM EXPENSE

Maintenance 66 66
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

General administrative 119 121

Billing and collecting 52 63

Community relations 5 5
DEPRECIATION 91 91
TOTAL EXPENSES 333 346
INCOME BEFORE FINANCIAL EXPENSE 140 23
FINANCIAL EXPENSE

Interest on notes payable 46 21
INCOME BEFORE TAXES 94 2
INCOME TAXES 60 3
NET INCOME (LOSS) 34 (1)
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 9) ®)
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR $ 25 $ )]

Page 2 of 10



WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

2002 2001
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss) $ 34 $ ¢y
Add charges to operations not requiring a current payment
Depreciation and amortization 124 123
158 122
~ Net change in non-cash working capital
balances related to operations (Note 10) 146 (25)
Net change in regulatory assets (85) -
Net change in deferred charges and other deferred liabilities 5 )
224 95
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to fixed assets (20) (23)
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 204 72
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 900 828
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 1,104 $ 900
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOWS
Interest paid $ 46 $ 21
Payment for income taxes $ 28 $ 12
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc. a subsidiary of Guelph Hydro Inc., which
itself is wholly-owned by the Corporation of the City of Guelph (the Company) was
incorporated October 31, 2000 under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario).

The principal business activity of the Company is to provide electrical power distribution in
the Village of Rockwood.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and policies as set forth in the Accounting Procedures Manual

issued by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) under the authority of the Ontario Energy Board
Act, 1998:

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Due to the
inherent uncertainty in making estimates, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Regulation
The Corporation is regulated by the OEB and any rate adjustments require OEB approval.

Revenue recognition

Service revenue is recorded on the basis of regular meter readings and estimated customer

usage since the last meter reading date to the end of the year. The related cost of power is
recorded on the basis of power used.

Cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances with banks and investments
in money market instruments, with a term to maturity of 90 days or less at acquisition.
Investing and financing activities that do not require the use of cash or cash equivalents are
excluded from the Cash Flow Statement and disclosed separately.
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cbntinued)
Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and replacement cost. Cost is determined on an
average cost basis.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are recorded at cost. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
useful service life as follows:

Distribution station 30 years
Distribution lines 25 years
Distribution transformers 25 years
Distribution meters 25 years
General office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment S years

Contributions in aid of construction

Contributions in aid of construction are recorded as an offset to capital assets. Capital
contributions for year ended December 31, 2002 of $Nil (2001 - $Nil) have been charged to
capital assets.

Deferred charges

Deferred charges are recorded at cost and are amortized over a period of 36 months
commencing January 1, 2001.

Regulatory assets

Regulatory assets result from the provincially approved rate of the Ontario Electricity
Board and represent differences between costs incurred and those collected through rates.
Regulatory assets on the balance sheet at year-end relate primarily to retail settlement
variance accounts and pre-market opening cost of power variances. These assets will be
recognized for rate-setting and financial statement purposes only to the extent allowed by
the regulator.
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Payment in lieu of income taxes

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Corporation is required to make payments-in-lieu of
corporate taxes to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation, for the period commencing
October 1, 2001. These payments are recorded in accordance with the rules for computing
income and taxable capital and other relevant amounts contained in the Income Tax Act
(Canada) and the Corporation Tax Act (Ontario) and modified by the Electricity Act, 1998,
and related regulations.

The Corporation, regulated by the Ontario Energy Board, provides for payments-in-lieu of
corporate income taxes using the taxes payable method instead of the liability method.

Under the taxes payable method, no provisions are made for future income taxes as a result
of temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for accounting purposes. Future income taxes are expected to be reflected in
future rates and, accordingly, are not recognized in the financial information.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2002 2001
Revenue $ 58 % 133
Miscellaneous 3 39
61 172
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 7 5
54 167
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

4. FIXED ASSETS

2002 2001
Accumulated NetBook Net Book

Cost Depreciation Value Value
Distribution station $ 224 $ 23 0§ 201 $ 212
Distribution lines - overhead 186 30 156 169
Distribution lines - underground 552 28 524 484
Distribution transformers 213 98 115 196
Distribution meters 74 10 64 68
Computer and office equipment 7 4 3 5
$ 125 $ 193 $ 1,063 $ 1,134

S. REGULATORY ASSETS

The regulatory assets, as follow, arose as a result of the rate-setting process:

2002 2001

Pre-market opening energy variance $ 31 $ -
Retail settlement variance 54 -
$ 85 $ -

The introduction of Bill 210 in November 2002 has deferred future rate increases until 2006.
Management believes that it is probable that regulatory assets will be recovered through
future rates, although uncertainty has been heightened with current legislation, Bill 210.
Management has performed an analysis of the impact on future rates and is confident that
future rate increases will be sufficient to realize all of these costs. If in a future decision, the

regulator determines that the existing regulatory treatment is no longer acceptable, the
regulatory assets would be charged to operations.

6. NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable are due to the City of Guelph and bear interest at 4.83% (2001 — 2.42%). No
principal payments will be required in perpetuity.

Page 7 of 10



WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

7. PENSION AGREEMENT

The Company provides a pension plan for its employees through the Ontario Municipal
Employees Retirement System (“OMERS”). OMERS is a multi-employer pension plan
which operates as the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund (“the Fund”) and
provides pensions for employees of Ontario municipalities, local boards, public utilities, and
school boards. The Fund is a contributory defined benefit pension plan, which is financed by
equal contributions from participating employers and employees, and by the investment
earnings of the Fund. As the Company is only liable for the contributions, defined
contribution plan accounting is used by the Company. The Company’s contribution for
employees’ current service for the year ended December 31, 2002 was $Nil (2001 - $Nil). No
premiums were paid, by the employer or employees due to the legislated OMERS premium
holiday which is in effect until December 31, 2002.

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc., a subsidiary of the parent company performs billing and
collecting of revenues, building and maintenance of fixed assets, payment of purchases and all
related government remittances, engineering, information services, and accounting, financial
reporting and treasury for related parties.

Guelph Hydro Inc. (GHI), the Company’s parent, provides overall business planning
through its Board of Directors’ and will negotiate on behalf of its subsidiaries other
corporate programs such as risk management. The Company maintains its liability
insurance through the Municipal Electric Association Reciprocal Insurance Exchange. The
name of the insured is GHI and the Company is a named additional insured on the policy.

Amounts due to related parties for transactions in the normal course of operations are as

follows:
2002 2001
Due to Guelph Hydro Inc. (parent company) $ 12 $ 4
Due to Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc.
(subsidiary of parent company) 140 14

$ 152 $ 18
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

9. SHARE CAPITAL

2002 2001
Authorized
Unlimited number of common shares
Issued
1,000,000 common shares $ 1,048 $ 1,048

10. CHANGES IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL COMPONENTS

2002 2001
Accounts receivable $ 113 $ 9
Accounts receivable - unbilled revenue (152) 5)
Income taxes receivabke 41 )]
Inventory 7 8)
Other current items @ 52
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 6 (82)
Customer deposits - current portion &) 6
Due to related parties 134 11

$ 146 $ 25)

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its customers. However, the Company has a
large number of diverse customers minimizing concentration of credit risk.

Fair value

At December 31, 2002, the estimated fair market value of short-term investments, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and other accrued expenses was equal to the book value given
the short term nature of the items. As there is no secondary market for customer deposits, the

calculation of a fair value with appropriate reliability is impractical.

It is not practicable within the constraint of cost to determine the fair value of long-term debt
with sufficient reliability.
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2002
(in thousands of dollars)

11.

12.

13.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Irrevocable letter of credit

As of May 1, 2002, in order for the Company to obtain the electricity it requires to distribute to
its customers, the Company was required to provide security to Independent Electricity Market
Operators based on its estimated usage. The security obtained was in the form of an irrevocable
letter of credit from a financial institution. The Company’s maximum security is $100.

CONTINGENCIES

A class action claiming $500 million in restitutionary payments plus interest was served on
Toronto Hydro on November 18, 1999. The action was initiated against Toronto Hydro Electric
Commission as the representative of the Defendant Class consisting of all municipal electric
utilities in Ontario, which have charged Late Payment charges on overdue utility bills at any
time after April 1, 1981.

The claim is that late payment penalties result in the municipal electric utilities receiving interest
at effective rates in excess of 60% per year, which is illegal under Section 347(1)(b) of the
Criminal Code.

The Municipal Electric Association is undertaking the defence of this class action. At this time
it is not possible to quantify the effect, if any, on the financial statements of the Company.

On March 12, 2003 a Hydro One 44,000 volt phase conductor contacted the company's phase
conductor. This placed a high voltage surge on customers connected to the distribution phase
resulting in damage to customers electrical equipment. Customers have filed an insurance claim
and these have been forwarded to Hydro One, the liable party. In management's judgment, no
financial loss will result as a result of this incident.

FUTURE INCOMES TAXES

If the liability method of accounting for income taxes were used, a future tax asset of $34
(2001 - $70) would be recorded.
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
55 King Street West
Suite 700

Kitchener ON N2G 4W1
Canada

Tel: (519) 576-0880
Fax: (519) 576-0209
www.deloitte.ca

Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholder of
Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc.

We have audited the balance sheet of Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc. (the Company) as at
December 31, 2003 and the statements of loss and deficit and of cash flows for the year then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the

Company as at December 31, 2003 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

”\,\
Y Y

J"_/ {Q/’

/} { ( é‘}

Chartered Accountants

April 2, 2004

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

2003 2002
ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash : $ 1,014 $ 1,104
Accounts receivable (Note 3) 154 54
Accounts receivable - unbilled revenue 111 225
Income taxes receivable 29 -
Inventory 5 7
Other current assets 5 3
1,318 1,393
FIXED ASSETS (Note 4) 1,618 1,063
REGULATORY ASSETS (Note 5) 86 85
DEFERRED CHARGES - 41
$ 2422 $ 2,582
LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 141 $ 180
Income taxes payable - 32
Deferred credits - accounts receivable 12 13
Customer deposits - current portion 15 12
Due to related parties (Note 8) 125 152
Development charge fund 44 44
337 433
LONG-TERM DEBT
Notes payable (Note 6) 1,048 1,048
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITY
Customer deposits 28 28
1,413 1,509
CONTINGENCIES (Note 12)
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital (Note 9) 1,048 1,048
Retained earnings (deficit) 39) 25
1,009 1,073
$ 2422 $ 2,582

APPROVED BY THE BOARD

................................ Director

................................ Director
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Statement of Loss and Deficit

Year ended December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

2003 2002

SERVICE REVENUE

Residential $ 1,273 $ 1,184

General 339 332

Street lighting 16 13

1,628 1,529

COST OF POWER 1,208 1,115
GROSS MARGIN ON SERVICE REVENUE 420 414
OTHER OPERATING REVENUE 70 59
NET OPERATING REVENUE 490 473
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM EXPENSE

Maintenance 70 66
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

General administrative 206 121

Billing and collecting 115 49

Community relations 4 5
DEPRECIATION 92 91
TOTAL EXPENSES 487 332
INCOME BEFORE FINANCIAL EXPENSE AND INCOME TAXES 3 141
FINANCIAL EXPENSE

Interest on notes payable 52 47
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES (49) 94
INCOME TAXES 15 60
NET INCOME (LLOSS) 64) 34
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT), BEGINNING-OF YEAR 25 9
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR $ 3% $ 25
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

2003 2002
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss) $ (64) 3 34
Add charges to operations not requiring a current payment
Depreciation and amortization 133 124
69 158
Net change in non-cash working capital
balances related to operations (Note 10) (114) 146
Net change in regulatory assets @ (85)
Net change in customer deposits 3 5
43) 224
INVESTING ACTIVITY
Additions to fixed assets 47) 20)
NET 'INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 90) 204
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,104 900
CASH, END OF YEAR $ 1,014 § 1,104
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOWS
Interest paid $ 52 $ 46
Payment for income taxes $ 76 $ 28
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc., a subsidiary of Guelph Hydro Inc., was incorporated
on October 31, 2000 under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario).

The principal business activity of the Company is to provide electrical power distribution in the
Village of Rockwood.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and policies as set forth in the Accounting Procedures Manual issued
by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) under the authority of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998.
Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Due to the inherent uncertainty in making estimates, actual results could
differ from those estimates.
Regulation
The Corporation is regulated by the OEB and any rate adjustments require OEB approval.
Revenue recognition
Service revenue is recorded on the basis of regular meter readings and estimated customer usage
since the last meter reading date to the end of the year. The related cost of power is recorded on
the basis of power used.

Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and replacement cost. Cost is determined on an average cost
basis.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful
service life as follows:

Distribution station 30 years
Distribution lines 25 years
Distribution transformers 25 years
Distribution meters 25 years
General office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 5 years
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY IN C.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Contributions in aid of construction

Contributions in aid of construction are recorded as an offset to capital assets. Capital contributions
for the year ended December 31, 2003 of $93 (2002 - $Nil) have been charged to capital assets.

Deferred charges

Deferred charges are recorded at cost and have been amortized over a period of 36 months ending
in 2003.

Regulatory assets

Regulatory assets result from the provincially approved rate of the Ontario Electricity Board and
represent differences between costs incurred and those collected through rates. Regulatory assets
on the balance sheet at year-end relate primarily to retail settlement variance accounts and pre-
market opening cost of power variances. These assets will be recognized for rate-setting and
financial statement purposes only to the extent allowed by the regulator.

Payment in lieu of income taxes

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Corporation is required to make payments-in-lieu of corporate
taxes to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation, for the period commencing October 1, 2001.
These payments are recorded in accordance with the rules for computing income and taxable
capital and other relevant amounts contained in the Income Tax Act (Canada) and the Corporation
Tax Act (Ontario) and modified by the Electricity Act, 1998, and related regulations,

The Corporation, regulated by the Ontario Energy Board, provides for payments-in-lieu of
corporate income taxes using the taxes payable method instead of the liability method.

Under the taxes payable method, no provisions are made for future income taxes as a result of
temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
accounting purposes. Future income taxes are expected to be reflected in future rates and,
accordingly, are not recognized in the financial information.
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2003 2002
Revenue $ 162 $ 58
Miscellaneous 4 3
166 61
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 12 7
$ 154 $ 54
4. FIXED ASSETS
2003 2002
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Depreciation Value Value
Distribution station $ 224 $ 33 $ 191 3 201
Distribution lines - overhead 202 42 160 158
Distribution lines - underground 584 146 438 454
Distribution transformers 213 44 169 183
Distribution meters 74 16 58 63
Computer and office equipment 7 5 2 4
$ 1,304 $ 286 $ 1,018 $ 1,063

REGULATORY ASSETS

7

The regulatory assets, as follow, arose as a result of the rate-setting process:

2003 2002
' Pre-market opening energy variance $ 31 $ 31
Retail settlement variance 55 54
$ 86 $ 85

The introduction of Bill 210 in November 2002 deferred future rate increases until 2006. However,
in December 2003, Bill 4 was introduced which allows for the application to the OEB for possible
recovery of these costs.

6. NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable are due to the City of Guelph and bear interest at 4.83% (2002 — 4.83%). No
principal payments will be required in perpetuity.
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPA
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

7.  PENSION AGREEMENT

The Company provides a pension plan for its employees through the Ontario Municipal Employees
Retirement System (“OMERS”). OMERS is a multi-employer pension plan which operates as the
Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund (“the Fund”) and provides pensions for employees
of Ontario municipalities, local boards, public utilities, and school boards. The Fund is a
contributory defined benefit pension plan, which is financed by equal contributions from
participating employers and employees, and by the investment earnings of the Fund. As the
Company is only liable for the contributions, defined contribution plan accounting is used by the
Company. The Company’s contribution for employees’ current service for the year ended
December 31, 2003 was $1 (2002 - $Nil). Premiums paid by the employer and employees in 2003
were at a reduced rate beginning January 2003, following a premium holiday.

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc., a sister company, performs billing and collecting of revenues,
building and maintenance of fixed assets, payment of purchases and all related government
remittances, engineering, information services, and accounting, financial reporting and treasury for
related parties.

Guelph Hydro Inc. (GHI), the Company’s parent, provides overall business planning through its
Board of Directors and negotiates on behalf of its subsidiaries for corporate programs such as risk
management. The Company maintains its liability insurance through the Municipal Electric
Association Reciprocal Insurance Exchange (MEARIE). The name of the insured is GHI and the
Company is a named additional insured on the policy.

Amounts due from (to) related parties for transactions in the normal course of operations are as

follows:

2003 2002
Due from FibreWired Inc. (sister company) $ 4) $ -
Due to Guelph Hydro Inc. 17 12
Due to Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc. 112 140

$ 125 $ 152
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

10.

11.

SHARE CAPITAL
2003 2002
Authorized
Unlimited number of common shares
Issued
1,000,000 common shares $ 1,048 $ 1,048

CHANGES IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL COMPONENTS

2003 2002
Accounts receivable and other $ 102 $ 112
Accounts receivable - unbilled revenue 114 (152)
Income taxes receivable/payable (61) 41
Inventory 2 7
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (39) 6
Deferred credits - accounts receivable 1 3
Due to related parties 27 134

$ (114 3 146

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its customers. However, the Company has a large
number of diverse customers minimizing concentration of credit risk.

Fair value

At December 31, 2003, the estimated fair market value of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable
and accrued liabilities was equal to the book value given the short term nature of the items. As there
is no secondary market for customer deposits, the calculation of a fair value with appropriate
reliability is impractical.

The fair value of the notes payable cannot be determined as the notes have no specified repayment
terms and no maturity date.
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2003
(in thousands of dollars)

11.

12.

13.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Irrevocable letter of credit

As of May 1, 2002, in order for the Company to obtain the electricity it requires to distribute to its
customers, the Company was required to provide security to the Independent Electricity Market Operator
based on its estimated usage. The security obtained was in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit
from a financial institution. The Company’s maximum security is $100. '

CONTINGENCIES

A class action claiming $500 million in restitutionary payments plus interest was served on Toronto
Hydro on November 18, 1999. The action was initiated against Toronto Hydro Electric Commission as
the representative of the Defendant Class consisting of all municipal electric utilities in Ontario, which
have charged Late Payment charges on overdue utility bills at any time after April 1, 1981.

The claim is that late payment penalties result in the municipal electric utilities receiving interest at
effective rates in excess of 60% per year, which is illegal under Section 347(1)(b) of the Criminal Code.

The Electricity Distributors Associations (formerly the Municipal Electric Association) is undertaking
the defence of this class action. At this time it is not possible to quantify the effect, if any, on the
financial staternents of the Company.

On March 12, 2003 a Hydro One 44,000 volt phase conductor contacted the Company's phase
conductor. This placed a high voltage surge on customers connected to the distribution phase resulting
in damage to customers’ electrical equipment. Customers have filed an insurance claim which has been
forwarded to Hydro One, the liable party. In management's judgment, no financial loss will result as a
result of this incident.

FUTURE INCOMES TAXES

If the liability method of accounting for income taxes were used, a future tax asset of $60 (2002 - $34)
would be recorded.
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D e I o itte Deloitte & Touc‘.:helI LLP

4210 King Street East
Kitchener ON N2P 2G5
Canada :

Tel: (519) 650-7600
Fax: (519) 650-7601
www.deloitte.ca

Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholder of
Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc.

We have audited the balance sheet of Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc. (the Company) as at
December 31, 2004 and the statements of loss and deficit and of cash flows for the year then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at December 31, 2004 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Dﬂx Uﬁ/m C(¥

Chartered Accountants

April 22, 2005

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

2004 2003

ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash $ 1,158 $ 1,014
Accounts receivable (Note 4) 58 154
Accounts receivable - unbilled revenue 224 C111
Income taxes receivable 21 29
Inventory 4 5
Other 1 5
1,466 1,318
FIXED ASSETS (Note 5) 1,055 1,018
REGULATORY ASSETS (Note 6) 126 86
$ 2,647 $ 2,422
LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 302 $ 141
Deferred credits - accounts receivable 28 12
Customer deposits - current portion 17 15
Due to related parties (Note 9) 180 125
Development charge fund 44 44
571 337
LONG-TERM DEBT
Notes payable (Note 7) 1,048 1,048
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Customer deposits - long-term portion 11 28
1,630 1,413
CONTINGENCY (Note 13)
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital (Note 10) 1,048 1,048
Deficit 3D 39)
1,017 1,009

$ 2,647 § 2422

APPROVED BY THE BOARD
....................................... Director

....................................... Director
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Statement of Loss and Deficit
Year ended December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

2004 2003
SERVICE REVENUE
Residential $ 1,204 $§ 1,273
General 321 339
Street lighting 15 16
1,540 1,628
COST OF POWER 1,105 1,208
GROSS MARGIN ON SERVICE REVENUE 435 420
OTHER OPERATING REVENUE 70 70
NET OPERATING REVENUE 505 490
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM EXPENSE
Maintenance 56 70
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE
General administrative 204 206
Billing and collecting 110 115
Community relations 2 4
DEPRECIATION 72 92
444 487
INCOME BEFORE FINANCIAL EXPENSE AND INCOME TAXES 61 3
FINANCIAL EXPENSE
Interest on notes payable 53 52
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES 8 (49)
INCOME TAXES - 15
NET INCOME (LLOSS) 8 (64)
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 39 25
DEFICIT, END OF YEAR $ 31 $ 39

Page 2 of 10



WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

2003

2004
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss) $ 8 $- (64
Add charges to operations not requiring a current payment
Depreciation and amortization 72 133
80 69
Net change in non-cash working capital
balances related to operations (Note 11) 228 (114)
Net change in regulatory assets 40) 1)
Net change customer deposits (16) 3
252 43)
INVESTING ACTIVITY
Additions to fixed assets (108) “n
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 144 (90)
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,014 1,104
CASH, END OF YEAR $ 1,158 $ 1,014
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOWS
Interest paid $ 51 $ 52
Payment for income taxes $ 32 $ 76
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc. (the Company), a subsidiary of Guelph Hydro Inc.,
was incorporated on October 31, 2000 under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario).

The principal business activity of the Company is to provide electrical power distribution’ in the
Village of Rockwood.

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Impairment of long-lived assets

As of January 1, 2004, the Company prospectively adopted the recommendations of CICA
Handbook Section 3063 “Impairment of long-lived assets”. These recommendations require that
an impairment loss on long-lived assets to be held and used be recognized when their carrying
value exceeds the total undiscounted cash flows expected from their use and eventual
disposition. The amount of the impairment loss is determined as the excess of the carrying value
of the asset over its fair value. The adoption of these recommendations had no impact on the
results of operations for 2004.

Asset retirement obligations

On January 1, 2004, the Company adopted the recommendations of CICA Handbook Section
3110 “Asset retirement obligations”. The standard provides guidance for the recognition,
measurement and disclosure of liabilities for asset retirement obligations. Basically, the liability
represents the fair value of the obligations. The corresponding cost is capitalized as part of the
related asset and is amortized over the asset’s useful life. The adoption of these
recommendations had no impact on the results of operations for 2004.

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and policies as set forth in the Accounting Procedures Manual
issued by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) under the authority of the Ontario Energy Board Act,
1998.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Due to the inherent uncertainty in making estimates, actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Regulation

The Corporation is regulated by the OEB and any rate adjustments require OEB approval.
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Service revenue is recorded on the basis of regular meter readings and estimated customer usage
since the last meter reading date to the end of the year. The related cost of power is recorded on
the basis of power used.

Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and replacement cost. Cost is determined on an average
cost basis.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful
service life as follows:

Distribution station 30 years
Distribution lines 25 years
Distribution transformers 25 years
Distribution meters 25 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 5 years

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets are tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
when their carrying value exceeds the total undiscounted cash flows expected from their use and
eventual disposition. The amount of the impairment loss is determined as the excess of the
carrying value of the asset over its fair value.

Contributions in aid of construction

Contributions in aid of construction are recorded as an offset to capital assets. Capital
contributions for the year ended December 31, 2004 of $211 (2003 - $93) have been charged to
capital assets.

Deferred charges

Deferred charges are recorded at cost and have been amortized over a period of 36 months
ending in 2003.
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Regulatory assets

Regulatory assets result from the provincially approved rate of the Ontario Electricity Board and
represent differences between costs incurred and those collected through rates. Regulatory
assets on the balance sheet at year-end relate primarily to retail settlement variance accounts and
pre-market opening cost of power variances. These assets will be recognized for rate-setting and
financial statement purposes only to the extent allowed by the regulator.

Payment in lieu of income taxes

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Corporation is required to make payments-in-lieu of
corporate taxes to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation, for the period commencing
October 1, 2001. These payments are recorded in accordance with the rules for computing
income and taxable capital and other relevant amounts contained in the Income Tax Act (Canada)
and the Corporation Tax Act (Ontario) and modified by the Electricity Act, 1998, and related
regulations.

The Corporation, regulated by the Ontario Energy Board, provides for payments-in-lieu of
corporate income taxes using the taxes payable method instead of the liability method.

Under the taxes payable method, no provisions are made for future income taxes as a result of
temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for accounting purposes. Future income taxes are expected to be reflected in future rates and,
accordingly, are not recognized in the financial information.

Asset retirement obligations

The Company recognizes the liability for an asset retirement that results from acquisition,
construction, development or normal operations. The liability for an asset retirement is initially
recorded at its fair value in the year in which it is incurred and when a reasonable estimate of fair
value can be made. The corresponding cost is capitalized as part of the related asset and is
amortized over the asset’s useful life. In subsequent years, the liability is adjusted for changes
resulting from the passage of time and revisions to either the timing or the amount of the original
estimate of the undiscounted cash flows. The accretion of the liability to its fair value as a result
of the passage of time is charged to earnings.
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2004 2003
Revenue $ 76 $ 162
Miscellaneous 3 4
79 166
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 21 12
$ 58 $ 154
5. FIXED ASSETS

2004 2003
Accumulated Net Book Net Book

Cost Depreciation Value Value
Distribution station $ 224 $ 44 $ 180 $ 191
Distribution lines - overhead 271 59 212 160
Distribution lines - underground 625 171 454 438
Distribution transformers 213 58 155 169
Distribution meters 74 21 53 58
Computer and office equipment 7 6 1 2
$ 1414 $ 359 $ 1,055 $ 1,018

6. REGULATORY ASSETS

The regulatory assets, as follow, arose as a result of the rate-setting process:

2004 2003
Pre-market opening energy variance $ 31 $ 31
Retail settlement variance 95 55
$ 126 $ 86

Beginning April 1, 2004, the Minister of Energy allowed electricity distributors to recover the first
part of their regulatory assets in the 2004 rates. This recovery is for a portion of the Retail
Settlement Variance costs incurred by distributors from transmission utilities and the Independent
Electricity System Operator JESO). The recovery is for costs expensed in prior years as well as
costs included in regulatory assets. In 2004, the Company recovered $20 of which $16 was a
reduction of the regulatory assets and $4 was included in income. The remainder of the Retail
Settlement Variance and the pre-market opening costs that are approved will be recovered over a
four-year period.
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

7. NOTESPAYABLE

Notes payable are due to the City of Guelph and bear interest at 4.83% (2003 - 4.83%). No
principal payments will be required in perpetuity.

8. PENSION AGREEMENT

The Company provides a pension plan for its employees through the Ontario Municipal
Employees Retirement System (“OMERS”). OMERS is a multi-employer pension plan which
operates as the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund (“the Fund”) and provides
pensions for employees of Ontario municipalities, local boards, public utilities, and school
boards. The Fund is a contributory defined benefit pension plan, which is financed by equal
contributions from participating employers and employees, and by the investment earnings of the
Fund. As the Company is only liable for the contributions, defined contribution plan accounting
is used by the Company. The Company’s contribution for employees’ current service for the year
ended December 31, 2004 was $3 (2003 - $1). Premiums paid by the employer and employees in
2003 were at a reduced rate beginning January 2003, following a premium holiday.

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc., a sister company, performs billing and collecting of revenues,
building and maintenance of fixed assets, payment of purchases and all related government
remittances, engineering, information services, and accounting, financial reporting and treasury for
related parties. During the year, the Company incurred expenses of $129 for these services.

Guelph Hydro Inc. (GHI), the Company’s parent, provides overall business planning through its
Board of Directors and negotiates on behalf of its subsidiaries for corporate programs such as risk
management. During the year, the Company incurred expenses of $18 for these services. The
Company maintains its liability insurance through the Municipal Electric Association Reciprocal
Insurance Exchange (MEARIE). The name of the insured is GHI and the Company is a named
additional insured on the policy.

Amounts due from (to) related parties for transactions in the normal course of operations are as

follows:

2004 2003
Due to (from) FibreWired Inc. (sister company) $ 1 $ @)
Due to Selectpower Inc. (sister company) 6 -
Due to Guelph Hydro Inc. 18 17
Due to Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc. 155 112

$ 180 $ 125
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

10. SHARE CAPITAL

2004 2003
Authorized
Unlimited number of common shares
Issued
1,000,000 common shares $ 1,048 ) 1,048

11.. CHANGES IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL COMPONENTS

2004 2003
Accounts receivable $ 96 $ (100)
Accounts receivable - unbilled revenue (113) 114
Income taxes receivable 8 (61)
Inventory 1 2
Other current assets 4 )
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 161 39
Deferred credits - accounts receivable 16 (D
Due to related parties 55 27

$ 228 $ (114)

12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its customers. However, the Company has a large
number of diverse customers minimizing concentration of credit risk.

Fair value

At December 31, 2004, the estimated fair market value of cash, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities was equal to the book value given the short-term nature of the items.
As there is no secondary market for customer deposits, the calculation of a fair value with

appropriate reliability is impractical.

The fair value of the notes payable cannot be determined as the notes have no specified repayment
terms and no maturity date.
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WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2004
(in thousands of dollars)

12.

13.

14.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Irrevocable letter of credit

As of May 1, 2002, in order for the Company to obtain the electricity it requires to distribute to
its customers, the Company was required to provide security to the Independent Electricity
System Operator based on its estimated usage. The security obtained is in the form of a $90
irrevocable letter of credit from a financial institution.

CONTINGENCY

An action claiming $500 million in restitutionary payments plus interest was served on Toronto
Hydro on November 18, 1999. The action was initiated against Toronto Hydro Electric
Commission as the representative of the Defendant Class consisting of all municipal electric
utilities in Ontario, which have charged Late Payment charges on overdue utility bills at any time
after April 1, 1981.

The claim is that late payment penalties result in the municipal electric utilities receiving interest at
effective rates in excess of 60% per year, which is illegal under Section 347(1)(b) of the Criminal

Code.

The action has not yet been certified as either a plaintiff or defendant class action. At this time it is not
possible to quantify the effect, if any, on the financial statements of the Company.

FUTURE INCOMES TAXES

If the liability method of accounting for income taxes were used, a future tax asset of $66 (2003 -
$68) would be recorded.
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KPMG LLP Telephone (519) 747-8800
Chartered Accountants Fax (519) 747-8830
20 Erb Street West Internet www.kpmg.ca

Marsland Centre 3rd Floor
Waterloo ON N2L 172

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDER

We have audited the balance sheet of Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc. (the “Company”)
as at December 31, 2005 and the statements of loss and deficit and cash flows for the year then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly the financial position of the Company as at
December 31, 2005 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

The comparative figures for December 31, 2004 were reported on by another firm of chartered
accountants.

Khns 44°
it

Chartered Accountants

Waterloo, Canada
March 10, 2006

KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership is the Canadian
member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.



WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Balance Sheet
(In thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2005, with comparative figures for 2004

2005 2004
Assets
Current assets:
Cash 942 $ 1,158
Accounts receivable (note 2) 378 58
Accounts receivable - unbilled revenue 114 224
Income tax recoverable 10 21
Inventory ~ 3 4
Other 2 1
1,449 1,466
Property, plant and equipment (note 3) 1,219 1,055
Regulatory assets (note 4) 117 126
2,785 $ 2,647
Liabilities and Shareholder’s Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 413 $ 302
Deferred credits - accounts receivable 18 28
Customer deposits - current portion 24 17
Due to related parties (note 7) 911 180
Development charge fund 44 44
1,407 571
Long-term debt:
Notes payable (note 5) 1,048 1,048
Other long-term liabilities:
Customer deposits - long-term portion 9 11
Shareholder’s equity:
Share capital (note 9) 1,048 1,048
Deficit (727) 31
321 1,017
Contingency (note 10)
2,785 $ 2,647

On behalf of the Board:

Director

Director




WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Statement of Loss and Deficit
{In thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2005

2005 2004
Service revenue:

Residential $ 1,545 1,204

General 431 321

Street lighting 7 15

1,983 1,540
Cost of power 1,555 1,105
Gross margin on service revenue 428 435
Other operating revenue 75 70
Net operating revenue 503 505
Expenses:

Operations 35 35

Maintenance 44 21

General and administrative 231 206

Billing and collection 93 110

Depreciation 98 72

501 444
Income before financial expense and provision
for payments in lieu of corporate taxes 2 61
Financial expense:

Interest on notes payable 53 53
Income (loss) before provision for payments in lieu of corporate taxes (51) 8
Provision for payments in lieu of corporate taxes 5 -
Net earnings (loss) (46) 8
Deficit, beginning of the year 31 (39)
Dividends (650) -
Deficit, end of year $ (727) (31)




WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Statement of Cash Flows
(In thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2005

2005 2004
Cash provided by (applied to):
Operations:

Net earnings (loss) $ (46) 8

Add charges to operations not requiring a current payment

Depreciation 98 72

Change in non-cash operating working capital:

Balances related to operations 630 228
Net change in regulatory assets 9 (40)
Net change customer deposits 5 (16)
696 252
Financing:

Dividends {650) -
Investing:

Additions to property, plant and equipment (262) (108)
Increase (decrease) in cash (216) 144
Cash, beginning of year 1,158 1,014
Cash, end of year $ 942 1,158
Supplemental cash flow information:

Interest paid $ 51 51

Income taxes paid 9 32




WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
(in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2005

Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc. (“the Company”), a subsidiary of Guelph Hydro Inc., was
incorporated October 31, 2000 under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario). The principal activity
of the Company is to provide electrical power distribution throughout the Village of Rockwood.

1. Significant accounting policies:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
principles (GAAP) and policies as set forth in the Accounting Procedures Manual issued by the
Ontario Energy Board (OEB) under the authority of the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998:

(a) Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

{b) Regulation:

Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc. is regulated by the OEB and any rate
adjustments require OEB approval.

(c) Revenue recognition:

Service revenue is recorded on the basis of regular meter readings and estimated customer
usage since the last meter reading date to the end of the year. The related cost of power is
recorded on the basis of power used.

(d) Inventory:

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and replacement cost, with cost being determined on
average cost basis.



WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to Financial Statements, page 2
{(In thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2005

1.

Significant accounting policies {continued):

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

U]

Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Property, plant and equipment are
amortized on a straight-line basis using the following rates:

Distribution station 30 years
Distribution lines 25 years
Distribution transformers 25 years
Distribution meters 25 years
General office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 5 years

Impairment of long-lived assets:

Long-lived assets are tested recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
when their carrying value exceeds the total undiscounted cash flows expected from their use
and eventual disposition. The amount of the impairment loss is determined as the excess of
the carrying value of the asset over its fair value.

Contributions in aid of construction:

Contributions in aid of construction are recorded as an offset to capital assets. Capital
contributions for the year ended December 31, 2005 of $619 (2004 - $211) have been
charged to capital assets.

Regulatory assets:

Regulatory assets result from the provincially approved rates of the Ontario Energy Board and
represent differences between costs incurred and those collected through rates. Regulatory
assets on the balance sheet at year-end relate primarily {o retail settlement variance accounts
and pre-market opening cost of power variances. These assets will be recognized for rate-
setting and financial statement purposes only to the extent allowed by the regulator.

Employee future benefits:

The Company accrues its obligation under employee benefit plans and the related costs, net
of plan assets.



WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to Financial Statements, page 3
(In thousands of doliars)

Year ended December 31, 2005

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

i)

(k)

Payment in lieu of income taxes:

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Company is required to make payments-in-lieu of
corporate taxes to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation, for the period commencing
October 1, 2001. These payments are recorded in accordance with the rules for computing
income and taxable capital and other relevant amounts contained in the Income Tax Act
(Canada) and the Corporation Tax Act (Ontario) and modified by the Electricity Act, 1998, and
related regulations.

The Company, regulated by the Ontario Energy Board, provides for payments-in-lieu of
corporate income taxes using the taxes payable method instead of the liability method.

Under the taxes payable method, no provisions are made for future income taxes as a result
of temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for accounting purposes. Future income taxes are expected to be reflected in future
rates and, accordingly, are not recognized in the financial information.

Asset retirement obligations:

The Company recognizes the liability for an asset retirement that resuits from acquisition,
construction, development or normal operations. The liability for an asset retirement is initially
recorded at its fair value in the year in which it is incurred and when a reasonable estimate of
fair value can be made. The corresponding cost is capitalized as part of the related asset and
is amortized over the assets useful life. In subsequent years, the liability is adjusted for
changes resulting from the passage of time and revisions to either the timing or the amount of
the original estimate of the undiscounted cash flows. The accretion of the iiability to it's fair
value as a result of the passage of time is charged to earnings.

2. Accounts receivable:

2005 2004

Revenue $ 141 $ 76
Miscellaneous 263 3
404 79

Less allowance for doubtful accounts 26 21

$ 378 ) 58




WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to Financial Statements, page 4

(in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2005

3. Property, plant and equipment:

2005 2004
Accumulated Net book Net book
Cost amortization value value
Distribution station $ 224 $ 54 $ 170 180
Distribution lines
- overhead 273 76 197 212
Distribution lines
- underground 696 217 479 454
Distribution transformers 275 72 203 185
Distribution meters 201 31 170 53
Computer and
office equipment 7 7 - 1
3 1,676 3 457 3 1,219 1,055
4, Regulatory assets:
The regulatory assets, as foilows, arose as a result of the rate-setting process:
2005 2004
Pre-market opening energy variance $ 31 31
Retail settlement variance 86 95
$ 117 126

Beginning Aprit 1, 2004, the Minister of Energy allowed electricity distributors o recover the first

part of their regulatory assets in the 2004 rates.

This recovery is for a portion of the Retail

setflement variance costs incurred by distributors from transmission utilities and the Independent
Electricity System Operator (IESO). The recovery is for costs expensed in prior years as well as
costs included in regulatory assets. In 2005, the Company recovered $26 of which $20 was a
reduction of the regulatory assets and $6 was included in income. The remainder of the Retail
Settlement Variance and the pre-market opening costs that are approved will be recovered over a

four-year period.



WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to Financial Statements, page b
(In thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2005

4, Regulatory assets (continued):

In 2005, the Ontario Energy Board awarded local distribution companies an increase in their
distribution rates which was to be invested in conservation and demand management (C&DM)
initiatives between April 2005 and September 2007. The amount of $24 was to be received by
Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc. starting in April 2005. At December 31, 2005, $16
of this amount had been received, $2 was recognized as revenue since it had been spent on
C&DM initiatives and the balance of $14 has been included in regulatory assets. Management
believes that these unspent funds should not be recognized as revenue until the C&DM
performance requirements are satisfied. For accounting purposes, this revenue has been
deferred and will be recognized in the same period the C&DM expenditures are incurred.

(a) 2006 rate application:

In October 2005, the Company filed with the OEB its Electricity Distribution Rate Application
for 2006 distribution rates effective May 1, 2006. The 2006 Rate Application allows the
Company to earn a return on equity up to 9% after tax. A final decision from the OEB
regarding the 2008 Rate Application is expected in April 2006.

(b) Impact of rate regulation on the financial statements:
(i) Pre-market opening energy electricity variance:

The $31 balance in the pre-market opening variance account represents the difference
between the cost of power based on time-of-use (TOU) rates, and the amounts billed to
non-TOU customers charged at an average rate for the same period starting January 1,
2001 and ending on April 30, 2002 (the date of opening of the competitive electricity
market in Ontario). The Company has deferred these expenditures in accordance with
the criteria set out in the Accounting Procedures Handbook for Electric Distribution
Utilities. In the absence of rate regulation, these amounts would have been expensed
under the rules of Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).

(i) Final instalment of the Market Adjusted Revenue Requirement:

In 2005, the Company received approval from the OEB to increase distribution rates to
recover $24 representing the third and final adjustment necessary to achieve a market-
based rate of return. The OEB has imposed a condition that the funds are to be spent on
initiatives between April 2005 and September 2007. As at December 31, 2005, $14 had
been received but not spent on C&DM initiatives. These funds have been included in
regulatory assets and will be recognized as revenue in the same period in which the
related C&DM expenditures are incurred. In the absence of rate regulation, these
amounts would have been recognized as revenue in the same period that electrical
distribution services were provided to customers.



WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to Financial Statements, page 6
(In thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2005

4. Regulatory assets (continued):

(c) Ontario’s local electricity distribution companies incurred a variety of costs in preparation for
the competitive market which opened in May 2002. In addition to these costs, they incurred
other costs associated with regulatory directives related to market restructuring and the
ongoing competitive market. All of these costs for retail settlements, power purchases and
market readiness were recorded in deferral accounts and are expected to be eligible for
recovery through rates in accordance with the OEB's review and audit guidelines and rate
setting procedures.

In October 2005, the Company filed an application with the OEB for review and recovery of its
regulatory assets. The OEB is reviewing the regulatory asset applications to ensure that the
claimed amounts are reasonable and related to serving customers. Amounts that the Board
finds to be prudently incurred will be recovered in distribution rates over three years. Final
recovery will commence May 1, 2006. These distributors will continue to collect the interim
recovery provision reflected in their rates.

5. Notes payable:

Notes payable are due to the City of Guelph and bear interest at 4.83% (2004 - 4.83%). No
principal payments will be required in perpetuity.

Pension agreement:

The Company provides a pension plan for its employees through the Ontarioc Municipal
Employees Retirement System (“OMERS”). OMERS is a multi-employer pension plan which
operates as the Ontario Municipal Employee Retirement Fund (the “Fund”) and provides pensions
for employees of Ontario municipalities, local boards, public utilities, and school boards. The
Fund is a contributory defined benefit pension plan, which is financed by equal contributions from
participating employers and employees, and by the investment earnings of the Fund. As the
Company is only liable for the contributions, defined contribution plan accounting has been used
by the Company. The Company’s contribution for employees’ current service for the year ended
December 31, 2005 was $3 (2004 - $3).



WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to Financial Statements, page 7
(in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2005

7. Related party transactions:

Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc., a sister company, performs billing and collecting of revenues,
building and maintenance of fixed assets, payment of purchases and all related government
remittances, engineering, information services, and accounting, financial reporting and treasury
for related parties. During the year, the Company incurred expenses of $129 for these services.

Guelph Hydro Inc. (GHI), the Company’s parent, provides overall business planning through its
Board of Directors and negotiates on behalf of its subsidiaries for corporate programs such as risk
management. During the year, the Company incurred expenses of $18 for these services. The
Company maintains its liability insurance through the Municipal Electric Association Reciprocal
insurance Exchange (MEARIE). The name of the insured is GHI and the Company is a named
additional insured on the policy.

Amounts due to related parties for transactions in the normal course of operations are as follows:

2005 2004

Due to Fibre Wired Inc. (sister company) $ - $ &)
Due to Selectpower Inc. (sister company) (8) (6)
Due to Guelph Hydro Inc. (parent company) (18) (18)
Due to Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc. (sister company) (887) (155)
$ (911) $ (180)

Financial instruments:
(a) Credit risk:

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its customers. However, the Company has a
large number of diverse customers minimizing concentration of credit risk.

(b) Fair value:

As December 31, 2005, the estimated fair market value of cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, accounts payable and other accrued liabilities was equal to the book
value given the short-term nature of the items. As there is no secondary market for customer
deposits, the calculation of a fair value with appropriate reliability is impractical.

The fair value of the notes payable cannot be determined as the notes have no specific
repayment terms and no maturity date.

(c) Irrevocable letter of credit:

As of May 1, 2002, in order for the Company fo obtain the electricity it requires to distribute to
its customers, the Company was required to provide security to the Independent Electricity
System Operator based on its estimated usage. The security was in the form of an

irrevocable letter of credit from a financial institution. The Company's maximum security is
$90.



WELLINGTON ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION COMPANY INC.

Notes to Financial Statements, page 8
(In thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2005

9.

10.

11.

12.

Share capital:

2005 2004
Authorized:
Unlimited number of common shares
Issued:
100,000 common shares 3 1,048 $ 1,048

Contingency:

An action claiming $500 million in restitutionary payments plus interest was served on Toronto
Hydro on November 18, 1999. The action was initiated against Toronto Hydro Electric
Commission as the representative of the Defendant Class consisting of all municipal elective
utiliies in Ontario, which have charged late payment charges on overdue utility bills at any time
after April 1, 1981.

The claim is that late payment penalties result in the municipal electric utilities receiving interest at
effective rates in excess of 60% per year, which is illegal under Section 347(1)(b) of the Criminal
Code.

The action has not yet been certified as a plaintiff or defendant class action. At this time it is not
possible to quantify the effect, if any, on the financial statements of the Company.

Income taxes:

if the liability method of accounting for income taxes were used for rate-regulated subsidiaries, a
future tax asset of $86 (2004 - $66) would be recorded.

As prescribed by a regulatory rate order, income tax expense is recovered through customer rates
based on the taxes payable method. Therefore, rates do not include the recovery of future income
taxes related to temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for accounting purposes. The Company has not recognized future income
taxes, as it is expected that when these amounts become payable, they will be recovered through
future rate revenues. Generally accepted accounting principles require the recognition of future
income tax liabilities and future tax assets in the absence of rate regulation.

Subsequent events:

Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc. (GHESI) and Wellington Electric Distribution Company
(WEDCO) have applied for and been granted permission to merge. The merger is effective
March 31, 2006. The merged company will carry on business under the name of Guelph Hydro

Electric Systems Inc. The merger will reduce regulatory filing requirements and provide
economies of scale.
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Residential Program —
Residential and Small Commercial Demand Response Initiativ®chedule “B-3”

To Master CDM Program Agreement
RESIDENTIAL AND SMALL COMMERCIAL DEMAND RESPONSE 2011 - 2014
RECITALS:

1. The Initiative in this Schedule is the Residential and IS @ammercial Demand
Response Initiative (thdritiative "), and this Schedule is an Initiative Schedule.

2. The LDC has Registered for the Residential Prograntfandhitiative in this Schedule is
a Registered Initiative.

3. The objectives of the Initiative are to enhance tliab#ity of the IESO-Controlled Grid
by accessing and aggregating specified residential and ssinathercial end uses for the
purpose of load reduction, increasing consumer awarengiss ahportance of reducing
summer demand and providing consumers their current elgctdonsumption and
associated cost.

4. To accomplish the above objectives, the Initiative wilbvide Participants with Load
Control Devices and Customer Information Displaysatum for permitting the OPA
and/or LDC to control the demand associated with sigecénd uses. Prior Participants
and Continuing Participants will also be offered a Custdmfermation Display if they
agree to sign the (new) Participant Agreement whichsuilersede the (old) participant
agreement under the Prior Program. This Initiative @istudes service, repair and
replacement of Load Control Devices and Continuing Loawi@| Devices.

5. The LDCs, through their relationship with Residential a8dall Commercial
Distribution Consumers, will encourage such Distribut@mnsumers to participate in
this Initiative, and install and maintain Load Control @egi and In-Home Displays.

ARTICLE 1
INTERPRETATION

1.1 Definitions

In this Schedule, capitalized terms that are not otiserdefined in this Schedule shall have the
respective meanings attributed to them in the Master Agreeand the following terms shall
have the following meanings in this Schedule:

“Activation Period” means the period of time during which Curtailment is teuoc
specified in the LDC Activation Notice.

“Aggregation Operator” means the Person(s) providing Aggregation Services to the
OPA.

Initiative Schedule B-3 (Residential and Small Commercial Demand Response Initiative 2011-2014) 1



“Aggregation Services”means the services required to effect Load Contrdload
Control Devices including receiving instructions from thepatsh Administrator.

“Business Houtf means any 60 minute period occurring between 7:00 and 21:00 hours
on a Business Day.

“Continuing Participant” means a participant of a Prior Program whose partitipa
agreement from such Prior Program continues to beffette For clarity, after a
Continuing Participant enters into a (new) Particip#greement, he or she is
subsequently referred to as a “Participant”.

“Continuing Load Control Device’ means a Load Control Device provided to a
Continuing Participant under the Prior Program.

“Control Systeni means each of (i) the Cooper Power Systems (preyidusiwn as
Canon Technologies Yukon®) load control management softwWarehe Comverge
PowerCAMP" load control management software; and (i) TantZlulet System, and
such additional systems designated by the OPA fromtbrtiene.

“Curtailment ” means the exercise of Load Control.

“Customer Information Display” means a device and associated technology that is
capable, at a minimum, of retrieving and displaying eseohabst and electricity usage
information. An example for a Customer Informatioisfay is an in-home display.

“Device Removal / Deactivation Repoftmeans the report required pursuant to Section
5.2.

“Dispatch Administrator” means the Person who provides Dispatch Services to the
OPA.

“Dispatch Service$ means services required to effect Load Control of Loadtl
Devices in the service areas of one or more Locatibigton Companies, including that
of the LDC, whether directly or through an Aggregatigperator.

“Eligibility Criteria " has the meaning provided in Exhibit “A”.
“Eligible End Use Appliance”is an appliance identified in Section 2 of Exhibit “A”.
“Eligible Person” means a Person that satisfies the criteria in @edtof Exhibit “A”.

“Grouping” means the Load Control Devices and Continuing LoadiiGbBevices in a
defined geographic region within an LDC'’s service area.

“Initiative ” has the meaning provided in Recital 1 to this Schedule.

“LDC Activation Notice” is the notice provided by the LDC pursuant to Stage Three
Exhibit “F”.
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“Load Control” means the ability to control and dispatch the elattralemand of one
or more Eligible End Use Appliances through a Load @bmevice connected to such
appliance(s) during a given period.

“Load Control Device” means a device, including in the form of a relay-basattiswr
programmable thermostat, installed at a premise and ctmth& one or more Eligible
End Use Appliances for the purpose of Load Control theafgble of receiving a signal
dispatched to control the appliance(s) to which it isneated.

“Opt Out Request” means a request by a Participant, made in writing, byhetepor
via the internet, prior to the commencement of thevAtbn Period requesting that Load
Control in respect of a Load Control Device locatedsapiemises not be initiated for a
defined period, such period not to exceed 48 hours.

“Participant Agreement’ means the agreement in the form of Exhibit “B”, pursuant
which the Participant agrees to participate in this liga

“Participant” means a Person who has satisfied the Eligibiliite@a, has agreed to the
Participant Agreement, which has not been terminated, v@aho has not issued a
Termination Request.

“Prior Participant” means a participant from a Prior Program where th#icgzant
agreement for that participant under the Prior Programo inger in effect. For clarity,
after a Prior Participant enters into a (new) Pipaict Agreement, he or she is
subsequently referred to as a “Participant”.

“Prior Program” means (A) the residential and small commercial demasgonse
programs offered pursuant to (i) a Master CDM Program égent between the LDC
and the OPA in 2007 (the actual date varies by LDC), anth¢f Amended and Restated
Master CDM Agreement between the LDC and the OPA daseoff January 31, 2008,
for certainty, as amended and extended to August 31, 2011; and g4Bplicable, a
residential and/or small commercial demand response grofrnded by third tranche
CDM spending during the period from 2005 to 2008.

“Project Completion Report” means the report required pursuant to Section 5.1.
“Schedulé means this Schedule “B-3” and the exhibits attached teret

“Small Commercial Distribution Consumer” means a Distribution Consumer whose
account with the LDC has the service classificatiBerieral Service less than 50 kw” or
the equivalent.

“Termination Request” means a request made in writing or by telephone by a

Participant that Load Control in respect of a Loaaht@d Device located at its premises
cease permanently.
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1.2 Section References

Unless otherwise indicated, any reference in this Sclettulan article, section, subsection,
paragraph or Exhibit refers to the article, section, ettin, paragraph of or exhibit to this
Schedule.

1.3  Exhibits

The following exhibits are hereby attached to and inc@ted into and are to be read together
with this Schedule and shall form part of this Schedule:

Exhibit “A” — Eligibility Criteria
Exhibit “B” —Participant Agreement

Exhibit “C” - Load Control Device and Customer InformatDisplay Functional
Requirements

Exhibit “D” - Project Completion Report

Exhibit “E” — Device Removal / Deactivation Report
Exhibit “F’ — LDC Initiated DR Curtailment Protocol

ARTICLE 2
GENERAL OBLIGATIONS

2.1 LDC General Obligations

For the purposes of implementing and managing the Initjativeaddition to the other
obligations set forth in the Master Agreement and thise8gle, the LDC’s obligations are as
follows:

(a) identifying and recruiting Residential Distribution Consusneand Small
Commercial Distribution Consumers to participate in lthigative, including but
not limited to, through local marketing activities;

(b) assisting Residential Distribution Consumers and S@athmercial Distribution
Consumers to understand the Initiative and the Eligiiititeria; and

(©) assisting Residential Distribution Consumers and S@athmercial Distribution
Consumers with technical or other related inquiries amdptaints in respect of
the Initiative.
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2.2  OPA General Obligations

For the purposes of implementing the Initiative and supmpttie LDC’s obligations in respect
of the Initiative, in addition to the other obligatiosst forth in the Master Agreement and this
Schedule, the OPA'’s obligations are as follows:

(@) providing guidelines for the functions to be performed bg #ggregation
Operator(s) and Dispatch Administrator;

(b) ensuring that the Aggregation Operator(s) and Dispatch Asimator complete
their respective obligations set forth in this Schedule;

(c) responding to all inquiries and complaints regardingAtgregation Operator(s)
and Dispatch Administrator;

(d) assisting the LDC, when reasonably requested by such Libihwhe context of
each of the LDC’s and OPA'’s respective roles in delngethe Initiative, in the
LDC'’s response to the inquiries and complaints receivem the Distribution
Consumers relating to or arising out of the Initiativepvated that the LDC
remains responsible for dealing with such inquiries or d¢aims; and

(e) directing all Distribution Consumer inquiries and compgkarelating to or arising
out of the Initiative in respect of the LDC’s servigea (except if such inquiries
and complaints relate to the Aggregation Operator(s) spddth Administrator)
to the LDC for resolution.

ARTICLE 3
APPLICATION PROCESS, INSTALLATION, SERVICING & ASSE T OWNERSHIP

3.1  Application Process

(a) The LDC shall manage the application process, includiaging the Participant
Agreement, without modification from the form and subsgaprovided in this
Schedule, available to each Residential DistributiornsdDmmer and Small
Commercial Distribution Consumer upon request.

(b) Prior to enrolling a Distribution Consumer in the latve and installing a Load
Control Device and Customer Information Display at th&ribution Consumer’s
premises, the LDC shall confirm that all Eligibility @nia are met and shall
ensure that the Participant Agreement has been fullgptaied and that the
Distribution Consumer has evidenced its agreement (imdu@ippropriately
executed where a paper copy of the Participant Agreeimersed) to the terms
and conditions of the Participant Agreement, in tbemf attached hereto as
Exhibit “B”, without modification or amendment. The OR&knowledges that in
confirming the Eligibility Criteria in Section 1(b) of ExXdii “A”, the LDC will
rely upon information provided by the Distribution Consumer.
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3.2  Participants under Prior Program

(@) If the LDC participated in the Prior Program then for a@gntinuing
Participants, the LDC shall:

(1) inform Continuing Participants that they are eligitdeeceive a Customer
Information Display if they enter into the (new) Rapant Agreement to
supersede the participant agreement under the Prior Prag@nif such
Continuing Participant does enter into a ParticipanieAgrent, subject to
Section 3.3(e), install a Customer Information Displaty the said
Continuing Participant’s premises pursuant to Section 3.3;

(i) with respect to Continuing Participants who have nuered into the
(new) Participant Agreement, allow the OPA, through Aggregation
Operator and Dispatch Administrator, to continue ta@se Curtailment
of Continuing Load Control Devices, subject to the teamd conditions
of the Prior Program; and

(i)  provide to the Aggregation Operator and the OPA promptly, iarahy
event by no later than two months, following this Schedotcoming
effective a list of all Continuing Participants togetheth information
reasonably requested by the Aggregation Operator or OPAvantbrmat
reasonably requested by the OPA regarding each Continawtgifant
and/or Continuing Load Control Device so that the AggliegaDperator
may exercise Curtailment of the Continuing Load @arbevices of the
Continuing Participants. For certainty, this Scheduleobees effective
either: (i) if the LDC was Registered for the Consufsygram prior to
the Notice of Additional Initiative being issued, the &dhle becomes
effective pursuant to the Change Terms; or (ii) iftB¥C had not already
Registered for the Consumer Program prior to the NatfcAdditional
Initiative being issued, the Schedule becomes effective tipernLDC
Registering for the Consumer Program.

(b) If Section 3.2(a) applies to the LDC, the LDC represamd warrants that each
Continuing Participant included on the list provided to the Aggtion
Operator and the OPA pursuant to Section 3.2(a)(iii) caedda the collection,
use and disclosure of its name, address, telephone nuembeil, address and
other personally identifiable information by the LDC arte tOPA, and
consented to the operation of its Continuing Load Cémevice by the OPA,
which consents continue to apply to this Initiative.

() If the LDC participated in the Prior Program then fay &rior Participants, the
LDC shall inform Prior Participants that they argible to receive a Customer
Information Display if they enter into the (new) Bapant Agreement, and, if
such Prior Participant does enter into a Participanteégeent, subject to
Section 3.3(e), install a Customer Information Displaytlee said Prior
Participant’s premises pursuant to Section 3.3. The LA shsure that Prior
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Participants are not included in the list of ContinuingtiBigants provided
pursuant to Section 3.2(a)(iii) so that Prior Particifgaakisting load control
devices are not the subject of Load Control unless atidauRrior Participant
enters into a (new) Participant Agreement.

3.3 Installation of Load Control Devices and Customer Information Dsplays

(@)

(b)

(€)

(d)

(e)

()

Subject to the LDC having enrolled a Participant in théiatmve pursuant to
Section 3.1 and the LDC complying with the remaining prowsiof this Section
3.3, the LDC shall use Commercially Reasonable Effootsinstall at the
Participant’'s premises: (i) the Load Control Devicegn)the Eligible End Use
Appliances selected by the Participant in the Parttigeggreement; and (ii) a
Customer Information Display.

If, after using Commercially Reasonable Efforts, theCLID unable to install any
Load Control Device, the LDC shall notify the Participéhat it was unable to
install any Load Control Device and the LDC shall terngndte Participant
Agreement.

If, after using Commercially Reasonable Efforts, tH2CLis able to install the
Load Control Device(s) but is unable to install the Cangtioinformation Display,
the LDC may offer to allow the Participant to congnto participate in the
Initiative without receiving a Customer Information Displa

The LDC shall not install a Load Control Device on aligiBle End Use

Appliance that is not in good working condition or if tihetallation of the Load
Control Device cannot be completed in a safe mannerereathere is a risk of
damage to the Eligible End Use Appliance or the Parttip@remises.

The LDC shall not install a Customer Information Dagpfor a Continuing

Participant unless it has first confirmed that eachti@oimg Load Control Device
is capable of Curtailment and the Continuing Participamees to the (new)
Participant Agreement. The LDC shall not install@st©omer Information Display
for a Prior Participant unless it has first confirmedttthe existing load control
device is capable of Curtailment and the Prior Partiti@@nees to the (new)
Participant Agreement. If the existing load control dew¢ a Prior Participant is
not capable of Curtailment the LDC may install a (nea@d Control Device and
receive the Participant Based Funding Amount for v hoad Control Device.
If the Continuing Load Control Device of a Continuing tiegrant is not capable
of Curtailment the LDC shall service, repair or replaceh Continuing Load
Control Device pursuant to Section 3.4.

If the LDC installed a Comverge / White-Rogers IF88 modtielrhostat load
control device under a Prior Program, other than a produmded by third
tranche CDM spending, the LDC may replace the ComveWghkite Rogers load
control device with a new Load Control Device if theloPrParticipant or
Continuing Participant, as applicable, agrees to theReticipant Agreement. In
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such circumstances, the OPA shall pay the Participase® Funding Amount
applicable to the installation of a new Load Contrelvi@e in accordance with
Article 6 less $30. The LDC shall be responsible forcists for removing the
Comverge / White Rogers thermostat and, if the new IGradrol Device is not a
thermostat, providing a replacement thermostat.

(9) Each Load Control Device and Customer Information Dispiatalled pursuant
to this Initiative must meet the minimum requiremeptssiuch devices provided
in Exhibit “C”.

(h) The LDC shall not procure a Load Control Device for uséhis Initiative that
cannot be controlled by a Control System without obtgirthe prior written
consent of the OPA, such consent not to be unreasonéhblyeld or delayed. For
certainty, it will not be unreasonable for the OPA tithiold its consent due to
the cost of adding a new Control System or otherwisg have a detrimental
impact on the delivery of the Initiative.

(1) Load Control Device inventory shall be managed on at‘ffiréirst out” basis.

()] The LDC shall ensure that each installed Load ConteVié®@ and Customer
Information Display is installed according to manufaatsrspecifications and is
tested and proven to be functioning properly in accordante tive minimum
requirements for such devices provided in Exhibit “C” and, nepect to Load
Control Devices, capable of being remotely dispatchedable the Curtailment
of the associated Eligible End Use Appliance, including rigpédequate signal
strength from the paging network for this purpose.

(k) The Parties acknowledge that title to the Load CorireVice and Customer
Information Display installed at a Participant's premisesll pass from the LDC
to the Participant upon installation thereof. In thergthat the transfer of title to
the Load Control Device and Customer Information Disjdayr becomes subject
to Applicable Taxes, the OPA agrees to reimburse the ldD@pplicable Taxes
that the LDC is required to pay and has actually paid rutieExcise Tax Act
(Canada) solely as a result of the transfer of tiflehe Load Control Device and
Customer Information Display. For certainty, it is thBC’s responsibility to
determine if the transfer of title to the Load Contii@vice and/or Customer
Information Display is subject to Applicable Taxes ang anterest or penalties
incurred by the LDC for failing to pay such tax shall be bk responsibility of
the LDC.

3.4  Load Control Device and Customer Information Display Servicing

(@) Until December 31, 2014, the LDC shall service, repair orlacep a
malfunctioning Load Control Device or malfunctioning Goning Load Control
Device upon becoming aware of such malfunction, includingoutjin
communication from the OPA or a Participant, in orderensure continued
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(b)

functioning of the Load Control Device or Continuing Lo@adntrol Device for
the purpose of enabling the Curtailment of the Eligibbld Bse Appliance.

Until December 31, 2014, the LDC shall service, repair orlacep a
malfunctioning Customer Information Display upon thasanable request of a
Participant unless the LDC determines that such malumas$ the fault of the
Participant.

ARTICLE 4

PARTICIPANT MANAGEMENT, DISPATCH AND AGGREGATOR SER VICES

4.1  Participant Management

The LDC shall:

(@)

(b)

(€)

upon the receipt of an Opt Out Request from a Participara ontinuing
Participant notify the Aggregation Operator of the Opt Bequest the same
Business Day if the Opt Out Request is received prior to 5:@&hon the next
Business Day if received after 5:00pm or on a non-BusinegsfD@) the Opt
Out Request is not requesting a Load Control Device takentout of operation
for a continuous period that exceeds 48 hours; (ii) thiackant or Continuing
Participant has not previously issued two Opt Out Requksiag the calendar
year; and (iii) the Opt Out Request is received by the aD@ast two days prior
to the day the Load Control Device is requested to be t@kieof operation;

upon a Participant or Continuing Participant moving outhefrtpremises, use
Commercially Reasonable Efforts to enrol the new aowsreoccupant of the
premises in the Initiative; and

provide advance notice to Participants of a change ctriggy pricing, using
Commercially Reasonable Efforts to provide it no ks 14 days in advance of
such change, to enable the Participant to update its Besténformation
Display, which notice will include instructions on how tipdate the Customer
Information Display.

4.2  Dispatch and Aggregation Services

(@)

(b)

Subject to Section 4.2(b), the OPA shall contract withAggregation Operator
to provide Aggregation Services in relation to the Load @bmevices and
Continuing Load Control Devices installed in the LDC’'svgsx area. For
certainty, the OPA may retain more than one Aggregddperator.

The LDC may, during the period from September 1, 2011 to Séptetd,
2011, select an Aggregation Operator that is under conivitictthe OPA.
Failing a selection by the LDC, or if the LDC Registkffor this Initiative after
September 15, 2011, the OPA’s province-wide Aggregation Operb&dl s
provide Aggregation Services in the LDC'’s service area.
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(€)

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

If the LDC wishes to change the Aggregation Operatoratjpeg in its service
area, it may do so by providing the OPA sixty (60) days raclvaotice and will
do so at its own cost and risk. If the LDC changes thgrégation Operator
operating in its service area it shall ensure thagl(.oad Control Devices and
Continuing Load Control Devices installed prior to suchngeaoccurring
continue to be capable of Load Control by the new Aggregddperator, (ii)
any work required to comply with this obligation will beta¢ LDC’s own cost
and risk, and (iii) the ability to exercise Load ContwbLoad Control Devices
and Continuing Load Control Devices during the period from Mayo
September 30 will not be affected by such change.

The LDC shall cooperate with the Aggregation Operat@nure that the Load
Control Devices installed by the LDC can be remotelgpdiched by the
Aggregation Operator. The LDC shall provide to the Aggregafiperator all
necessary and appropriate information to enable theisgest Curtailment of
Load Control Devices and Continuing Load Control Devicessiservice area.

The OPA shall ensure that the terms pursuant to whichAtgregation
Operator is engaged include the obligation by the Aggreg&dperator to
provide notice to the LDC of a Curtailment.

The OPA shall, through the Dispatch Administrator or Aggt®n Operator, as
the case may be, have the right to operate and dispait Load Control
Device and Continuing Load Control Device in accordantk the terms and
conditions of the Participant Agreement or the PRwogram’s participant
agreement, as applicable.

Curtailment in respect of every Load Control Device amht@uing Load
Control Device shall be initiated only by the Dispatadn#nistrator.

An LDC initiated Curtailment in its service area shallibéated pursuant to
the process provided in Exhibit “F".

ARTICLE 5
DATA REQUIREMENTS

5.1  Project Completion Report

(@)

(b)

The LDC shall complete and provide to the OPA and Aggregddiperator a
Project Completion Report containing the informationasétin Exhibit “D” and
in the format requested by the OPA (i) within seven (7) Bgsirigays of the
installation of a Load Control Device at the premiska @articipant (or a Prior
Participant becoming a Participant if a (new) Load t@dnDevice is not
installed) during the period from May 1 to September 30; anch¢nthly during
the remainder of the year.

The LDC shall complete and provide to the OPA monthBr@ect Completion
Report containing the information set out in Exhibit “D"dam the format
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5.2

(€)

requested by the OPA for a Continuing Participant thabkasme a Participant
(by signing a new Participant Agreement) and that has ha@ustomer
Information Display installed.

If the LDC is an Aggregation Operator under contract with @PA for the
LDC's service area, the LDC is not obligated to proviteunique serial number
of the Load Control Device required to configure the Cur8istem as part of its
Project Completion Report. If the LDC ceases to beAggregation Operator
under contract with the OPA for the LDC’s service aieahall provide to the
OPA the unique serial number for each Load Control Deaing Continuing
Load Control Device installed in its service area nor ldian seven (7) Business
Days after the date it ceases to be an Aggregation @pévaits service area.

Device Removal / Deactivation Report

(@)

(b)

(€)

During the period from May 1 to September 30, the LDCIst@iplete and
provide to the OPA and the Aggregation Operator a DevicenoRal /

Deactivation Report containing the information set auExhibit “E” and in the
format requested by the OPA within seven (7) Business Digystbe removal of
a Load Control Device from a Participant’s premises(iiprtermination of the
participation of a Participant in the Initiative, inding due to a Termination
Request.

The LDC shall complete and provide to the OPA and ttpgrégation Operator a
Device Removal / Deactivation Report containing the rmfation set out in
Exhibit “E” and in the format requested by the OPA during theogdrom May
1 to September 30 within fifteen (15) Business Days of &ciant moving out
of the premises where the Load Control Device wasliast

During the period from October 1 to April 30, the LDC slwimplete a Device
Removal / Deactivation Report containing the informasehout in Exhibit “E”

and in the format requested by the OPA after: (i) tineokeal of a Load Control
Device from a Participant’'s premises, or (i) termioatof the participation of a
Participant in the Initiative, including due to a TermioatiRequest or a
Participant moving out of the premises where the Load rGbitevice was

installed and, within 15 days of the beginning of each mduating said period
commencing in November, the LDC shall provide to the OR#l ahe

Aggregation Operator all such reports completed duringrdeeding month.
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5.3

6.1

Operation Log and Information to Support Load Control

If the LDC chooses to have Load Control Devices ont@aing Load Control Devices
controlled on the basis of hierarchical Grouping of iBigdnts to facilitate local

Curtailment in relation to feeder or station peaking LDC shall provide additional
information to the Aggregation Operator, the Dispa&dministrator and the OPA on the
basis of hierarchical Grouping of Participants to featii local Load Control in relation
to feeder or station peaking.

ARTICLE 6
PAYMENT TO LDC

Participant Based Funding Amount

The LDC may, subject to the invoicing provisions of Sectt6 of the Master
Agreement, invoice the OPA for the following ParticipBaised Funding Amounts:

(a) the actual cost incurred by the LDC, without fee or mgrkto acquire and install
one Load Control Device and one Customer Informatiorspy at a
Participant’s premises up to a maximum average amountPasicipant per
Billing Period of $415;

(b) the actual cost incurred by the LDC, without fee or mgrkto acquire and install
a Load Control Device (for certainty, as an additidr@dd Control Device to that
installed pursuant to Section 6.1(a) or where a Customemiafmn Display is
not also installed) at a Participant’s premises up teagimum average amount
per Participant per Billing Period of $215;

() the actual cost incurred by the LDC, without fee or mgrkto acquire and install
a Customer Information Display (for certainty, wharé.oad Control Device is
not installed at the same time) at a Continuing Rpamt’s premises up to a
maximum average amount per Continuing Participant pengieriod of $220;

(d) an annual maintenance fee to be used to service, rephireplace the devices
indicated below calculated as follows:

(i) $3.33 upon the installation of a Load Control Device as ahaual
maintenance fee for the Load Control Device for tharyin which it is
installed and $3.33 for each subsequent year of the Terpafterif the
Load Control Device is not deactivated or removed asadiary 1 of the
year for which the maintenance fee is requested;

(i) $3.33 upon the installation of a Customer Information Risms the
annual maintenance fee for the Customer Informationl®jdpr the year
in which it is installed and $3.33 for each subsequent ye#neoTerm
thereafter if the Load Control Device installed at $hene premises as the
Customer Information Display is not deactivated or rerda&of January
1 of the year for which the maintenance fee is reqdgste
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(i) $3.33 upon a Prior Participant entering into a (new) paint Agreement
as the annual maintenance fee for the load control elengtalled under
the Prior Program for the year in which the PriortiBigant becomes a
Participant and $3.33 for each subsequent year of the themmafter if
the load control device is not deactivated or removedf @nuary 1 of
the year for which the maintenance fee is requested; and

(iv)  $3.33 for each Continuing Load Control Device included on ligte
provided by the LDC pursuant to Section 3.2(a)(ii) as theuahn
maintenance fee for each Continuing Load Control Deincéuded on
such list for the year in which the list was provided an@®3or each
subsequent year of the Term thereafter if the Continumad Control
Device is not deactivated or removed as of January Jeofeaéar for which
the maintenance fee is requested.

For certainty, the amounts above are exclusive of iépble Taxes. Each invoice for
amounts referred to in Sections 6.1(a), (b) and (c) neistcbompanied by supporting
evidence of the actual costs incurred by the LDC for suabided amounts. The LDC
may not invoice for an amount referred to in Sectiériga), (b) and (c) or the initial
annual maintenance fee referred to in Sections 6.1(di)ign@ (iii) unless and until the
LDC has provided a Project Completion Report requireddntié 5.1. The LDC must
issue an invoice annually for the annual maintenancectegemplated in Section 6.1(d).

6.2 Paymentto LDC
The OPA shall pay the LDC for the amounts specified ui@extion 3.3(k) and this

Article 6, subject to any reduction due to Section 3.3(fadoordance with Section 4.6 of the
Master Agreement.
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Exhibit “A”
ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA

To be eligible to participate in this Initiative the Distition Consumer must meet the Participant
Eligibility Criteria and the end uses in respect of vahsach Person is applying must meet the
End Use Eligibility Criteria described below (colleely, the ‘Eligibility Criteria ”):

1. Participant Eligibility Criteria
To be an Eligible Person under this Initiative, the @@raust:

(a) be either a Residential Distribution Consumer or a ISr@@mmercial
Distribution Consumer located in the LDC'’s serviceaare

(b) be the owner or the lessee of the Facility in r@ato which the Distribution
Consumer has submitted an Application, and if the Didgion Consumer is a
lessee it must have the authority to install the Loaht@l Device and
Customer Information Display either as a conditioniteflease or with the
written consent/authorization of the owner of theilifgcand

(c) have a customer account with the LDC.
2. End Use Eligibility Criteria

The following are Eligible End Use Appliances:

(a) central air conditioner including an air source heat p(wiuch, for certainty,
does not include a ground source heat pump);

(b) electric water heater; and

(c) swimming pool pump.
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Exhibit “B”
Participant Agreement

RESIDENTIAL AND SMALL COMMERCIAL DEMAND RESPONSE

PARTICIPANT AGREEMENT

Participant Name:

(if a corporation, insert corporate legal name): (“Participant” ).

Participant Location: ~ Street Address:
Postal Code:

Tenant/Lessee or Owner (check one)
What equipment are you enrolling in the program? (check as many as appropriate)

Central Air Conditioner

Electric Water Heater

Swimming Pool Pump
Are you a current peaksaver® (or SmartStat) participant? YES or NO
Are you interested in having a Customer Information Display installed YES or NO
Are you a Residential or Commercial Customer (check one)
What business type are you (if Commercial)? (please print)
References to “you” or “your” in this agreement are references to the Participant.
You have applied to participate in the Residential and Small Commercial Demand Response Initiative
(the “Initiative ") offered by [LDC], your local electricity distributor (the “LDC”). Alternatively, you may
already be a participant in the prior version of this Initiative marketed as peaksaver® (or SmartStat) and
are applying to receive a free Customer Information Display. This agreement is entered into between you
and the LDC and will govern your patrticipation in the Initiative.
If the LDC accepts your agreement, you will be entitled to receive one or more devices (“Device”), in the
form of a relay-based control device, installed in or on your premises that from time to time adjusts how
much electricity one or more enrolled items of equipment will use. If accepted as a new participant or as a
continuing participant from the prior program, you will be entitled to receive a Customer Information
Display that will display your electricity consumption and electricity cost information (subject to you
programming the current electricity cost information into the Customer Information Display). You may also

experience the benefits resulting from potentially reduced electricity usage during certain periods of the
year. You will also have certain obligations.
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In consideration of the installation of one or more Devices in your home or small business and/or your
receipt of a free Customer Information Display, you agree to the following terms and conditions:

1.

You represent and warrant that you are either a residential electricity distribution customer or a
small commercial electricity distribution customer of the LDC and that the person signing this
agreement is:

(a) an individual 18 years or older and is the owner of the premises;

(b) an individual 18 years or older and is the tenant or lessee of the premises and has the
authority to install the Device(s) and Customer Information Display either as a condition
of your lease or has the written consent or authorization of the owner of the premises; or

(c) if the Participant is a corporation, authorized to bind the corporation which is the owner of
the premises or lessee of the premises with the authority to install the Device(s) and
Customer Information Display either as a condition of its lease or it has written consent or
authorization of the owner of the premises.

You further represent that each appliance to which a Load Control Device is to be connected or
attached is and shall be in good working order, and has been and will continue to be maintained
and inspected at reasonable intervals.

You agree to permit the Device(s) and Customer Information Display to be installed in or on the
equipment and at the location indicated above by the LDC and/or the LDC’s contractors. If the
LDC determines at its sole discretion that a Device cannot be installed, including for safety or
access reasons or lack of funds, this agreement will terminate without payment or liability by
either party.

You agree that the LDC will, pursuant to an agreement with the Ontario Power Authority (the
“OPA” ), allow the OPA and/or the OPA’s contractors to control each Device installed in or on
your premises by interrupting power to the equipment to which the Device is connected for not
more than four hours per day during certain periods of the year. This may mean that, in the case
of a Device attached to an air conditioner, there may be an increase in the temperature in your
premises; in the case of a Device attached to a water heater, there may be reduction in the
availability of hot water; and in the case of a Device attached to a swimming pool pump, the
swimming pool pump will be inoperative. You further acknowledge and agree that no person or
entity except the OPA or a person or entity designated by the OPA shall have the right to control
or dispatch the Devices and exercise load control and you further agree not to authorize anyone
else to control any Devices installed in or on your premises.

You agree not to move, remove, tamper with, disable or damage the Device(s) that are installed
in or on your premises. You also agree not to remove, disable or damage the Customer
Information Display. Any failure to comply with these obligations will be at your sole risk for any
damage that may result including damage to the equipment or your premises or injury to any
person.

You agree to allow a representative of your LDC to have reasonable access to your premises in
order to inspect, test, repair, replace and service the Devices and Customer Information Display
as the LDC deems necessary.

You may submit a request in writing or by telephone to the LDC to terminate your participation in
the Initiative and have the Device(s) cease operation. The LDC will comply with such request
within at least ten (10) business days.
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10.

11.

On two days advance notice, you may request by phone, in writing or by internet (if available) to
the LDC that the electricity use of your equipment not be adjusted for a period not to exceed 48
hours. You may make this opt-out request no more than twice per yeatr.

You agree and acknowledge that: (i) the LDC's contractor is independent of the LDC and that the
LDC makes no representation, warranty, endorsement or recommendation of any kind with
regard to the “Initiative”; (ii) the LDC does not guarantee energy cost savings or other benefits
arising from this Initiative; (iii) the Customer Information Display may not display real time
consumption and costing information; and (iv) neither the LDC, the OPA, nor their respective
successors, assignors, affiliates, employees, agents, officers, directors, service providers and
such affiliates, respective officers, directors or employees or any of their heirs, successors or
assigns (collectively, the “Initiative Operators ") will be liable for any loss, damage or injury to
persons or property, including without limitation any economic loss, loss of good will, loss of profit
or any direct, indirect, special or consequential damages, and any costs or losses, expenses,
fees, liabilities, allegations, causes of action, suits, proceedings, debts, penalties and demands
arising therefrom or connected therewith of any nature or kind whatsoever arising from or related
to the installation of the Device(s) or Customer Information Display, or the interruption of power to
any equipment to which a Device is connected, the Initiative or any matter related to this
agreement, including, without limitation, any acts or omissions of any Initiative Operator and you
hereby release the Initiative Operators of, from and against any and all of the foregoing. You
agree to indemnify the Initiative Operators if you or any member of your family, customer,
occupant or guest seeks damages against any of them for any reason that is connected with this
agreement, the Device(s) or Customer Information Display. The maximum liability of the Initiative
Operators for any matter, claim or damage in connection with this agreement, the Device(s) or
the Customer Information Display is limited to $250.

You agree to participate in any follow up surveys, studies, audits, evaluations or verifications
conducted by the LDC or the OPA or their agents or service providers in connection with the
Initiative. This Section 9 shall survive the termination of this agreement.

You consent to the collection, use, disclosure and other handling of any information provided by
you to the Initiative Operators, including personal information such as your name, address,
telephone number, email address and records showing historical energy use and consumption
(collectively the foregoing is referred to as “Participant Information ") by the Initiative Operators
for purposes relating to the operation, administration or assessment of the Initiative, and in
connection with any reporting activities relating to the Initiative, which such use will include,
without limitation: (i) sharing of Participant Information among the Initiative Operators; (ii) use by
the Initiative Operators of the Participant Information provided by you to conduct, analyze and
report on the results of the Initiative and to conduct surveys and modify the Initiative based on
such surveys; and (iii) disclosure to the Ontario Energy Board, the Independent Electricity System
Operator, the Ontario Ministry of Energy or the Ontario Environmental Commissioner and/or their
respective successors. You hereby acknowledge that the Participant Information may be
accessible to third parties under the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act
(Ontario) or the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (Ontario). This
Section 10 shall survive the termination of this agreement.

You transfer and assign, or to the extent transfer or assignment is not permitted, hold in trust for,
or in favour of, the LDC in its capacity as agent for and on behalf of the OPA, and not for the
LDC’s own benefit, all right, title and interest in and to all benefits or entittlements associated with
the electricity savings or demand savings attributable to a Device, and the right to quantify and
register these, including without limitation, any energy efficiency certificate, renewable energy
certificate, credit, reduction right, offset, allocated pollution right, emission reduction allowance
(collectively, the “Environmental Attributes 7). Until the OPA notifies you otherwise, the LDC, in
its capacity as agent, shall be entitled, unilaterally and without your consent, to deal with such
Environmental Attributes on behalf of the OPA in any manner the LDC determines. You
acknowledge that the OPA may direct you in the same manner as the LDC and that until the OPA
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

notifies you otherwise the LDC may direct you to take such actions and do all such things
necessary to certify, obtain, qualify and register with the relevant authorities or agencies such
Environmental Attributes for the purpose of transferring, assigning, or holding in trust, such
Environmental Attributes to and for the OPA and you shall comply with such directions, and you
will be entitled to reimbursement of the cost of complying with such direction, provided that the
LDC, acting reasonably, has approved such cost in writing prior to the cost being incurred by you.
This Section 11 shall survive the termination of this agreement.

As between you and the LDC, the LDC does not own nor will it own the Devices or Customer
Information Display installed on or in your premises and title to the Devices and the Customer
Information Display shall at all times be and remain with you. Nothing in this Agreement or
otherwise shall have the effect of passing title to the Devices or Customer Information Display to
the LDC.

You acknowledge and agree that: (i) you have independently assessed the risk of installing
Devices or Customer Information Display in or on your premises and you accept such risk; (ii) the
Devices and Customer Information Display have been selected and obtained through normal
commercial channels, and the LDC makes no representation or warranty, express, implied,
statutory or otherwise, including any representation or warranty as to merchantability, design,
capabilities, suitability, durability or fitness for use or for a particular purpose, with regard to the
Devices and Customer Information Display or any part thereof or the installation thereof or
otherwise; (iii) the energy cost savings and other benefits described in connection with the
Initiative are based on estimates, and actual results may differ; and (iv) the Devices and
Customer Information Display are intended for use only as directed and improper use may result
in injury or damage.

The LDC shall not be in default, and shall not be deemed to be in default, of this agreement by
reason of delay or the failure or inability to perform its obligations hereunder where the said delay,
failure or inability is due solely to any cause which is unavoidable or beyond the reasonable
control of the LDC, including without limitation any act of God or other cause which frustrates the
performance of this agreement.

Subject to earlier termination rights herein, this agreement shall remain in effect for as long as
there is an operational Device at your premises or until you move from the premises where a
Device is located. In the event a Device cannot be installed at your premises, this agreement
shall terminate. If you breach any of your obligations in this contract, the LDC may terminate this
agreement. The LDC may terminate this agreement at any time and for any reason by sending
you a notice.

This agreement shall be interpreted under Ontario law. You may not assign this agreement. This
agreement may be amended by the LDC with thirty (30) days notice to you.

Except as provided in Sections 3, 8, 9, 10, 11 and this Section 17, this agreement is solely for the
benefit of:

(a) the LDC, and its successors and assigns, with respect to your obligations under this
agreement, and

(b) you, and your successors with respect to the obligations of the LDC under this
agreement;

and this agreement will not be deemed to confer upon or give to any other person any claim or
other right or remedy. You appoint the LDC as the trustee for the OPA and the other Initiative
Operators of the applicable provisions set out in this agreement, including Sections 3, 8, 9, 10,
and this Section 17. The LDC is the OPA’s agent for the purpose of Section 11.
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Signature:

Date:
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Exhibit “C”
Load Control Device and Customer Information Display FunctionalRequirements

A. Load Control Device Requirements

Load Control Devices installed pursuant to this Initiativest have the following minimum
functional requirements:

1. Communications: Minimum one-way communication over one-way radiaérency
networks directly to the Load Control Device where alsiyoadcast can address
one or more Load Control Devices resulting in efficieatnmunications and targeted
Load Control.

a. Supports redundant service providers so that the service prowdersbe
remotely changed without a visit to the Load Control Device

b. Over-the-air (OTA) programming of addressing, plus individaahtrol or
override.

2. Operating Requirements for Load Control Device that is a rlay based switch
a. Power Source 240 VAC (+10% -20%) and 24, 120 and 208 VAC as
optional, Frequency 60 Hz (£2%)
b. Temperature: -40° F to 185° F (-40° C to +85° C).
Relative Humidity: 0 to 95% non-condensing.
Relay Control:
i. 5Aat 120 VAC resistive, Form C or;
ii. 30 A at 240 VAC resistive, Form B
e. Housing NEMA 3R injection-moulded, UV-stabilized gray polycarbtena
plastic. Rain-tight per UL916.
f. Wiring: Pre-wired with six foot leads with wire size suildbr contact
capacity of relay to facilitate installation.

oo

3. Load Control Commands
Load Control Device must be:
a. Remotely and locally programmable
b. Group addresses remotely or locally re-assignable

Load Control Device must be able to receive the foltmativo types of commands:

a. Control the load for a user-specified time period, &mein automatically
restores. This command allows up to 240 minutes of conttbl Wwito 240
minutes of beginning and/or ending control time to minintiee creation of
new load peaks.

b. Initiate a sequence of control/restore cycle thatwallfor a cycle period of 1
to 240 minutes and 1 to 100% cycling control for Load Contreides. Load
Control Device automatically randomize initially, ankdem restore upon
completion of a cycle count. Control percentages oogsemay be changed
in mid-cycle with a smooth transition into the newjsence.
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B.

4. Cold Load Pickup:
To minimize feeder inrush following power outages, thead.cControl Device must
include a cold load pickup feature that can be enabled or dis@iolthe connected load.

5. Propagation Test Commands
Load Control Device test command must be able to veebeption of a signal by
turning on a receiver LED.

6. Fail-Safe Operation
In case of any abnormality, the Load Control Device mesét and the connected load
should be returned to its normal state.

7. Compliant with Laws and Regulations
Load Control Device must comply with applicable Laws Redjulations including ETL,
CSA and ULC.

Customer Information Display Requirements

Each Customer Information Display installed pursuanhi® Inhitiative must have the following
minimum functional requirements. In procuring Customméormation Displays, the LDC shall
procure devices that, in the LDC’s sole and absoluteretisa, have the greatest value to
ratepayers over the Term and not simply the lowest aliternative, subject to Section 6.1 of the
Schedule.

1. Customer Information Display may use one of the follmyior electricity consumption

data acquisition:
a. Integrating with the LDC’s Advanced Metering Infrastruetaetwork;
b. Communicating with a ZigBee® smart energy profile equippettme
c. Eavesdropping on the Advanced Metering Infrastructurerresson; or
d. Other solutions that meet or exceed these minimum negants and display
electricity consumption data and prices.

2. Customer Information Display must have data accura®pt or better.
3. Display Screen:

a. Numeric elements of the display may be in analog ardigital format;
b. Wall mounting or table top;

4. Functionality:

a. Provide instantaneous or near real time display;

b. Displays shall be of whole home, electricity houd®mand in power (Watt) units
(and for greater certainty volt-amp readings having less tmity power factor
are not acceptable), current hourly cost of energy ushB established
consumer time of use power rates and a data refegehof no more than 60
seconds.

c. Must permit the manual or remote updating of the IHD to inbetmost current
seasonal OEB consumer time of use power rates fomatied use in establishing
the current cost of energy in cents.
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5. Security and Privacy: Security features that prevent toauaed access to Participant
information.

6. Independent Testing Requirements: Customer Informatioplddisrendors at their cost
must have the devices tested for performance and funlityobg an independent test
laboratory. Some of the examples of testing requireldidie:

a.
b.

C.
d.

Communications: Radio transmission must be able to conwate within broad
range of household conditions.

Accuracy;,

Reliability;

Comply with applicable Laws and Regulations and meeh wit mandatory
safety and other requirements including ETL, CSA or Uctertified, if
applicable.

7. Products must provide ease of installation, setup and operioequired for both the
Participant and LDC.

8. Power supply: 120Vac (directly or through a plug-in charger).

9. Provide a minimum one year, full replacement warranty

10.Provide a detailed, intuitive user guide or operating manuadth English and French as
a minimum.
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Exhibit “D”
PROJECT COMPLETION REPORT
Project Completion Report

Date of Report:

Installation Data Type of Information
LDC Name Requiret
LDC Participant Identifier (may be SDP | Requiret
Date of Installatio Requiret
Participant’s nan Requiret
Participant’s addre Requiret
Participant’s Postal Co Requiret
Participant by type — Commercial or Residential | Require« C/IR
Commerciabusiness tyfg Requiret
Participant’s LDC account numt
Requiret New/Continuing
Participant/Prior
Type of Participant Participant
Technology Vendor and mot
Typeand manufactureof Load Control Devict Requiret
installed
Type and manufacturof Customer Informatio Requiret Customer Informatiol
Display installed Display
Unique serial number of Load Control Dev Requiret
required to configure control system
Type of Appliance(s) connect Requiret AC/EWH/PF
Requeste Estimated Height
Length & Width (in
centimetres)
Or Estimated Height
and Diameter (in
Central Air Conditioner centimetres)
Electric Water Heater Requeste Size in gallons
Requeste Size of pump ir
Swimming Pool Pump horsepower
Does customer have a programmable thermostat?| Requeste Yes / No
Is the Participant legacy (Prior Program) peaksa' | Requeste
participant? Yes/No
Requeste Estimated Length ¢
Width (in meters) &
How big is the building (home or business)? # of storeys
Tenant or Owne (as indicated on the Participe Requiret
Agreement Tenant / Owner
Legal Name olnstallationService Provide Requiret
Service Delivery Point Identification Number (SI Requeste
ID) (as and when available) Yes / No
For a Continuing Participaior Prior Participanwho | Requiret
is signing up for a Customer Information Display:
Was the Continuing Load Control Device or existing
load control device working? Yes/No
For a Continuing Participa or Prior Participar who | Requiret
is signing up for a Customer Information Display, Repaired or Replaced
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where the Continuing Load Control Devior existing
load control device is not working, action taken?

Note: All information and data referred to in the Profgompletion Report, whether or not
provided to the OPA, is OPA Property.
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Exhibit “E”

DEVICE REMOVAL / DEACTIVATION REPORT

Device Removal / Deactivation Report

Date of Report:

Why was action requested?

Type of
Detailed Removal / Deactivation Data Information

LDC Namge
LDC Participant Identifier (may be SDP |

Removal |

Termination
Action requested Request

Moving/Don’t

want to participate
in Initiative/other
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Exhibit “F”
LDC INITIATED DR CURTAILMENT PROTOCOL
There are seven stages to the LDC Initiated DR Curtatlfdeotocol — LDC Standby Notice to
Dispatch Administrator, Dispatch Administrator Standhytibe to Aggregation Operator, LDC
Activation Notice to Dispatch Administrator, DisphtAdministrator Activation Notice to

Aggregation Operator, Aggregation Operator Activation Notiketivation Confirmation and
Activation Completion Confirmation.

Conventions
A 24 hour clock will be used in this protocol.

Eastern Prevailing Time (EPT) will be used year roundl EReither Eastern Standard Time or
Eastern Daylight Savings Time, as in effect from ttméme.

Hours for potential Curtailment

Curtailment may be requested:

Date Range or Montt Days Hours
May 1 to September . Business Days on 12:00to 19:0(
Notification:

The LDC Standby Notice (as discussed below) may lbedssn a non-Business Day — for
example, the LDC Standby Notice could be issued on a $doda Monday Curtailment or on
a holiday for a Curtailment on the following Busin&ssy.

Dispatch Administrator Contact Information:

The Dispatch Administrator contact information for ne under this protocol shall be provided
by the OPA to the LDC from time to time.

Stage One - LDC Standby Notice to Dispatch Administrator

This notice is the process by which the LDC informs thisp&ich Administrator that
Curtailment may be requested during a specified future peniddifapplicable, in specified
Groupings. The notice may be provided for a Curtailmenttwioduring the next day (referred
to as the day-ahead), or the current day (referred theaslay-at-hand). The notice shall be
provided using the form of LDC Standby Notice attached as Agipé. to this Exhibit.

Day-ahead notification may not be issued by the LDér ldtan 17:00.
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Day-at-hand notification may not be given by the L@Cearlier than 8:00, (ii) later than 12:00,
and (iii) less than three hours prior to the Activatitariod.

The LDC Standby Notice may only be issued by the LDCipgrfail, and (ii) phone call to a
contact specified for the Dispatch Administrator.

The LDC Standby Notice must specify the period during wBightailment is requested.

The Dispatch Administrator will issue confirmationreteipt of the LDC Standby Notice to the
LDC:

(1) if the LDC Standby Notice is issued on a Business Dathirwone
Business Hour of receipt;

(i) if the LDC Standby Notice is issued on a non-Business beat later than
8:00 on the next following Business Day;

by email to the email address specified by the LDC irLid€ Standby Notice.
The Dispatch Administrator will reject a LDC Standbgtide:

(1) if the requested Curtailment is for the same day asozimqme wide
Standby Notice (whether issued before or after the S&nhdby Notice);
or

(i) if it does not comply with the curtailment parameters.
Stage Two — Dispatch Administrator Standby Notice to Aggregation Qerator

Upon receipt of a valid LDC Standby Notice, the Dispatafministrator will notify the
Aggregation Operator that Curtailment may be required duhegeriod specified in the LDC
Standby Notice.

Stage Three — LDC Activation Notice to Dispatch Administrabr

This notice is the process by which the LDC confirms he Dispatch Administrator that
Curtailment is being requested. Upon the issuance ofit& Activation Notice by the LDC the

LDC will not have the ability to cancel the requestedt&bment. The notice shall be provided
using the form of LDC Activation Notice attached as Agper2 to this Exhibit.

The LDC Activation Notice may only be issued to thedaitch Administrator on the day of the
Activation Period (i) not earlier than 8:00, (ii) notdathan 13:00, and (iii) not less than two
hours prior to the commencement of the Activationdeeri

The LDC Activation Notice must specify the period dgrimhich Curtailment is requested and,
if applicable, the Groupings in which the Curtailmenieguested.

The Dispatch Administrator will reject a LDC Activah Notice:
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(i) if the requested Curtailment is for the same day asoainme wide
Standby Notice (whether issued before or after the LDQGivétion
Notice); or

(iv)  ifit does not comply with the Participant Agreement.
Stage Four — Dispatch Administrator Activation Notice to AggregatiorOperator

This notice is the process by which the Dispatch Adrretisr informs the Aggregation
Operator that Curtailment must occur.

Activation Notice will be given by the Dispatch Adnstriator (i) not earlier than 8:00, (i) not
later than 14:00, and (iii) not less than one hour pricchéocommencement of the Activation
Period.

Stage Five — Aggregation Operator Activation Notice

The Aggregation Operator Activation Notice is a notice gileg the Aggregation Operator to an
LDC to confirm to the LDC that Curtailment will occwithin its service area during the time
period specified in the applicable Dispatch Administratotivation Notice to the Aggregation
Operator.

The Aggregation Operator Activation Notice will be issimgdthe Aggregation Operator to the
affected LDC within one Business Hour of receipt by the Agatien Operator of the applicable
Dispatch Administrator Activation Notice and will mirm the details of the Curtailment.

Stage Six — Activation Confirmation

Activation Confirmation is the process by which the Aggtega Operator confirms that
Curtailment has commenced pursuant to a Dispatch AdmaitostActivation Notice.

Activation Confirmation will be issued by the AggregatiOperator within one Business Hour
of the commencement of the Activation Period.

The Activation Confirmation will be given by the Aggreigat Operator:
(v) to the Dispatch Administrator; and

(vi)  to the LDC by email to the email address specified by &8 in the
LDC Activation Notice.

Stage Seven — Activation Completion Confirmation

Activation Completion Confirmation is the process lyiah the Aggregation Operator confirms
that Curtailment has occurred and that the Activatiemod has ended.

Activation CompletionConfirmation will be issued no more than one Business tadter the
end of the Activation Period.
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The Activation Completioil©€onfirmation will be issued by the Aggregation Operator:
(vii)  to the Dispatch Administrator; and

(viii) to the LDC by email to the email address specified lgyUtBC in the
LDC Activation Notice.
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Appendix 1 to LDC Initiated DR Curtailment Protocol

Form of LDC Standby Notice

1) Name of LDC:

2) Email address of LDC:

3) Phone number of LDC.:

4) Date of Notice (dd/mm/yyyy):
5) Type of Notice (check one box only):

a. day at hand LDC Standby Notice [ ]
b. day ahead LDC Standby Notice ]

6) Request for Standby Notice:
a. On Date (dd/mm/yyyy):
b. Standby Start time (EPT):
c. Standby Stop time (EPT):

7) List of Groupings in the LDC'’s service area requestedtfmmdby (if provided to the
Aggregation Operator):

8) Name of Aggregation Operator for LDC:

Initiative Schedule B-3 (Residential and Small Commercial Demand Response Initiative 2011-2014) 30



Appendix 2to LDC Initiated DR Curtailment Protocol
Form of LDC Activation Notice

1) Name of LDC:

2) Email address of LDC:

3) Phone number of LDC:

4) Date of Notice (dd/mm/yyyy):

5) Request for Activation Notice:
a. On Date (dd/mm/yyyy):
b. Activation Start time (EPT):
c. Activation Stop time (EPT):

*Maximum of 4 hours per event

6) List of Groupings in the LDC'’s service area requesteftatailment (if provided to the
Aggregation Operator):

7) Name of Aggregation Operator for LDC:
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